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                          PART I-FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
ITEM I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
IMMUNOGEN, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
As of June 30, 1997 and September 30, 1997 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                          June 30,            September 30, 
                                                                                       -------------          ------------- 
 
                                                                                                1997                   1997 
- ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 
                                                                                                                   
ASSETS 
 
Cash and cash equivalents                                                              $   1,669,050          $   1,907,581 
Due from minority interest holder                                                              -                    843,000 
Prepaids and other current assets                                                            578,497                280,076 
                                                                                       -------------          ------------- 
 
      Total current assets                                                                 2,247,547              3,030,657 
                                                                                       -------------          ------------- 
 
Property and equipment, net of accumulated 
   depreciation                                                                            2,929,733              2,603,270 
Note receivable                                                                            1,128,910              1,155,795 
Other assets                                                                                  43,700                 43,700 
                                                                                       -------------          ------------- 
 
           Total assets                                                                $   6,349,890          $   6,833,422 
                                                                                       =============          ============= 
 
 
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
 
Accounts payable                                                                             612,559                589,932 
Accrued compensation                                                                         248,472                145,064 
Other accrued liabilities                                                                    841,238                652,850 
Current portion of capital lease obligations                                                  37,068                  - 
Current portion of deferred lease                                                             89,160                 68,580 
                                                                                       -------------          ------------- 
 
      Total current liabilities                                                            1,828,497              1,456,426 
                                                                                       -------------          ------------- 
 
Deferred lease                                                                                59,436                 62,871 
Minority interest                                                                              -                    780,895 
 
Commitments 
 
Stockholders' equity: 
        Preferred stock; $.01 par value; authorized 5,000,000 shares as of 
        June 30, 1997 and September 30 ,1997 
               Convertible preferred stock, Series A, $.01 par value; issued 
                    and outstanding 1,100  and 600 shares as of June 30, 1997 
                    and September 30, 1997 (liquidation preference -  stated 
                    value plus accrued but unpaid dividends per share)                            11                      6 
               Convertible preferred stock, Series C, $.01 par value; issued 
                    and outstanding 700 shares as of June 30, 1997 
                    (liquidation preference -  stated value plus accrued but 
                    unpaid dividends per share)                                                    7                  - 
               Convertible preferred stock, Series D, $.01 par value; issued 
                    and outstanding 1,000 shares as of June 30, 1997  and 
                    September 30, 1997 (liquidation preference -  stated 
                    value plus accrued but unpaid dividends per share)                            10                     10 
         Common stock, $.01 par value; authorized 
                    30,000,000 shares and 50,000,000 shares as of June 30, 1997 
                    and September 30, 1997, respectively; issued and 
                    outstanding 21,779,767 and 22,979,877 shares 
                    as of June 30, 1997 and September 30, 1997, respectively                 217,797                229,798 
         Additional paid-in capital                                                      144,753,538            146,607,271 
                                                                                       -------------          ------------- 
 
                                                                                         144,971,363            146,837,085 
   Accumulated deficit                                                                  (140,509,406)          (142,303,855) 
                                                                                       -------------          ------------- 
 
      Total stockholders' equity                                                           4,461,957              4,533,230 
                                                                                       -------------          ------------- 
 
           Total liabilities and stockholders' equity                                  $   6,349,890          $   6,833,422 
                                                                                       =============          ============= 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
    The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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IMMUNOGEN, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 
For the three months ended September 30, 1996 and 1997 
 
 
 
 
                                                                     Three Months Ended September 30, 
                                                                  -------------------------------------- 
 
                                                                      1996                       1997 
                                                                  -----------                ----------- 
 
                                                                                                
Revenues: 
   Development fees                                               $    82,156                $    77,000 
   Interest                                                            50,417                     45,872 
   Licensing                                                            5,643                        597 
                                                                  -----------                ----------- 
 
      Total revenues                                                  138,216                    123,469 
                                                                  -----------                ----------- 
 
 
Expenses: 
   Research and development                                         1,946,034                  1,552,543 
   General and administrative                                         438,120                    379,270 
   Interest                                                            66,862                      1,555 
 
                                                                  -----------                ----------- 
      Total expenses                                                2,451,016                  1,933,368 
                                                                  -----------                ----------- 
 
 
Loss before income taxes and minority interest                     (2,312,800)                (1,809,899) 
 
Income tax expense                                                        666                        606 
                                                                  -----------                ----------- 
 
Net loss before minority interest                                  (2,313,466)                (1,810,505) 
                                                                  -----------                ----------- 
 
Minority interest in net loss of consolidated subsidiary                -                        (27,605) 
 
Net loss                                                           (2,313,466)                (1,782,900) 
 
Dividends on convertible preferred stock                                -                         11,549 
                                                                  -----------                ----------- 
 
Net loss to common shareholders                                   $(2,313,466)               $(1,794,449) 
                                                                  ===========                =========== 
 
 
Loss per common share                                             $     (0.14)               $     (0.08) 
                                                                  ===========                =========== 
 
Shares used in computing loss 
   per share amounts                                               16,914,771                 22,533,758 
                                                                  ===========                =========== 
 
 
 
 
    The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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IMMUNOGEN, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
For the year ended June 30,1997 and the quarter ended September 30, 1997 
 
 
 
                                                              Common Stock                     Preferred Stock 
                                                 ------------------------------------   ----------------------------- 
                                                                          Additional                       Additional     
                                                                           Paid-in                          Paid-in       
                                                   Shares       Amount     Capital      Shares   Amount     Capital       
                                                 ----------   ---------  ------------   ------   ------   -----------     
 
                                                                                                     
Balance at June 30, 1996                         16,599,855     165,999   128,525,884      -       -              -       
                                                 ----------   ---------  ------------   ------    ----    -----------     
 
Stock options exercised                              54,644         545        87,310      -       -              -       
Issuance of common stock                             41,481         415        69,585      -       -              -       
Conversion of convertible debentures                                                          
     into common stock                              351,662       3,517     1,315,217      -       -              -       
Exchange of convertible debentures for                                                   
     series A convertible preferred stock               -           -             -      2,500      25      4,749,586     
Issuance of Series B Convertible                                                                                          
     Preferred Stock                                                                     3,000      30      3,486,342     
Issuance of Series C Convertible                                                                                          
     Preferred Stock                                    -           -             -      3,000      30      4,720,003     
Issuance of Series D Convertible                                                                                          
     Preferred Stock                                    -           -             -      1,000      10      1,287,092     
Conversion of Series A Convertible                                                                                        
     Preferred Stock into common stock            1,328,744      13,287     2,766,405   (1,400)    (14)    (2,659,763)    
Conversion of Series B Convertible                                                                                        
     Preferred Stock into common stock            1,384,823      13,848     3,539,221   (3,000)    (30)    (3,486,342)    
Conversion of Series C Convertible                                                                                        
     Preferred Stock into common stock            2,018,558      20,186     2,956,928   (2,300)    (23)    (2,910,669)    
Compensation for put right                              -           -             -        -       -          306,739     
Dividends on convertible preferred stock                -           -             -        -       -              -       
Net loss for the year ended June 30, 1997               -           -             -        -       -              -       
                                                 ----------   ---------  ------------   ------    ----    -----------     
 
Balance at June 30, 1997                         21,779,767   $ 217,797  $139,260,550    2,800    $ 28    $ 5,492,988     
                                                 ==========   =========  ============   ======    ====    ===========     
 
Conversion of Series A Convertible  
     Preferred Stock into common stock              498,930       4,989       997,120     (500)     (5)      (949,916)    
Conversion of Series C Convertible  
     Preferred Stock into common stock              701,180       7,012     1,126,815     (700)     (7)    (1,101,334)    
Value ascribed to ImmunoGen Warrants 
     issued to BioChem                                  -           -       1,886,473      -       -              -       
Legal fees associated with Biochem  
     transaction                                        -           -        (105,425)     -       -              -       
Dividends on convertible preferred stock                -           -             -        -       -              -       
Net loss for the quarter ended  
     September 30, 1997                                 -           -             -        -       -              -       
                                                 ----------   ---------  ------------   ------    ----    -----------     
 
Balance at September 30, 1997                    22,979,877   $ 229,798  $143,165,533    1,600    $ 16    $ 3,441,738     
                                                 ==========   =========  ============   ======    ====    ===========     
 
 
                                                                      Total        
                                                   Accumulated    Stockholders'    
                                                     Deficit         Equity        
                                                 -------------    -------------    
                                                                                              
                                                                          
Balance at June 30, 1996                          (127,914,500)        777,383     
                                                 -------------     -----------     
 
Stock options exercised                                    -            87,855     
Issuance of common stock                                   -            70,000     
Conversion of convertible debentures                                               
     into common stock                                     -         1,318,734     
Exchange of convertible debentures for                                             
     series A convertible preferred stock                  -         4,749,611     
Issuance of Series B Convertible                                                   
     Preferred Stock                                                 3,486,372     
Issuance of Series C Convertible                                                   
     Preferred Stock                                       -         4,720,033     
Issuance of Series D Convertible                                                   
     Preferred Stock                                       -         1,287,102     
Conversion of Series A Convertible                                                 
     Preferred Stock into common stock                     -           119,915     
Conversion of Series B Convertible                                                 
     Preferred Stock into common stock                     -            66,697     
Conversion of Series C Convertible                                                 
     Preferred Stock into common stock                     -            66,422     
Compensation for put right                                 -           306,739     
Dividends on convertible preferred stock            (3,511,510)     (3,511,510)    
Net loss for the year ended June 30, 1997           (9,083,396)     (9,083,396)    
                                                 -------------     -----------     



                                                                                   
Balance at June 30, 1997                         $(140,509,406)    $ 4,461,957     
                                                 =============     ===========     
                                                                                   
Conversion of Series A Convertible                                                 
     Preferred Stock into common stock                     -            52,188     
Conversion of Series C Convertible                                                 
     Preferred Stock into common stock                     -            32,486     
Value ascribed to ImmunoGen Warrants                                               
     issued to BioChem                                     -         1,886,473 
Legal fees associated with Biochem                                                 
     transaction                                           -          (105,425)    
Dividends on convertible preferred stock               (11,549)        (11,549)    
Net loss for the quarter ended                                                     
     September 30, 1997                             (1,782,900)     (1,782,900)    
                                                 -------------     -----------     
                                                                                   
Balance at September 30, 1997                    $(142,303,855)    $ 4,533,230 
                                                 =============     ===========     
 
 
 
 
    The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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IMMUNOGEN, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  
For the three months ended September 30, 1996 and 1997 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                           September 30, 
                                                                                ------------------------------------ 
 
                                                                                    1996                     1997 
                                                                                -----------              ----------- 
 
                                                                                                             
      Cash flows from operating activities: 
         Net loss                                                               $(2,313,082)             $(1,794,449) 
         Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net 
            cash used for operating activities: 
              Depreciation and amortization                                         446,396                  326,463 
              Loss on sale of property and equipment                                  2,934                    -   
              Accretion of interest on note receivable                              (29,037)                 (26,885) 
              Dividends payable                                                       -                       11,549 
               Minority interest in net loss of consolidated subsidiary               -                      (27,605) 
              Amortization of deferred lease                                          -                      (17,145) 
              Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
                Other current assets                                               (102,619)                 298,421 
                Accounts payable                                                    320,984                  (22,627) 
                Accrued compensation                                                (75,157)                (103,408) 
                Other accrued liabilities                                           (95,701)                (115,263) 
                                                                                -----------              ----------- 
       
              Net cash used for operating activities                             (1,845,282)              (1,470,949) 
                                                                                -----------              ----------- 
       
      Cash flows from investing activities: 
         Proceeds from sale of property and equipment                                15,183                    -   
                                                                                -----------              ----------- 
       
              Net cash (used for) provided by 
                investing activities                                                 15,183                    -   
                                                                                -----------              ----------- 
       
      Cash flows from financing activities: 
         Proceeds from issuance of ATI convertible preferred stock                    -                    1,851,973 
         Stock issuances, net                                                        23,458                    -   
         Principal payments on capital lease obligations                            (34,398)                 (37,068) 
         Financing costs                                                              -                     (105,425) 
                                                                                -----------              ----------- 
       
              Net cash provided by (used for) 
               financing activities                                                 (10,940)               1,709,480 
                                                                                -----------              ----------- 
       
      Net change in cash and cash equivalents                                    (1,841,039)                 238,531 
                                                                                -----------              ----------- 
       
      Cash and cash equivalents, beginning balance                                2,796,636                1,669,050 
                                                                                -----------              ----------- 
       
      Cash and cash equivalents, ending balance                                 $   955,597              $ 1,907,581 
                                                                                ===========              =========== 
       
       
      Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: 
       
         Cash paid for interest                                                 $     4,569              $     1,555 
                                                                                ===========              =========== 
       
         Cash paid (refunded) for income taxes                                  $     1,197              $     2,027 
                                                                                ===========              =========== 
       
      Supplemental disclosure of noncash financing activities: 
       
          Conversion of convertible debentures including accrued interest         1,318,734                    -    
                                                                                ===========              =========== 
          Conversion of Series A Preferred Stock to Common  Stock               $     -                  $   949,921 
                                                                                ===========              =========== 
          Conversion of Series C Preferred Stock to Common  Stock               $     -                  $ 1,101,341 
                                                                                ===========              =========== 
          Due from minority interest holder                                     $     -                  $   843,000 
                                                                                ===========              =========== 
          Minority interest                                                     $     -                  $   808,500 
                                                                                ===========              =========== 
 
 
 
 
    The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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                                 IMMUNOGEN, INC. 
 
                   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
A. In the opinion of management, the accompanying financial statements include 
all adjustments, consisting of only normal recurring accruals, necessary to 
present fairly the consolidated financial position, results of operations and 
cash flows of ImmunoGen, Inc. (the "Company"), which include those of its 
wholly-owned subsidiary, ImmunoGen Securities Corp., and its 95%-owned 
subsidiary, Apoptosis Technology, Inc. ("ATI"). The financial disclosures herein 
should be read in conjunction with the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for 
the year ended June 30, 1997. 
 
The Company has been unprofitable since inception and expects to incur net 
losses over the next several years, assuming it is able to raise sufficient 
working capital to continue operations. The Company's cash resources at 
September 30, 1997 were approximately $1.9 million. This amount includes 
$330,000 received in July 1997 from the assignee of the Company's facility and 
equipment leases at its Canton, Massachusetts facility. In October 1997, the 
Company received $225,000 under a $750,000 grant from the Small Business 
Innovation Research (SBIR) Program of the National Cancer Institute awarded in 
July 1997 to advance development over a two-year period of the Company's lead 
product candidate, huC242-DM1. Also in October 1997, ATI received $843,000 under 
a research and collaboration agreement with a large biopharmaceutical company 
(see footnote D.). This collaboration is expected to provide significant funding 
for ATI's operations for a period of time, initially three years, as well as 
milestone and royalty payments. Under the terms of the collaboration, the entire 
$11.125 million investment must be used to finance the research program with the 
biopharmaceutical company. The Company continues actively to seek additional 
capital by pursuing one or more financing transactions and/or strategic 
partnering arrangements. While the Company remains hopeful that it will be able 
to consummate an additional financing transaction in the near term, no assurance 
can be given that such financing will be available to the Company on acceptable 
terms, if at all. If the Company is unable to obtain financing on acceptable 
terms in order to maintain operations, it could be forced to further curtail or 
discontinue its operations. 
 
B. In October 1996, the Company's $2.5 million debenture issued in June 1996 was 
converted into 2,500 shares of the Company's Series A Convertible Preferred 
Stock, with a stated value of $1,000 per share (the "Series A Stock"). Holders 
of the Series A Stock are entitled to receive, when and as declared by the Board 
of Directors, cumulative dividends at a rate per share equal to 9% per annum in 
cash or, at the Company's option, in shares of the Company's Common Stock, $.01 
par value per share ("Common Stock"), in arrears on the conversion date. The 
2,500 shares of Series A Stock are convertible into the same number of shares of 
Common Stock as the $2.5 million debenture. Each share of Series A Stock is 
convertible into a number of shares of 
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Common Stock determined by dividing the $1,000 stated value per share by the 
lesser of (i) 85% of the average of the closing bid prices for the Common Stock 
for the five consecutive trading days prior to the conversion date, and (ii) 
$2.50 (subject to certain adjustments). In addition, holders of the Series A 
Stock are entitled to receive, on conversion of the Series A Stock, a number of 
warrants equal to 50% of the number of shares of Common Stock issued on 
conversion. As of September 30 and October 20, 1997, 1,900 shares of Series A 
Stock and accumulated dividends thereon had been converted into 1,827,674 shares 
of Common Stock. In connection with that conversion, warrants to purchase 
913,837 shares of Common Stock were issued. These warrants have an exercise 
price of $4 per share and expire in 2002. 
 
C. In October 1996, the Company entered into a financing agreement (the "October 
1996 Private Placement") with an institutional investor under which the Company 
was granted the right to require the investor to purchase up to $12.0 million of 
convertible preferred stock from the Company in a series of private placements. 
Pursuant to the October 1996 Private Placement, the Company sold 3,000 shares of 
its 9% Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, with a stated value of $1,000 per 
share ("Series B Stock"). As of February 4, 1997, all 3,000 shares of Series B 
Stock plus accumulated dividends thereon had been converted into 1,384,823 
shares of the Company's Common Stock. In connection with the issuance of the 
Series B Stock, warrants to purchase 500,000 shares of Common Stock were also 
issued. These warrants have a value of $618,900, which was accounted for as 
non-cash dividends to holders of Common Stock at the time of issuance of the 
Series B Stock. Of these 500,000 warrants, 250,000 warrants are exercisable at 
$5.49 per share and expire in October 2001. The remaining 250,000 warrants are 
exercisable at $3.68 per share and expire in January 2002. 
 
In January 1997, the Company sold 3,000 shares of its 9% Series C Convertible 
Preferred Stock, with a stated value of $1,000 per share ("Series C Stock"), in 
connection with the October 1996 Private Placement. The Series C Stock was 
convertible into a number of shares of Common Stock determined by dividing 
$1,000 by the lower of (i) $2.61 and (ii) 85% of the market price of the 
Company's Common Stock at the time of conversion. As of September 30, 1997, all 
3,000 shares of Series C Stock plus accumulated dividends thereon had been 
converted into 2,719,738 shares of the Company's Common Stock. In connection 
with the Series C Stock, warrants to purchase 1,147,754 shares of Common Stock 
were issued to the investor. These warrants are exercisable at $2.31 per share 
and expire in April 2002. The $1.2 million value of these warrants was accounted 
for as non-cash dividends to holders of Common Stock at the time of issuance of 
the Series C Stock. 
 
Also pursuant to the October 1996 Private Placement, the Company in June 1997 
sold 1,000 shares of its 9% Series D Convertible Preferred Stock, with a stated 
value of $1,000 per share ("Series D Stock"), bringing the aggregate amount 
received under the October 1996 Private Placement to $7.0 million. The Series D 
Stock is convertible at any time into a number of shares of Common Stock 
determined by dividing $1,000 by the lower of (i) $1.4375 and (ii) 85% of the 
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market price of the Common Stock at the time of conversion. As of September 30, 
1997, no Series D Stock had been converted into Common Stock. As of October 20, 
1997, 650 shares of Series D Stock and accumulated dividends thereon had been 
converted into 627,000 shares of the Company's Common Stock. In addition, 
because conversion of the Series D Stock did not occur until after the eightieth 
day following its issue date, the investor received warrants to purchase 454,545 
shares of Common Stock in connection with the Series D Stock. These warrants 
have an exercise price of $1.94 per share and expire in 2002. The $278,000 value 
of these warrants was determined at the time of issuance of the Series D Stock 
and was accounted for as non-cash dividends to holders of Common Stock at that 
time. No additional warrants are issuable in connection with the Series D Stock. 
 
Under the October 1996 Private Placement, the Company had the right to require 
the investor to purchase up to $12.0 million of convertible preferred stock from 
the Company in a series of private placements, subject to certain conditions. 
However, because minimum stock price and minimum market capitalization 
requirements have not been maintained, the investor is no longer obligated to 
fund the remaining $5.0 million which had been available to the Company under 
this agreement. In addition, the Company continues actively to pursue other 
potential sources of financing. However, there can be no assurance that the 
investor will provide such funding to the Company on acceptable terms, if at 
all, or that the Company will be able to secure financing from other investors. 
 
D. In July 1997, ATI entered into a collaboration with BioChem Pharma Inc. 
("BioChem"), a Canadian biopharmaceutical company. The agreement grants BioChem 
an exclusive, worldwide license to ATI's proprietary screens based on two 
families of proteins involved in apoptosis, for use in identifying leads for 
anti-cancer drug development. The agreement also covers the development of new 
screens in two areas. 
 
Under the agreement, BioChem will invest a total of $11.125 million in 
non-voting convertible preferred stock of ATI in a series of private placements 
over a three-year period to be used exclusively to fund research conducted under 
the collaboration during a three-year research term. In August and October 1997, 
BioChem paid ATI $1.852 million and $843,000, respectively, under this 
agreement. The balance of $8.430 million will be paid in equal quarterly 
payments of $843,000. The preferred stock is convertible into ATI common stock 
at any time after three years from the date of first issuance of such stock, at 
a conversion price equal to the then current market price of the ATI common 
stock, but in any event at a price that will result in BioChem acquiring at 
least 15% of the then outstanding ATI common stock.  
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The research agreement may be extended beyond the initial three-year term, on 
terms substantially similar to those for the original term. BioChem will also 
make milestone payments of up to $15.0 million for each product over the course 
of its development. In addition, ATI will receive royalties on any future 
worldwide sales of products resulting from the collaboration. BioChem's 
obligation to provide additional financing to ATI each quarter is subject to 
satisfaction of specified conditions, including a condition with respect to the 
level of ATI's cash and other resources in addition to the financing. 
 
As part of the agreement, BioChem receives warrants to purchase shares of 
ImmunoGen Common Stock equal to the amount invested in ATI during the three-year 
research term. These warrants will be exercisable for a number of shares of 
ImmunoGen's Common Stock determined by dividing the amount of BioChem's 
investment in ATI by the market price of the ImmunoGen Common Stock on the 
exercise date, subject to certain limitations. The exercise price is payable 
either in cash or shares of ATI preferred stock, at BioChem's option. The 
warrants are expected to be exercised only in the event that the shares of ATI 
common stock do not become publicly traded. In the event that ATI common stock 
does not become publicly traded, the Company expects that BioChem will use its 
shares of ATI preferred stock, in lieu of cash, to exercise the warrants. For 
the three months ended September 30, 1997, 2,695 shares of ATI preferred stock 
were issued or issuable, resulting in a 3.5% minority interest in the net loss 
of ATI. The minority interest portion of ATI's loss for the quarter reduced 
ImmunoGen's net loss by $27,600, as reflected in the statements of operations. 
In addition, because the investment is comprised of securities potentially 
issuable by both the Company and ATI, management has estimated the relative 
value of the investment in ATI securities, based on a preliminary appraisal by 
an independent valuation consultant, to be approximately 30%, or approximately 
$809,000, of the total investment to date, and has reflected this amount as 
minority interest on the Company's consolidated balance sheet. 
 
E. In 1997, the Financial Accounting Standards Board released the Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards No. 128 (SFAS 128), "Earnings Per Share." SFAS 
128 specifies the computation, presentation and disclosure requirements for 
earnings per share and is substantially similar to the standards recently issued 
by the International Accounting Standards (IAS 33), "Earnings Per Share." SFAS 
128 is effective for financial statements issued for periods ending after 
December 15, 1997, including interim periods. SFAS 128 requires restatement of 
all prior-period earnings per share data presented. Management has not yet 
determined the impact, if any, of SFAS 128 on the Company's financial 
statements. 
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Item 2.   MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND  
          RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
 
OVERVIEW 
 
        Since inception, the Company has been primarily engaged in research and 
development of immunoconjugate products which the Company believes have 
significant commercial potential as human therapeutics. The Company's 95%-owned 
subsidiary, Apoptosis Technology, Inc. ("ATI"), focuses its efforts on the 
discovery and development of anti-cancer therapeutics based on the regulation of 
apoptosis. The major sources of the Company's working capital have been the 
proceeds of equity and convertible debt and equity financings, license fees, 
government-sponsored research grants and income earned on investment of its 
available funds. In addition, in July 1997 ATI entered into a research and 
collaboration agreement with a large biopharmaceutical company which will 
provide significant funding for ATI's operations for a period of time, initially 
three years, as well as milestone and royalty payments (see LIQUIDITY AND 
CAPITAL RESOURCES below). The Company expects no revenues to be derived from 
product sales for the foreseeable future. 
 
        The Company has been unprofitable since inception and expects to incur 
net losses over the next several years, if it is able to raise sufficient 
working capital to continue operations. The Company anticipates that its 
existing capital resources, which include: $330,000 received in July 1997 from 
the assignee of the Company's facility and equipment leases at its Canton, 
Massachusetts facility; $1.852 million and $843,000 received in August 1997 and 
October 1997, respectively, by ATI from its collaborator, Biochem Pharma Inc. 
("BioChem"); and $225,000 also received in October 1997 under a recently-awarded 
$750,000 grant from the Small Business Innovation Research (SBIR) Program of the 
National Cancer Institute to advance development over a two-year period of the 
Company's lead product candidate, huC242-DM1, will enable it to maintain its 
current and planned operations into December 1997. The Company also continues 
its stringent cost control efforts begun in December 1994 when it implemented a 
significant restructuring program. 
 
        Under a financing agreement the Company entered into in October 1996 
(the "October 1996 Private Placement"), the Company was granted the right to 
require the investor to purchase up to $12.0 million of convertible preferred 
stock from the Company in a series of private placements, of which an aggregate 
of $7.0 million had been received through June 30, 1997. Because minimum stock 
price and minimum market capitalization requirements have not been maintained, 
the investor is no longer obligated to fund the remaining $5.0 million which had 
been available to the Company under this agreement. 
 
        Because of its continuing losses from operations, the Company will be 
required to obtain additional capital in the short term to satisfy its ongoing 
capital needs and to continue its operations. While the Company remains hopeful 
that it will be able to consummate an additional financing transaction in the 
near term, no assurance can be given that such financing will be 
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available to the Company on acceptable terms, if at all. If the Company is 
unable to obtain financing on acceptable terms in order to maintain operations 
through the current fiscal year, it could be forced to further curtail or 
discontinue its operations. 
 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
 
  Three Months Ended September 30, 1996 and 1997 
 
        The Company's revenues decreased approximately 11% from approximately 
$138,000 for the three months ended September 30, 1996 to approximately $123,000 
for the three months ended September 30, 1997. In both periods, revenues were 
derived principally from amounts received under the SBIR Program (59% and 62% in 
fiscal years 1996 and 1997, respectively), with smaller amounts received in the 
form of interest income and licensing fees pursuant to two licensing agreements. 
Interest income in both periods included interest earned on cash balances 
available for investment, as well as accretion of interest on a note receivable 
related to the assignment of the Company's leases on its Canton, Massachusetts 
facility and equipment. 
 
               The Company's total expenses decreased 21% from approximately 
$2.5 million for the three months ended September 30, 1996 to approximately $1.9 
million for the three months ended September 30, 1997. Research and development 
costs constituted the primary component of the Company's total expenses (79% and 
80% in fiscal years 1996 and 1997, respectively), decreasing approximately 20% 
from approximately $1.9 million in fiscal 1996 to approximately $1.6 million in 
fiscal 1997). This decrease is attributable to the Company's continuing cost 
reduction efforts begun in fiscal year 1995. 
 
        General and administrative expenses decreased approximately 13% from 
approximately $438,000 for the three months ended September 30, 1996 to 
approximately $379,000 for the three months ended September 30, 1997. This 
decrease is a result of the Company's cost reduction and control efforts begun 
in fiscal year 1995. 
 
        Interest expense decreased approximately 98% from approximately $67,000 
for the three months ended September 30, 1996 to approximately $1,600 for the 
three months ended September 30, 1997. Both periods include interest costs on 
the remaining principal balances of the Company's capital lease agreements. The 
larger costs in fiscal 1996 represent the costs incurred in connection with the 
issuances of convertible debentures. In fiscal 1997, the Company's financing 
activities included issuances of convertible equity and related common stock 
purchase warrants, as well as the October 1996 conversion of a $2.5 million 
convertible debenture to convertible preferred stock. The dividends accumulated 
for the three months ended September 30, 1997, totalling approximately $11,500, 
are reflected as dividends payable on convertible preferred stock. 
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        In connection with the collaboration entered into in July 1997 between 
ATI and BioChem, BioChem will invest a total of $11.125 million in non-voting 
convertible preferred stock of ATI in a series of private placements over a 
three-year period. The preferred stock is convertible into ATI common stock at 
any time after three years from the date of first issuance of such stock, at a 
conversion price equal to the then current market price of the ATI common stock, 
but in any event at a price that will result in BioChem acquiring no less than 
15% of the then outstanding ATI common stock. For the three months ended 
September 30, 1997, 2,695 shares of ATI preferred stock were issued or issuable, 
resulting in a 3.5% minority interest in the net loss of ATI. The minority 
interest portion of ATI's loss for the quarter reduced ImmunoGen's net loss by 
$27,600, as reflected in the statements of operations. 
 
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 
 
        Since July 1, 1995, the Company has financed its operating deficit of 
approximately $33.3 million from various sources, including issuances in fiscal 
years 1996 and 1997 of convertible debt and equity securities, amounts received 
pursuant to its fiscal 1996 assignment of leases, funds received under research 
grants and from the exercise of stock options. 
 
        In August 1995, the Company issued $3.6 million of 7% subordinated 
convertible debentures to a small number of overseas investors. Net proceeds to 
the Company amounted to approximately $3.3 million. As of June 30, 1996, all of 
these debentures plus accrued interest thereon had been converted into shares of 
Common Stock. In total, 2,753,269 shares of Common Stock were issued to the 
holders of the $3.6 million of 7% subordinated convertible debentures for both 
principal and interest. In addition, 81,480 shares of Common Stock were issued 
to a third party as a finder's fee in connection with the issuance of the 
debentures. The value of such shares, approximately $108,000, was charged to 
interest expense. 
 
        In March 1996, the Company issued $5.0 million principal amount 
convertible debentures in a private placement. As part of the private placement, 
the Company issued a $2.5 million principal amount debenture on March 25, 1996. 
In June 1996, the debenture, together with accrued interest thereon, was 
converted into shares of Common Stock, and warrants to purchase 509,000 shares 
of Common Stock at an exercise price of $4.00 per share were issued to the 
holder of the debenture. These warrants expire in March 2001. In June 1996, a 
second $2.5 million convertible debenture was issued and then converted into 
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series A Stock") in October 1996. Each 
share of Series A Stock is convertible at any time into a number of shares of 
Common Stock determined by dividing $1,000 by the lower of (i) $2.50 and (ii) 
85% of the average of the closing bid price of the Common Stock for the five 
days 
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prior to conversion (the "Market Price"). As of September 30 and October 21, 
1997, 1,900 of the 2,500 shares of Series A Stock plus accrued dividends thereon 
had been converted into 1,804,836 shares of Common Stock. In June 1996, the 
Company issued additional warrants to purchase 500,000 shares of the Company's 
Common Stock in connection with the conversion of the debenture into Common 
Stock. These warrants have an exercise price equal to $6.00 per share and expire 
in March 2001. Additionally, warrants to purchase 250,000 shares of the 
Company's Common Stock were issued as finder's fees in connection with the 
issuance of the debentures. The 1,259,000 warrants issued in connection with the 
debentures had a value of approximately $2.7 million, which was charged to 
interest expense at the time of issuance of the warrants. Upon conversion of the 
Series A Stock, the holder receives warrants to purchase a number of shares of 
Common Stock equal to 50% of the number of shares issuable upon conversion of 
the Series A Stock. These warrants, valued at $623,000, were accounted for as 
non-cash dividends to holders of preferred stock at the time of issuance of the 
convertible securities. These warrants will be exercisable at $4.00 per share 
and expire five years after the date of issuance. As of September 30 and October 
21, 1997, warrants to purchase 913,837 shares of the Company's Common Stock were 
issued on conversion of the Series A Stock. 
 
        In June 1996 the Company satisfied its own and ATI's obligations to 
Dana-Farber, totaling approximately $1.3 million, by issuing an 11.5% 
convertible debenture in that amount. In July 1996, the 11.5% debenture and 
accrued interest thereon, aggregating $1,318,734, was converted into 351,662 
shares of Common Stock. 
 
        In October 1996, the Company sold $3.0 million of 9% Series B 
Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series B Stock") in connection with the October 
1996 Private Placement. Each share of Series B Stock was convertible into a 
number of shares of Common Stock determined by dividing $1,000 by the lower of 
(i) $3.60 and (ii) 85% of the market price of the Common Stock. As of February 
4, 1997, all 3,000 shares of the Series B Stock plus accrued dividends thereon 
had been converted into 1,384,823 shares of the Company's Common Stock. In 
connection with the issuance of the Series B Stock, warrants to purchase 500,000 
shares of the Company's Common Stock were also issued. These warrants have a 
value of $618,900, which was accounted for as non-cash dividends to holders of 
Common Stock at the time of issuance of the convertible securities. Of these 
500,000 warrants, 250,000 warrants are exercisable at $5.49 per share and expire 
in October 2001. The remaining 250,000 warrants are exercisable at $3.68 per 
share and expire in January 2002. 
 
        In January 1997, the Company sold $3.0 million of 9% Series C 
Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series C Stock") in connection with the October 
1996 Private Placement. Each share of Series C Stock was convertible into a 
number of shares of Common Stock determined by dividing $1,000 by the lower of 
(i) $2.61 and (ii) 85% of the market price of the Company's Common Stock. As of 
August 1, 1997, all 3,000 shares of the Series C Stock plus accrued dividends 
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thereon had been converted into 2,719,738 shares of the Company's Common Stock. 
In connection with the Series C Stock, warrants to purchase 1,147,754 shares of 
Common Stock were issued to the investor. These warrants are exercisable at 
$2.31 per share and expire in April 2002. The $1.2 million value of these 
warrants was accounted for as non-cash dividends to holders of Common Stock at 
the time of issuance of the convertible securities. 
 
        In June 1997, the Company sold $1.0 million of 9% Series D Convertible 
Preferred Stock ("Series D Stock") in connection with the October 1996 Private 
Placement. The Series D Stock was convertible at any time into a number of 
shares of Common Stock determined by dividing $1,000 by the lower of (i) $1.4375 
and (ii) 85% of the market price of the Company's Common Stock at the time of 
conversion. As of September 30, 1997, no Series D Stock had been converted into 
Common Stock. As of October 21, 1997, all 1,000 shares of Series D Stock plus 
accumulated dividends thereon had been converted in 1,001,387 shares of Common 
Stock. In addition, the investor received warrants to purchase 454,545 shares of 
Common Stock. These warrants have an exercise price of $1.94 per share and 
expire in 2002. The $278,000 value of these warrants was determined at the time 
of issuance of the convertible securities and was accounted for as non-cash 
dividends to holders of preferred stock at that time. 
 
        Also in June 1997, the Company and ATI satisfied an obligation of ATI to 
one of its scientific advisors, totaling $120,000, by a combination of cash and 
41,481 shares of Common Stock. 
 
        ImmunoGen was committed to provide ATI with $3.0 million in research and 
development services and $2.0 million in cash equity contributions over a 
three-year period. At June 30, 1995, these obligations had been fulfilled by the 
Company. ImmunoGen had also agreed to obtain or furnish an additional $3.0 
million in equity for ATI on such terms and conditions as were mutually agreed 
to by ATI and the providers of such additional equity. As of July 31, 1997, 
amounts owed by ATI to ImmunoGen approximated $14.2 million, and this amount was 
converted into 22,207,966 shares of ATI common stock, thereby satisfying the 
agreement to provide an additional $3.0 million in equity and increasing 
ImmunoGen's majority ownership from 72% to 95%. 
 
        In July 1997, ATI entered into a collaboration with BioChem Pharma, 
Inc.("BioChem"), a Canadian biopharmaceutical company. The agreement grants 
BioChem an exclusive, worldwide license to ATI's proprietary screens based on 
two families of proteins involved in apoptosis, for use in identifying leads for 
anti-cancer drug development. The agreement also covers the development of new 
screens in two areas. 
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        Under the agreement, BioChem will invest a total of $11.125 million in 
non-voting convertible preferred stock of ATI in a series of private placements 
over a three-year period to fund research conducted by the collaboration during 
a three-year research term. As of October 21, 1997, $2.695 million had been 
received under this agreement. The balance of $8.430 million will be paid in 
equal quarterly payments of $843,000. The preferred stock is convertible into 
ATI common stock at any time after three years from the date of first issuance 
of such stock, at a conversion price equal to the then current market price of 
the ATI common stock, but in any event a price that will result in BioChem 
acquiring at least 15% of the then outstanding ATI common stock. The research 
agreement may be extended beyond the initial three-years, on terms substantially 
similar to the original, three-year term. BioChem will also make milestone 
payments of up to $15.0 million for each product over the course of its 
development. In addition, ATI will receive royalties on the future worldwide 
sales of products, if any, resulting from the collaboration. BioChem's 
obligation to provide additional financing to ATI each quarter is subject to 
satisfaction of specified conditions, including a condition with respect to the 
level of ATI's cash and other resources in addition to the financing. 
 
        As part of the agreement, BioChem receives warrants to purchase shares 
of ImmunoGen Common Stock equal to the amount invested in ATI during the 
three-year research term. These warrants will be exercisable for a number of 
shares of ImmunoGen's Common Stock determined by dividing the amount of 
BioChem's investment in ATI by the market price of the ImmunoGen Common Stock on 
the exercise date, subject to certain limitations. The exercise price is payable 
either in cash or shares of ATI preferred stock, at Biochem's option. The 
warrants are expected to be exercised only in the event that the shares of ATI 
common stock do not become publicly traded. In the event that ATI common shares 
do not become publicly traded, the Company expects that BioChem will use its 
shares of ATI preferred stock, in lieu of cash, to exercise the warrants. As of 
October 21, 1997, BioChem's investment in ATI amounted to $2.695 million. 
 
        In the period since July 1, 1995 less than $100,000 was expended on 
property and equipment. No significant amounts are expected to be expended on 
property and equipment in fiscal 1998. 
 
        Because of its continuing losses from operations, the Company will be 
required to obtain additional capital in the short term to satisfy its ongoing 
capital needs and to continue its operations. Although, as noted above, 
management continues to pursue additional funding arrangements and/or strategic 
partners, no assurance can be given that such financing will in fact be 
available to the Company. If the Company is unable to obtain financing on 
acceptable terms in order to maintain operations, it could be forced to further 
curtail or discontinue its operations. The financial statements do not include 
any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. 
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CERTAIN FACTS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
 
        This report contains certain forward-looking statements as that term is 
defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such statements 
are based on management's current expectations and are subject to a number of 
factors and uncertainties which could cause actual results to differ materially 
from those described in the forward-looking statements. The Company cautions 
investors that there can be no assurance that actual results or business 
conditions will not differ materially from those projected or suggested in such 
forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including, but not 
limited to, the following: the uncertainties associated with preclinical studies 
and clinical trials; the early stage of the Company's initial product 
development and lack of product revenues; the Company's history of operating 
losses and accumulated deficit; the Company's limited financial resources and 
uncertainty as to the availability of additional capital to fund its development 
on acceptable terms, if at all; the Company's lack of commercial manufacturing 
experience and commercial sales, distribution and marketing capabilities; 
reliance on suppliers of antibodies necessary for production of the products and 
technologies; the potential development by competitors of competing products and 
technologies; the Company's dependence on potential collaborative partners, and 
the lack of assurance that the Company will receive any funding under such 
relationships to develop and maintain strategic alliances; the lack of assurance 
regarding patent and other protection for the Company's proprietary technology; 
governmental regulation of the Company's activities, facilities, products and 
personnel; the dependence on key personnel; uncertainties as to the extent of 
reimbursement for the costs of the Company's potential products and related 
treatment by government and private health insurers and other organizations; the 
potential adverse impact of government-directed health care reform; the risk of 
product liability claims; and general economic conditions. As a result, the 
Company's future development efforts involve a high degree of risk. For further 
information, refer to the more specific risks and uncertainties discussed in the 
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997 as 
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. 
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                                 IMMUNOGEN, INC. 
 
                           PART II - OTHER INFORMATION 
 
 
Item 1.  LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 
 
        Not applicable. 
 
Item 2.  CHANGES IN SECURITIES 
 
        On July 31, 1997, August 1, 1997 and August 20, 1997, the Company issued 
warrants to purchase 52,909 shares, 78,185 shares and 118,371 shares, 
respectively, of its Common Stock to the holder of its Series A Convertible 
Preferred Stock (the "Series A Stock") in connection with the conversion of an 
aggregate of 500 shares of Series A Stock. The Series A Stock provided that if 
conversion did not occur on or before the eightieth day after its issuance, the 
investor would receive warrants to purchase shares of the Company's Common Stock 
equal to 50% of the number of shares issued on each conversion of the Series A 
Stock. These warrants have an exercise price of $4 per share and are exercisable 
for five years from the date of issuance. 
 
        On September 16, 1997, the Company issued warrants to purchase 454,545 
shares of the Company's Common Stock to the holder of its Series D Convertible 
Preferred Stock (the "Series D Stock"). The Series D Stock provided that if 
conversion of the preferred shares did not occur on or before the eightieth day 
following their issuance, on the eighty-first day the investor would receive 
warrants to purchase a number of shares of the Company's Common Stock equal to 
50% of the number of shares of Common Stock into which the Series D Stock could 
be converted on the eighty-first day. In connection with that provision, the 
Company issued warrants to purchase 454,545 shares of the Company's Common Stock 
on September 16, 1997 with an exercise price of $1.94 per share. These warrants 
expire in September 2002. 
 
        All of the warrants issued pursuant to the terms of the Series A Stock 
and Series D Stock were issued in a private placement pursuant to Section 4(2) 
of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Regulation D promulgated 
thereunder. 
 
        In July 1997, the Company's 95%-owned subsidiary, Apoptosis Technology, 
Inc. ("ATI"), entered into a collaboration with a biopharmaceutical company. As 
part of the agreement, the collaborator receives warrants to purchase shares of 
ImmunoGen Common Stock equal to the amount invested in ATI by the collaborator 
during a three-year research term. These warrants will be exercisable at any 
time on or after July 31, 2000 until and including July 31, 2002 into a number 
of shares of ImmunoGen Common Stock determined by dividing the amount invested 
in ATI by the market price of the ImmunoGen Common Stock on the exercise date, 
subject to certain limitations. On July 31, 1997 and October 14, 1997, 
investments of $1.852 million and $843,000, respectively, were made in ATI and 
warrants corresponding to those amounts were issued in connection with such 
investments. 
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        On August 22, 1997, the Company filed Articles of Amendment with the 
Secretary of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts which amended the Company's 
Restated Articles of Organization previously in effect to increase the number of 
authorized common shares from 30 million to 50 million. 
 
Item 3.  DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES 
 
        Not applicable. 
 
Item 4.  SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS 
 
        A Special Meeting of Shareholders was held by the Company on August 11, 
1997. At the Meeting, the following matter was voted upon: 
 
        The proposal to amend the Company's Restated Articles of Organization to 
        increase the number of authorized shares of Common Stock from 30 million 
        to 50 million shares was approved by the following vote: 17,076,885 
        shares FOR, 1,291,810 shares AGAINST and 226,901 shares ABSTAINED. 
 
Item 5.  OTHER INFORMATION 
 
        Not applicable. 
 
Item 6.  EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K 
 
        (a)    Exhibits 
 
               Exhibit 
 
               3.1        Articles of Amendment of the Registrant 
 
               10.1       Warrant Certificate Dated September 16, 1997 issued to 
                          Southbrook International Investments, Ltd. 
 
               10.2       Warrant Certificate Dated July 31, 1997 issued to 
                          Capital Ventures International 
 
               10.3       Warrant Certificate Dated August 1, 1997 issued to 
                          Capital Ventures International 
 
               10.4       Warrant Certificate Dated August 21, 1997 issued to 
                          Capital Ventures International 
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               10.5       Warrant Certificate Dated October 6, 1997 issued to 
                          BioChem Pharma (International) Inc. 
 
               27         Financial Data Schedule 
 
        (b)    Reports on Form 8-K 
 
               The Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K on August 1, 1997 
               reporting the filing of a press release on the same date 
               announcing a collaboration between the Registrant's 95%-owned 
               subsidiary, Apoptosis Technology, Inc., and BioChem Pharma Inc. 
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                                   SIGNATURES 
 
 
      Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the 
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the 
undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 
 
 
 
                                    IMMUNOGEN, INC. 
 
 
 
 
Date: November 14, 1997             By: /s/ Mitchel Sayare 
                                        --------------------------------- 
                                        Mitchel Sayare 
                                        Chief Executive Officer 
                                        (principal executive officer) 
 
 
 
Date: November 14, 1997             By: /s/ Kathleen A. Carroll 
                                        --------------------------------- 
                                        Kathleen A. Carroll 
                                        Vice President, 
                                        Finance and Administration 
                                        (principal financial officer) 
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                                 IMMUNOGEN, INC. 
 
                                  EXHIBIT INDEX 
 
 
Exhibit 
 
 3.1        Articles of Amendment of the Registrant 
 
10.1        Warrant Certificate Dated September 16, 1997 issued to Southbrook 
            International Investments, Ltd. 
 
10.2        Warrant Certificate Dated July 31, 1997 issued to Capital  Ventures 
            International 
 
10.3        Warrant Certificate Dated August 1, 1997 issued to Capital Ventures 
            International 
 
10.4        Warrant Certificate Dated August 21, 1997 issued to Capital Ventures 
            International 
 
10.5        Warrant Certificate Dated October 6, 1997 issued to BioChem Pharma 
            (International) Inc. 
 
27          Financial Data Schedule 
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                                                                    Exhibit 3.1 
 
                                                         FEDERAL IDENTIFICATION 
                                                         NO. 04 2726691 
 
________ 
Examiner              THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
 
                            WILLIAM FRANCIS GALVIN 
                        Secretary of the Commonwealth 
            One Ashburton Place, Boston, Massachusetts 02108-1512 
 
 
 
                            ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT 
 N/A              (GENERAL LAWS, CHAPTER 156B, SECTION 72) 
________ 
Name 
Approved 
         
        We,            Mitchel Sayare                           , *President 
           ---------------------------------------------------- 
        and            Kathleen A. Carroll                     *Assistant Clerk, 
           ---------------------------------------------------- 
        of             ImmunoGen, Inc. 
           --------------------------------------------------------------------, 
                               (Exact name of corporation) 
 
        located at     333 Providence Highway, Norwood, MA 02062 
                  -------------------------------------------------------------, 
                      (Street address of corporation in Massachusetts) 
 
        certify that these Articles of Amendment affecting articles numbered: 
 
                                           3 
        ------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
              (Number those articles 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and/or 6 being amended) 
 
        of the Articles of Organization were duly adopted at at meeting held on 
        August 11, 1997, by vote of: 
 
        17,076,885 shares of   Common Stock    of 21,429,145 shares outstanding 
        ----------          ------------------    ---------- 
                      (type, class & series, if any) 
 
                   shares of                   of        shares outstanding, and 
        ----------          -------------------  -------- 
                      (type, class & series, if any) 
 
                   shares of                   of        shares outstanding, and 
        ----------          -------------------  -------- 
                      (type, class & series, if any) 
C    [ ] 
P    [ ] 
M    [ ] 
R.A. [ ] 
        1** being at least a majority of each type, class or series outstanding  
        and entitled to vote thereon:/or 2** 
 
        * Delete the inapplicable words      ** Delete the inapplicable clause. 
        1/ For amendments adopted pursuant to Chapter156B, Section 70. 
        2/ For amendments adopted pursuant to Chapter156B, Section 71. 
        Note: If the space provided under any article or item on this form is 
        insufficient, additions shall be set forth on one side only of separate  
        8 1/2 x 11 sheets of paper with a left margin of at least 1 inch. 
  4     Additions to more than one article may be made on a single sheet so long 
_______ as each article requiring each addition is clearly indicated. 
C. 
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To change the number of shares and the par value (if any) of any type, class or 
series of stock which the corporation is authorized do issue, fill in the 
following: 
 
The total presently authorized is: 
 
- -------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
  WITHOUT PAR VALUE STOCKS      |              WITH PAR VALUE STOCKS 
- --------------------------------|----------------------------------------------- 
  TYPE    | NUMBER OF SHARES    | TYPE      | NUMBER OF SHARES |  PAR VALUE 
- ----------|---------------------|-----------|------------------|---------------- 
Common:   |                     | Common:   |   30,000,000     |    $.01 
- ----------|---------------------|-----------|------------------|---------------- 
          |                     |           |                  | 
- ----------|---------------------|-----------|------------------|---------------- 
Preferred:|                     | Preferred:|  * 5,000,000     |    $.01 
- ----------|---------------------|-----------|------------------|---------------- 
          |                     |           |                  | 
- -------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
 
Change the total authorized to: 
 
- -------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
  WITHOUT PAR VALUE STOCKS      |              WITH PAR VALUE STOCKS 
- --------------------------------|----------------------------------------------- 
  TYPE    | NUMBER OF SHARES    | TYPE      | NUMBER OF SHARES |  PAR VALUE 
- ----------|---------------------|-----------|------------------|---------------- 
Common:   |                     | Common:   |   50,000,000     |    $.01 
- ----------|---------------------|-----------|------------------|---------------- 
          |                     |           |                  | 
- ----------|---------------------|-----------|------------------|---------------- 
Preferred:|                     | Preferred:| ** 5,000,000     |    $.01 
- ----------|---------------------|-----------|------------------|---------------- 
          |                     |           |                  | 
- -------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
                * Preferred:    Series A Convertible Preferred 2,500 Shares 
                                $0.1 par value 
                                Series B Convertible Preferred 3,000 Shares 
                                $0.1 par value 
                                Series C Convertible Preferred 3,000 Shares 
                                $0.1 par value 
                                Series D Convertible Preferred 1.000 Shares 
                                $0.1 par value 
  
                **              Series A Convertible Preferred 2,500 Shares 
                                $0.1 par value 
                                Series B Convertible Preferred 3,000 Shares 
                                $0.1 par value 
                                Series C Convertible Preferred 3,000 Shares 
                                $0.1 par value 
                                Series D Convertible Preferred 1.000 Shares 
                                $0.1 par value 
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The foregoing amendment(s) will become effective when these Articles of 
Amendment are filed in accordance with General Laws, Chapter 156B, Section 6 
unless these articles specify, in accordance with the vote adopting the 
amendment, a later effective date not more than thirty days after such filing, 
in which event the amendment will become effective on such later date. 
 
 
Later effective date: _________________________ 
 
 
 
SIGNED UNDER THE PENALTIES OF PERJURY, this 13th day of August, 1997, 
 
            /s/ Mitchel Sayare 
- ----------------------------------------------------------, *President, 
 
            /s/ Kathleen A. Carroll 
- ----------------------------------------------------------, *Assistant Clerk. 
 
 
* Delete the inapplicable words. 
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                      THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
 
 
                            ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT 
                   (GENERAL LAWS, CHAPTER 156B, SECTION 72) 
 
 
                        ============================= 
 
 
                I hereby approve the within Articles of Amendment and, 
                the filing fee in the amount of $20,000.00 having been 
                paid, said articles are deemed to have been filed with 
                me this 22nd day of August, 1997. 
 
 
                Effective date: ______________________________________ 
 
 
                         
 
                                /s/ William Francis Galvin 
                                -------------------------------------- 
                                WILLIAM FRANCIS GALVIN 
                                Secretary of the Commonwealth 
 
 
 
 
 
                        TO BE FILLED IN BY CORPORATION 
                     PHOTOCOPY OF DOCUMENT TO BE SENT TO: 
 
                     Anne T. Leland, Legal Assistant 
                     Mintz, Levin, Cohn, Ferris, Glovsky and Popeo, P.C. 
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THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER 
THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT"), OR THE SECURITIES 
OR BLUE SKY LAWS OF ANY STATE. THESE SECURITIES HAVE BEEN ACQUIRED FOR 
INVESTMENT AND NOT WITH A VIEW TO DISTRIBUTION, AND NEITHER THESE SECURITIES NOR 
ANY INTEREST OR PARTICIPATION THEREIN MAY BE SOLD, ASSIGNED, PLEDGED, 
HYPOTHECATED, ENCUMBERED OR IN ANY OTHER MANNER TRANSFERRED OR DISPOSED OF 
EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT 
OR PURSUANT TO AN AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS THEREOF 
AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES OR BLUE SKY LAWS. 
 
 
                                 IMMUNOGEN, INC. 
 
                               WARRANT CERTIFICATE 
 
                            DATED SEPTEMBER 16, 1997 
 
                        WARRANTS TO PURCHASE COMMON STOCK 
 
       IMMUNOGEN, INC., a Massachusetts corporation (the "Company"), hereby 
certifies that, for value received, Southbrook International Investments, Ltd., 
a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the British Virgin 
Islands ("Holder"), or its registered assigns, is the registered owner of 
454,545 Warrants (the "Warrants"), each of which will entitle the Holder thereof 
to purchase one share, as adjusted from time to time as provided in Section 7, 
of the Common Stock of the Company (the "Common Stock," each such share being a 
"Warrant Share" and all such shares being the "Warrant Shares") at the exercise 
price of $1.94 per share (as adjusted from time to time as provided in Section 
7, the "Exercise Price") at any time on or after September 16, 1997 (the 
"Initial Exercise Date") until and including September 16, 2002 (the "Expiration 
Date"), all subject to the following terms and conditions: 
 
       1. REGISTRATION OF WARRANTS. The Company shall register each Warrant, 
upon records to be maintained by the Company for that purpose, in the name of 
the record holder of such Warrant from time to time. The Company may deem and 
treat the registered holder of each Warrant as the absolute owner thereof for 
the purpose of any exercise thereof or any distribution to the holder thereof, 
and for all other purposes, and the Company shall not be affected by notice to 
the contrary. 
 
       2. REGISTRATION OF TRANSFERS AND EXCHANGES. 
 
       a. The Company shall register the transfer of any Warrants upon records 
       to be maintained by the Company for that purpose, upon surrender of this 
       Warrant Certificate, with the Form of Assignment attached hereto duly 
       completed and signed, to the Company at the office specified in or 
       pursuant to Section 3(c). Upon any such registration of transfer, a new 
       Warrant Certificate, in substantially the form of this Warrant 
       Certificate, evidencing the Warrants so transferred shall be issued to 
       the transferee and a new Warrant Certificate, in similar form, evidencing 
       the remaining Warrants not so transferred, if any, shall be issued to the 
       then registered holder thereof. 
 
       b. This Warrant Certificate is exchangeable, upon the surrender hereof by 
       the holder hereof at the office of the Company specified in or pursuant 
       to Section 3(c), for new Warrant Certificates, in substantially the form 
       of this Warrant Certificate, evidencing in the aggregate the right to 
       purchase the number of Warrant Shares which may then be purchased 
       hereunder, each of such new Warrant Certificates to be dated the date of 
       such exchange and to represent the right to purchase such number of 
       Warrant Shares as shall be designated by said holder hereof at the time 
       of such surrender. 
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       3. DURATION AND EXERCISE OF WARRANTS. 
 
       a. Warrants shall be exercisable by the registered holder thereof on any 
       business day before 5:00 P.M., New York time, at any time and from time 
       to time on or after the Initial Exercise Date to and including the 
       Expiration Date. At 5:00 P.M., New York time, on the Expiration Date, 
       each Warrant not exercised prior thereto shall be and become void and of 
       no value. 
 
       b. Subject to the limitations set forth in Section 3(c) and to the other 
       provisions of this Warrant Certificate, including adjustments to the 
       number of Warrant Shares issuable on the exercise of each Warrant and to 
       the Exercise Price pursuant to Section 7, the holder of each Warrant 
       shall have the right to purchase from the Company (and the Company shall 
       be obligated to issue and sell to such holder of a Warrant) at the 
       Exercise Price one fully paid Warrant Share which is non-assessable. 
 
       c. Subject to Sections 2(b), 4 and 8, upon surrender of this Warrant 
       Certificate, with the Form of Election to Purchase attached hereto duly 
       completed and signed, to the Company at its office at 148 Sidney Street, 
       Cambridge, Massachusetts, Attention: Treasurer, or at such other address 
       as the Company may specify in writing to the then registered holder of 
       the Warrants, and upon payment of the Exercise Price multiplied by the 
       number of Warrant Shares then issuable upon exercise of the Warrants 
       being exercised in lawful money of the United States of America, all as 
       specified by the holder of this Warrant Certificate in the Form of 
       Election to Purchase, the Company shall promptly issue and cause to be 
       delivered to or upon the written order of the registered holder of such 
       Warrants, and in such name or names as such registered holder may 
       designate, a certificate for the Warrant Shares issued upon such exercise 
       of such Warrants. Any person so designated to be named therein shall be 
       deemed to have become holder of record of such Warrant Shares as of the 
       Date of Exercise of such Warrants. 
 
       The "Date of Exercise" of any Warrant means the date on which the Company 
       shall have received (i) this Warrant Certificate, with the Form of 
       Election to Purchase attached hereto appropriately completed and duly 
       signed, and (ii) payment of the Exercise Price for such Warrant. 
 
       d. The Warrants evidenced by this Warrant Certificate shall be 
       exercisable, either as an entirety or, from time to time, for part of the 
       number of Warrants evidenced by this Warrant Certificate. If less than 
       all of the Warrants evidenced by this Warrant Certificate are exercised 
       at any time, the Company shall issue, at its expense, a new Warrant 
       Certificate, in substantially the form of this Warrant Certificate, for 
       the remaining number of Warrants evidenced by this Warrant Certificate. 
 
       4. PAYMENT OF TAXES. The Company will pay all documentary stamp taxes 
attributable to the issuance of Warrant Shares upon the exercise of the Warrants 
represented by this Certificate; provided, however, that the Company shall not 
be required to pay any tax or taxes which may be payable in respect of any 
transfer involved in the registration of any certificates for Warrant Shares in 
a name other than that of the Holder, and the Company shall not be required to 
issue or deliver the certificates for Warrant Shares unless or until the person 
or persons requesting the issuance thereof shall have paid to the Company the 
amount of such tax or shall have established to the satisfaction of the Company 
that such tax has been paid. The holder shall be responsible for all other tax 
liability that may arise as a result of holding or transferring the Warrants 
represented by this Certificate or receiving the Warrant Shares under this 
Warrant Certificate. 
 
       5. REPLACEMENT OF WARRANT. If this Warrant is mutilated, lost, stolen or 
destroyed, the Company may in its discretion issue in exchange and substitution 
for and upon cancellation hereof, or in lieu of and substitution for this 
Warrant, a new Warrant of like tenor, but only upon receipt of evidence 
reasonably satisfactory to the Company of such loss, theft or destruction and 
indemnity, if requested, satisfactory to it. Applicants for a substitute Warrant 
certificate also shall comply with such other reasonable regulations and pay 
such other reasonable charges as the Company may prescribe. 
 
       6. RESERVATION OF WARRANT SHARES. The Company will at all times reserve 
and keep available, free from preemptive rights, out of the aggregate of its 
authorized but unissued Common Stock or its authorized and  
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issued Common Stock held in its treasury, for the purpose of enabling it to 
satisfy any obligation to issue Warrant Shares upon exercise of the Warrants, 
the maximum number of Warrant Shares (as adjusted from time to time pursuant to 
Section 7 hereof) which may then be deliverable upon the exercise of this 
Warrant and all other outstanding warrants issued and sold pursuant to the 
Purchase Agreement. 
 
       7. ADJUSTMENT TO THE NUMBER OF WARRANT SHARES ISSUABLE. The number of 
Warrant Shares issuable upon the exercise of this Warrant is subject to 
adjustment from time to time as set forth in this Section 7. Upon each such 
adjustment of the Exercise Price pursuant to this Section 7, the Holder shall 
thereafter prior to the Expiration Date be entitled to purchase, at the Exercise 
Price resulting from such adjustment, the number of Warrant Shares obtained by 
multiplying the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to such adjustment by 
the number of Warrant Shares issuable upon exercise of this Warrant immediately 
prior to such adjustment and dividing the product thereof by the Exercise Price 
resulting from such adjustment. In the event the Company and the holders of 
Warrants disagree as to any adjustment to the Exercise Price hereunder, an 
Appraiser selected by the holders of a majority in interest of the Warrants 
shall give its opinion as to the adjustment, if any (not inconsistent with the 
standards established in this Section 7), of the Exercise Price; PROVIDED, 
HOWEVER, that the Company, after receipt of the determination by such Appraiser, 
shall have the right to promptly select an additional Appraiser, in which case 
the adjustment shall be equal to the average of the adjustments recommended by 
each such Appraiser. The Board of Directors shall make the adjustment 
recommended forthwith upon the receipt of such opinion or opinions; PROVIDED, 
however, that no such adjustment of the Exercise Price shall be made which in 
the opinion of the Appraiser(s) giving the aforesaid opinion or opinions would 
result in an increase of the Exercise Price to more than the Exercise Price then 
in effect. 
 
       a. If the Company, at any time while this Warrant is outstanding, (i) 
       shall pay a stock dividend or otherwise make a distribution or 
       distributions on shares of its Common Stock payable in shares of its 
       capital stock (whether payable in shares of its Common Stock or of 
       capital stock of any class), (ii) subdivide outstanding shares of Common 
       Stock into a larger number of shares, (iii) combine outstanding shares of 
       Common Stock into a smaller number of shares, or (iv) issue by 
       reclassification of shares of Common Stock any shares of capital stock of 
       the Company, the Exercise Price shall be multiplied by a fraction of 
       which the numerator shall be the number of shares of Common Stock 
       outstanding before such event and of which the denominator shall be the 
       number of shares of Common Stock outstanding after such event. Any 
       adjustment made pursuant to this Section 7(a) shall become effective 
       immediately after the record date for the determination of stockholders 
       entitled to receive such dividend or distribution and shall become 
       effective immediately after the effective date in the case of a 
       subdivision, combination or reclassification. 
 
       b. If the Company, at any time while this Warrant is outstanding, shall 
       distribute to all holders of Common Stock (and not to the Holder) 
       evidences of its indebtedness or assets or rights or warrants to 
       subscribe for or purchase any security (excluding those referred to in 
       Section 7(d) hereof), then in each such case the Exercise Price for which 
       the Warrant Shares shall be purchased shall be determined by multiplying 
       the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to the record date fixed 
       for determination of stockholders entitled to receive such distribution 
       by a fraction of which the denominator shall be the Exercise Price 
       determined as of the record date mentioned above, and of which the 
       numerator shall be the Exercise Price on such record date less the then 
       fair market value at such record date of the portion of such assets or 
       evidence of indebtedness so distributed applicable to one outstanding 
       share of Common Stock as determined by the Board of Directors of the 
       Company (the "BOARD OF DIRECTORS") in good faith; provided, however, that 
       in the event of a distribution exceeding 10% of the net assets of the 
       Company, such fair market value shall be determined by a nationally 
       recognized or major regional investment banking firm or firm of 
       independent certified public accountants of recognized standing (which 
       may be the firm that regularly examines the financial statements of the 
       Company) (an "APPRAISER") selected in good faith by the holders of a 
       majority of the Warrants that are then outstanding; and further provided, 
       however, that the Company, after receipt of the determination by such 
       Appraiser shall have the right to select an additional Appraiser, in 
       which case the fair market value shall be equal to the average of the 
       determinations by each such Appraiser. In either case the adjustments 
       shall be described in a statement provided to the Holder and all other 
       holders of Warrants of the portion of assets or evidences of indebtedness 
       so distributed or such subscription rights applicable to one share of 
       Common Stock. Such adjustment shall be made whenever  
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       any such distribution is made and shall become effective immediately 
       after the record date mentioned above. 
 
       c. In case of any reclassification of the Common Stock, any consolidation 
       or merger of the Company with or into another person, the sale or 
       transfer of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company or any 
       compulsory share exchange pursuant to which the Common Stock is converted 
       into other securities, cash or property, then the Holder shall have the 
       right thereafter to exercise this Warrant only into the shares of stock 
       and other securities and property receivable upon or deemed to be held by 
       holders of Common Stock following such reclassification, consolidation, 
       merger, sale, transfer or share exchange, and the Holder shall be 
       entitled upon such event to receive such amount of securities or property 
       as the shares of the Common Stock into which this Warrant could have been 
       converted immediately prior to such reclassification, consolidation, 
       merger, sale, transfer or share exchange would have been entitled. The 
       terms of any such consolidation, merger, sale, transfer or share exchange 
       shall include such terms so as to continue to give to the Holder the 
       right to receive the securities or property set forth in this SECTION 
       7(c) upon any exercise following such consolidation, merger, sale, 
       transfer or share exchange. This provision shall similarly apply to 
       successive reclassifications, consolidations, mergers, sales, transfers 
       or share exchanges. 
 
       d. If and whenever after the date hereof, the Company shall issue or sell 
       any shares of Common Stock for a consideration per share less than the 
       Exercise Price then in effect, then, forthwith upon such issue or sale, 
       the Exercise Price shall be reduced to the price (calculated to the 
       nearest cent) determined by dividing (i) an amount equal to the sum of 
       (A) the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately prior to 
       such issue or sale multiplied by the Exercise Price, and (B) the 
       consideration, if any, received by the Company upon such issue or sale by 
       (ii) the total number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately 
       after such issue or sale. 
 
       e. For the purposes of subsection (b) of this section, the following 
       clauses shall also be applicable: 
 
              i. ISSUANCE OF RIGHTS OR OPTIONS. In case at any time after the 
              date hereof the Company shall grant (whether directly or by 
              assumption in a merger or otherwise) any rights (other than the 
              Warrants) to subscribe for or to purchase, or any options for the 
              purchase of, Common Stock or any stock or securities convertible 
              into or exchangeable for Common Stock (such convertible or 
              exchangeable stock or securities being herein called "Convertible 
              Securities") whether or not such rights or options or the right to 
              convert or exchange any such Convertible Securities are 
              immediately exercisable, and the price per share for which Common 
              Stock is issuable upon the exercise of such rights or options or 
              upon conversion or exchange of such Convertible Securities 
              (determined as provided below) shall be less than the Exercise 
              Price then in effect, then the total maximum number of shares of 
              Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of such rights or options 
              or upon conversion or exchange of the total maximum amount of such 
              Convertible Securities issuable upon the exercise of such rights 
              or options shall (as of the date of granting of such rights or 
              options) be deemed to be outstanding and to have been issued for 
              such price per share. Except as provided in clause (iii) of this 
              subsection, no further adjustments of any Exercise Price shall be 
              made upon the actual issue of such Common Stock or of such 
              Convertible Securities upon exercise of such rights or options or 
              upon the actual issue of such Common Stock upon conversion or 
              exchange of such Convertible Securities. For the purposes of this 
              clause (i), the price per share for which Common Stock is issuable 
              upon the exercise of any such rights or options or upon conversion 
              or exchange of any such Convertible Securities shall be determined 
              by dividing (A) the total amount, if any, received or receivable 
              by the Company as consideration for the granting of such rights or 
              options, plus the minimum aggregate amount of additional 
              consideration payable to the Company upon the exercise of all such 
              rights or options, plus, in the case of such rights or options 
              which relate to Convertible Securities, the minimum aggregate 
              amount of additional consideration, if any, payable upon the issue 
              or sale of such Convertible Securities and upon the conversion of 
              exchange thereof, by (B) the total maximum number of shares of 
              Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of such rights or options 
              or upon the  
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              conversion or exchange of all such Convertible Securities issuable 
              upon the exercise of such rights or options. 
 
              ii. ISSUANCE OF CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES. In case the Company shall 
              issue (whether directly or by assumption in a merger or otherwise) 
              or sell any Convertible Securities, whether or not the rights to 
              exchange or convert thereunder are immediately exercisable, and 
              the price per share for which the Common Stock issuable upon 
              conversion or exchange of such Convertible Securities (determined 
              as provided below) shall be less than the Exercise Price then in 
              effect, then the total maximum number of shares of Common Stock 
              issuable upon conversion or exchange of all such Convertible 
              Securities shall (as of the date of the issue or sale of such 
              Convertible Securities) be deemed to be outstanding and to have 
              been issued for such price per share. Except as provided in clause 
              (iii) of this subsection no further adjustments of any Exercise 
              Price shall be made upon the actual issue of such Common Stock 
              upon conversion or exchange of such Convertible Securities. If any 
              such issue or sale of such Convertible Securities is made upon 
              exercise of any rights to subscribe for or to purchase or any 
              option to purchase any such Convertible Securities for which 
              adjustments of any Exercise Price have been or are to be made 
              pursuant to other provisions of this subsection (e), no further 
              adjustment of any Exercise Price shall be made by reason of such 
              issue or sale. For the purposes of this clause (ii), the price per 
              share for which Common Stock is issuable upon conversion or 
              exchange of Convertible Securities shall be determined by dividing 
              (A) the total amount received or receivable by the Company as 
              consideration for the issue or sale of such Convertible 
              Securities, plus the minimum aggregate amount of additional 
              consideration, if any, payable to the Company upon the conversion 
              or exchange thereof, by (B) the total maximum number of shares of 
              Common Stock issuable upon the conversion or exchange of all such 
              Convertible Securities. 
 
              iii. CHANGE IN OPTION PRICE OR CONVERSION RATE. If the purchase 
              price provided for in any rights or options referred to in clause 
              (i) above, or the additional consideration, if any, payable upon 
              the conversion or exchange of Convertible Securities referred to 
              in clause (i) or (ii) above, or the rate at which any Convertible 
              Securities referred to in clause (i) or (ii) above are convertible 
              into or exchangeable for Common Stock, shall change (other than 
              under or by reason of provisions designed to protect against 
              dilution), then the Exercise Price in effect at the time of such 
              event shall forthwith be readjusted to the Exercise Price which 
              would have been in effect at such time had such rights, options or 
              Convertible Securities still outstanding provided for such changed 
              purchase price, additional consideration or conversion rate, as 
              the case may be, at the time initially granted, issued or sold; 
              and on the expiration of any such option or right or the 
              termination of any such right to convert or exchange such 
              Convertible Securities, the Exercise Price then in effect 
              hereunder shall forthwith be increased to the Exercise Price which 
              would have been in effect at the time of such expiration or 
              termination had such right, option or Convertible Security, to the 
              extent outstanding immediately prior to such expiration or 
              termination, never been issued, and the Common Stock issuable 
              thereunder shall no longer be deemed to be outstanding. If the 
              purchase price provided for in any such right or option referred 
              to in clause (i) above or the rate at which any Convertible 
              Securities referred to in clause (i) or (ii) above are convertible 
              into or exchangeable for Common Stock, shall decrease at any time 
              under or by reason of provisions with respect thereto designed to 
              protect against dilution, then in case of the delivery of Common 
              Stock upon the exercise of any such right or option or upon 
              conversion or exchange of any such Convertible Security, the 
              Exercise Price then in effect hereunder shall forthwith be 
              adjusted to such respective amount as would have obtained had such 
              right, option or Convertible Security never been issued as to such 
              Common Stock and had adjustments been made upon the issuance of 
              the shares of Common Stock delivered as aforesaid, but only if as 
              a result of such adjustment the Exercise Price then in effect 
              hereunder is thereby decreased. 
 
              iv. CONSIDERATION FOR STOCK. In case any shares of Common Stock or 
              Convertible Securities or any rights or options to purchase any 
              such Common Stock or Convertible Securities shall be issued or 
              sold for cash, the consideration received therefor shall be deemed 
              to be the amount received by  
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              the Company therefor, without deduction therefrom of any expenses 
              incurred or any underwriting commissions or concessions paid or 
              allowed by the Company in connection therewith. In case any shares 
              of Common Stock or Convertible Securities or any rights or options 
              to purchase any such Common Stock or Convertible Securities shall 
              be issued or sold for a consideration other than cash, the amount 
              of the consideration other than cash received by the Company shall 
              be deemed to be the fair value of such consideration as 
              determined, in good faith and in the exercise of reasonable 
              business judgment, by the Board of Directors, without deduction of 
              any expenses incurred or any underwriting commissions or 
              concessions paid or allowed by the Company in connection 
              therewith. In case any shares of Common Stock or Convertible 
              Securities or any rights or options to purchase such shares of 
              Common Stock or Convertible Securities shall be issued in 
              connection with any merger or consolidation in which the Company 
              is the surviving corporation (other than any consolidation or 
              merger in which the previously outstanding shares of Common Stock 
              of the Company shall be changed into or exchanged for the stock or 
              other securities of another corporation), the amount of 
              consideration therefor shall be deemed to be the fair value as 
              determined reasonably and in good faith by the Board of Directors 
              of such portion of the assets and business of the non-surviving 
              corporation as such Board may determine to be attributable to such 
              shares of Common Stock, Convertible Securities, rights or options, 
              as the case may be. In the event of any consolidation or merger of 
              the Company in which the Company is not the surviving corporation 
              or in which the previously outstanding shares of Common Stock of 
              the Company shall be changed into or exchanged for the stock or 
              other securities of another corporation or in the event of any 
              sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company for 
              stock or other securities of any corporation, the Company shall be 
              deemed to have issued a number of shares of its Common Stock for 
              stock or securities or other property of the other corporation 
              computed on the basis of the actual exchange ratio on which the 
              transaction was predicated and for a consideration equal to the 
              fair market value on the date of such transaction of all such 
              stock or securities or other property of the other corporation, 
              and if any such calculation results in adjustment of the Exercise 
              Price, the determination of the number of shares of Common Stock 
              issuable upon exercise of the Warrants immediately prior to such 
              merger, consolidation of sale, for purposes of Section 7(f), shall 
              be made after giving effect to such adjustment of the Exercise 
              Price. 
 
              v. RECORD DATE. In case the Company shall take a record of the 
              holders of its Common Stock for the purpose of entitling them (A) 
              to receive a dividend or other distribution payable in Common 
              Stock or in Convertible Securities, or (B) to subscribe for or 
              purchase Common Stock or Convertible Securities, then such record 
              date shall be deemed to be the date of the issue or sale of the 
              shares of Common Stock deemed to have been issued or sold upon the 
              declaration of such dividend or the making of such other 
              distribution or the date of the granting of such right of 
              subscription or purchase, as the case may be. 
 
              vi. TREASURY SHARES. The number of shares of Common Stock 
              outstanding at any given time shall not include shares owned or 
              held by or for the account of the Company, and the disposition of 
              any such shares shall be considered an issue or sale of Common 
              Stock for the purposes of this subsection (e). 
 
              vii. CERTAIN ISSUES EXCEPTED. Anything herein to the contrary 
              notwithstanding, the Company shall not be required to make any 
              adjustment of any Exercise Price in case of the issuance of shares 
              Series B Preferred Stock, Series C Preferred Stock, Series D 
              Preferred Stock, Series E Preferred Stock or Series F Preferred 
              Stock pursuant to the Purchase Agreement. 
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       f. If: 
 
              i. the Company shall declare a dividend (or any other 
              distribution) on its Common Stock; or 
 
              ii. the Company shall declare a special nonrecurring cash dividend 
              on or a redemption of its Common Stock; or 
 
              iii. the Company shall authorize the granting to all holders of 
              the Common Stock rights or warrants to subscribe for or purchase 
              any shares of capital stock of any class or of any rights, or 
 
              iv. the approval of any stockholders of the Company shall be 
              required in connection with any reclassification of the Common 
              Stock of the Company (other than a subdivision or combination of 
              the outstanding shares of Common Stock), any consolidation or 
              merger to which the Company is a party, any sale or transfer of 
              all or substantially all of the assets of the Company, or any 
              compulsory share exchange whereby the Common Stock is converted 
              into other securities, cash or property, or 
 
              v. the Company shall authorize the voluntary or involuntary 
              dissolution, liquidation or winding-up of the affairs of the 
              Company; 
 
       then the Company shall cause to be filed at each office or agency 
       maintained for the purpose of exercise of this Warrant, and shall cause 
       to be mailed to the Holder in accordance with SECTION 10 hereof, at least 
       thirty (30) days prior to the applicable record or effective date 
       hereinafter specified, a notice stating (x) the date on which a record is 
       to be taken for the purpose of such dividend, distribution, redemption, 
       rights or warrants, or if a record is not to be taken, the date as of 
       which the holders of Common Stock of record to be entitled to such 
       dividend, distributions, redemption, rights or warrants are to be 
       determined, or (y) the date on which such reclassification, 
       consolidation, merger, sale, transfer, share exchange, dissolution, 
       liquidation or winding-up is expected to become effective, and the date 
       as of which it is expected that holders of Common Stock of record shall 
       be entitled to exchange their shares of Common Stock for securities or 
       other property deliverable upon such reclassification, consolidation, 
       merger, sale, transfer, share exchange, dissolution, liquidation or 
       winding-up; provided, however, that the failure to mail such notice or 
       any defect therein or in the mailing thereof shall not affect the 
       validity of the corporate action required to be specified in such notice. 
 
       g. In any case in which this SECTION 7 shall require that an adjustment 
       be made effective as of the record date for a specified event, the 
       Company may elect to defer until occurrence of such event (A) issuing to 
       the Holder, if this Warrant is exercised after such record date, the 
       Warrant Shares and other capital stock of the Company, if any, issuable 
       upon such exercise over and above the Warrant Shares and other capital 
       stock of the Company, if any, issuable upon such exercise on the basis of 
       the Exercise Price prior to adjustment and (B) paying to the Holder any 
       amount in cash in lieu of a fractional share pursuant to Section 8 
       hereof, provided, however, that the Company shall deliver to the Holder a 
       due bill or other appropriate instrument evidencing the Holder's right to 
       receive such additional Warrant Shares, other capital stock and/or cash 
       upon the occurrence of the event requiring such adjustment. 
 
       h. Any determination that the Company or the Board of Directors must make 
       pursuant to this SECTION 7 shall be conclusive if made in good faith. 
 
       8. FRACTIONAL SHARES. The Company shall not be required to issue 
fractional Warrant Shares on the exercise of this Warrant. The number of full 
Warrant Shares which shall be issuable upon the exercise of this Warrant shall 
be computed on the basis of the aggregate number of Warrant Shares purchasable 
on exercise of this Warrant so presented. If any fraction of a Warrant Share 
would, except for the provisions of this SECTION 8, be issuable on the exercise 
of this Warrant, the Company shall pay an amount in cash equal to the Exercise 
Price multiplied by such fraction. 
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       9. WARRANT AGENT. 
 
       a. The Company shall serve as warrant agent under this Warrant. Upon 
       thirty (30) days' notice to the Holder, the Company and the Holder may 
       appoint a new warrant agent. Such new warrant agent shall be a 
       corporation doing business under the laws of the United States or any 
       state thereof, in good standing and having a combined capital and surplus 
       of not less than U.S. $50,000,000. The combined capital and surplus of 
       any such new warrant agent shall be deemed to be the combined capital and 
       surplus as set forth in the most recent annual report of its condition 
       published by such warrant agent prior to its appointment; provided that 
       such reports are published at least annually pursuant to law or to the 
       requirements of a federal or state supervising or examining authority. 
       After acceptance in writing of such appointment by the new warrant agent, 
       it shall be vested with the same powers, rights, duties and 
       responsibilities as if it had been originally named herein as the warrant 
       agent, without any further assurance, conveyance, act or deed, but if for 
       any reason it shall be necessary or expedient to execute and deliver any 
       further assurance, conveyance, act or deed the same shall be done at the 
       expense of the Company and shall be legally and validly executed and 
       delivered by the Company. 
 
       b. Any corporation into which the Company or any new warrant agent may be 
       merged or any corporation resulting from any consolidation to which the 
       Company or any new warrant agent shall be a party or any corporation to 
       which the Company or any new warrant agent transfers substantially all of 
       its corporate trust or shareholders services business shall be a 
       successor warrant agent under this Warrant without any further act; 
       provided that such corporation (i) would be eligible for appointment as 
       successor to the warrant agent under the provisions of this Section 9 or 
       (ii) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the warrant agent. Any such 
       successor warrant agent shall promptly cause notice of its succession as 
       warrant agent to be mailed (by first class mail, postage prepaid) to the 
       Holder at the Holder's last address as shown on the register maintained 
       by the warrant agent pursuant to this Warrant. 
 
       10. NOTICES. All notices or other communications hereunder shall be 
given, and shall be deemed duly given and received if given, by facsimile and by 
mail, postage prepaid: (1) if to the Company, addressed as follows: ImmunoGen. 
Inc., 333 Providence Highway, Norwood, Massachusetts 02062, Attention: 
Treasurer, or to facsimile no. (617) 255-9679; or (ii) if to the Holder, 
addressed to the Holder at the facsimile telephone number and address of the 
Holder appearing on the Warrant Register or such other address or facsimile 
number as the Holder may provide to the Company in accordance with this SECTION 
10. Any such notice shall be deemed given and effective upon the earliest to 
occur of (i) receipt of such facsimile at the facsimile telephone number 
specified in this Section 10, (ii) five (5) Business Days after deposit in the 
United States mails or (iii) upon actual receipt by the party to whom such 
notice is required to be given. 
 
       11. MISCELLANEOUS. 
 
       a. This Warrant shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the 
       parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 
 
       b. Nothing in this Warrant shall be construed to give to any person or 
       corporation other than the Company, the Holder and any registered holder 
       of Warrant Shares any legal or equitable right, remedy or cause under 
       this Warrant; this Warrant shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of 
       the Company, the Holder and any other registered holder of Warrant 
       Shares. 
 
       c. This Warrant shall be governed by and construed and enforced in 
       accordance with the internal laws of the State of New York without regard 
       to the principles of conflicts of law thereof. 
 
       d. The headings herein are for convenience only, do not constitute a part 
       of this Warrant and shall not be deemed to limit or affect any of the 
       provisions hereof. 
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       e. In case any one or more of the provisions of this Warrant shall be 
       invalid or unenforceable in any respect, the validity and enforceability 
       of the remaining terms and provisions of this Warrant shall not in any 
       way be affected or impaired thereby and the parties will attempt in good 
       faith to agree upon a valid and enforceable provision which shall be a 
       commercially reasonable substitute therefor, and upon so agreeing, shall 
       incorporate such substitute provision in this Warrant. 
 
       IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to be duly 
executed by its authorized officer as of the date first indicated above. 
 
 
                                     IMMUNOGEN, INC., in its corporate capacity 
                                     and in its capacity as the Warrant Agent 
                                     hereunder 
 
 
                                     By: /s/ Kathleen A.Carroll 
                                         --------------------------------------  
                                     Name: Kathleen A. Carroll 
                                     Title: Vice President, Finance and  
                                            Administration 
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FORM OF ELECTION TO PURCHASE 
 
(To Be Executed by the Holder if the Holder Desires to Exercise Warrants 
Evidenced by the Foregoing Warrant Certificate) 
 
To ImmunoGen, Inc.: 
 
The undersigned hereby irrevocably elects to exercise ________________ Warrants 
evidenced by the foregoing Warrant Certificate for, and to purchase thereunder, 
__________ full shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of said Warrants 
and delivery of $____________ in cash and any applicable taxes payable by the 
undersigned pursuant to such Warrant Certificate. 
 
The undersigned requests that certificates for such shares be issued in the name 
of 
 
 
PLEASE INSERT SOCIAL SECURITY 
OR TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER 
 
(PLEASE PRINT NAME AND ADDRESS) 
 
 
 
 
 
If said number of Warrants shall not be all the Warrants evidenced by the 
foregoing Warrant Certificate, the undersigned requests that a new Warrant 
Certificate evidencing the Warrants not so exercised be issued in the name of 
and delivered to: 
 
(Please print name and address) 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated: _____________,___                Name of Holder: 
 
                                        (Print)________________________________ 
 
                                        (By:)__________________________________ 
                                        (Title:)_______________________________ 
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FORM OF ASSIGNMENT 
 
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, ____________________________ hereby sells, assigns, and 
transfers to each assignee set forth below all of the rights of the undersigned 
in and to the number of Warrants (as defined in and evidenced by the foregoing 
Warrant Certificate) set opposite the name of such assignee below and in and to 
the foregoing Warrant Certificate with respect to said Warrants and the shares 
of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of said Warrants: 
 
 
Name of Assignee                Address                      Number of Warrants 
- ----------------                -------                      ------------------ 
 
 
 
If the total of said Warrants shall not be all the Warrants evidenced by the 
foregoing Warrant Certificate, the undersigned requests that a new Warrant 
Certificate evidencing the Warrants not so assigned be issued in the name of and 
delivered to the undersigned. 
 
 
 
Dated: _____________,___                Name of Holder: 
 
                                        (Print)________________________________ 
 
                                        (By:)__________________________________ 
                                        (Title:)_______________________________ 
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                                                                    Exhibit 10.4 
 
 
 
THIS WARRANT AND THE SHARES ISSUABLE UPON THE EXERCISE OF THIS WARRANT HAVE NOT 
BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED. EXCEPT AS 
OTHERWISE SET FORTH HEREIN OR IN A SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT DATED AS OF 
MARCH 15, 1996, NEITHER THIS WARRANT NOR ANY OF SUCH SHARES MAY BE SOLD, OFFERED 
FOR SALE, ASSIGNED, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF IN THE ABSENCE OF 
REGISTRATION UNDER SUCH ACT OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT 
REQUIRED UNDER SUCH ACT OR UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 UNDER SUCH ACT. ANY 
SUCH SALE, ASSIGNMENT OR TRANSFER MUST ALSO COMPLY WITH APPLICABLE STATE 
SECURITIES LAWS. 
 
Right to Purchase 118,371 Shares of Common Stock, par value $.01 per share 
 
                                 IMMUNOGEN, INC. 
                             STOCK PURCHASE WARRANT 
 
     THIS CERTIFIES THAT, for value received, Capital Ventures International or 
its registered assigns, is entitled to purchase from IMMUNOGEN, INC., a 
Massachusetts corporation (the "Company"), at any time or from time to time 
during the period specified in Paragraph 2 hereof, one hundred eighteen 
thousand, three hundred seventy-one (118,371) fully paid and nonassessable 
shares of the Company's Common Stock, par value $.01 per share (the "Common 
Stock"), at an exercise price of $4.00 per share (the "Exercise Price"). The 
term "Warrant Shares", as used herein, refers to the shares of Common Stock 
purchasable hereunder. The Warrant Shares and the Exercise Price are subject to 
adjustment as provided in Paragraph 4 hereof. The term Warrants means this 
Warrant and the other warrants of the Company issued upon conversion of the 
Convertible Preferred Stock issued pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreement 
(as hereinafter defined), and as amended by a Letter Agreement (the "Letter 
Agreement") dated June 6, 1996. 
 
     This Warrant is subject to the following terms, provisions, and conditions: 
 
     1. Manner of Exercise; Issuance of Certificates; Payment for Shares. 
Subject to the provisions hereof, this Warrant may be exercised by the holder 
hereof, in whole or in part, by the surrender of this Warrant, together with a 
completed exercise agreement in the form attached hereto (the "Exercise 
Agreement"), to the Company during normal business hours on any business day at 
the Company's principal executive offices (or such other office or agency of the 
Company as it may designate by notice to the holder hereof), and upon (i) 
payment to the Company in cash, by certified or official bank check or by wire 
transfer for the account of the Company of the Exercise Price for the Warrant 
Shares specified in the Exercise Agreement or (ii) if the resale of the Warrant 
Shares by the holder is not then registered pursuant to an effective 
registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the 
"Securities Act"), delivery to the Company of a written notice of an election to 
effect a "Cashless Exercise" (as defined in Section 11(c) below) for the Warrant 
Shares specified in the Exercise Agreement. The Warrant Shares so purchased 
shall be deemed to be issued to the holder hereof or such holder's designee, as 
the record owner of such shares, as of the close of business on the date on 
which this Warrant shall have been surrendered, the completed Exercise Agreement 
shall have been delivered, and payment shall have been made for such shares as 
set forth above. Certificates for the Warrant Shares so purchased, representing 
the aggregate number of shares specified in the Exercise Agreement, shall be 
delivered to the holder hereof within a reasonable time, not exceeding three (3) 
business days, after this Warrant shall have been so exercised. The certificates 
so delivered shall be in such denominations as may be requested by the holder 
hereof and shall be registered in the name of such holder or such other name as 
shall be designated by such  
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holder. If this Warrant shall have been exercised only in part, then, unless 
this Warrant has expired, the Company shall, at its expense, at the time of 
delivery of such certificates, deliver to the holder a new Warrant representing 
the number of shares with respect to which this Warrant shall not then have been 
exercised. 
 
     Notwithstanding anything in this Warrant to the contrary, in no event shall 
the Holder of this Warrant be entitled to exercise a number of Warrants (or 
portions thereof) in excess of the number of Warrants (or portions thereof) upon 
exercise of which the sum of (i) the number of shares of Common Stock 
beneficially owned by the Holder and its affiliates (other than shares of Common 
Stock which may be deemed beneficially owned through the ownership of the 
unexercised Warrants and portion of the unconverted Debentures (as defined 
below)) and (ii) the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of 
the Warrants (or portions thereof) with respect to which the determination 
described herein is being made, would result in beneficial ownership by the 
Holder and its affiliates of more than 9.9% of the outstanding shares of Common 
Stock. For purposes of the immediately preceding sentence, beneficial ownership 
shall be determined in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, as amended, and Regulation 13D-G thereunder, except as otherwise 
provided in clause (i) thereof. 
 
     2. Period of Exercise. This Warrant is exercisable at any time or from time 
to time on or after August 20, 1997 and before 5:00 p.m., New York City time on 
August 20, 2002 (the "Exercise Period"). 
 
     3. Certain Agreements of the Company. The Company hereby covenants and 
agrees as follows: 
 
        (a) Shares to be Fully Paid. All Warrant Shares will, upon issuance in 
accordance with the terms of this Warrant, be validly issued, fully paid, and 
nonassessable and free from all taxes, liens, and charges with respect to the 
issue thereof. 
 
        (b) Reservation of Shares. During the Exercise Period, the Company shall 
at all times have authorized, and reserved for the purpose of issuance upon 
exercise of this Warrant, a sufficient number of shares of Common Stock to 
provide for the exercise of this Warrant. 
 
        (c) Listing. The Company shall promptly secure the listing of the shares 
of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrant upon each national 
securities exchange or automated quotation system, if any, upon which shares of 
Common Stock are then listed (subject to official notice of issuance upon 
exercise of this Warrant) and shall maintain, so long as any other shares of 
Common Stock shall be so listed, such listing of all shares of Common Stock from 
time to time issuable upon the exercise of this Warrant; and the Company shall 
so list on each national securities exchange or automated quotation system, as 
the case may be, and shall maintain such listing of, any other shares of capital 
stock of the Company issuable upon the exercise of this Warrant if and so long 
as any shares of the same class shall be listed on such national securities 
exchange or automated quotation system. 
 
        (d) Certain Actions Prohibited. The Company will not, by amendment of 
its charter or through any reorganization, transfer of assets, consolidation, 
merger, dissolution, issue or sale of securities, or any other voluntary action, 
avoid or seek to avoid the observance or performance of any of the terms to be 
observed or performed by it hereunder, but will at all times in good faith 
assist in the carrying out of all the provisions of this Warrant and in the 
taking of all such action as may reasonably be requested by the holder of this 
Warrant in order to protect the exercise privilege of the holder of this Warrant 
against dilution or other impairment, consistent with  
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the tenor and purpose of this Warrant. Without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, the Company (i) will not increase the par value of any shares of 
Common Stock receivable upon the exercise of this Warrant above the Exercise 
Price then in effect, and (ii) will take all such actions as may be necessary or 
appropriate in order that the Company may validly and legally issue fully paid 
and nonassessable shares of Common Stock upon the exercise of this Warrant. 
 
        (e) Successors and Assigns. This Warrant will be binding upon any entity 
succeeding to the Company by merger, consolidation, or acquisition of all or 
substantially all the Company's assets. 
 
     4. Antidilution Provisions. During the Exercise Period, the Exercise 
Price and the number of Warrant Shares shall be subject to adjustment from 
time to time as provided in this Paragraph 4. 
 
     In the event that any adjustment of the Exercise Price as required herein 
results in a fraction of a cent, such Exercise Price shall be rounded up to the 
nearest cent. 
 
        (a) Adjustment of Exercise Price and Number of Shares upon Issuance of 
Common Stock. Except as otherwise provided in Paragraphs 4(c) and 4(e) hereof, 
if and whenever on or after the date of issuance of this Warrant, the Company 
issues or sells, or in accordance with Paragraph 4(b) hereof is deemed to have 
issued or sold, any shares of Common Stock for no consideration or for a 
consideration per share (before deduction of reasonable expenses or commissions 
or underwriting discounts or allowances in connection therewith) less than the 
Market Price (as hereinafter defined) on the date of issuance (a "Dilutive 
Issuance"), then immediately upon the Dilutive Issuance, the Exercise Price will 
be reduced to a price determined by multiplying the Exercise Price in effect 
immediately prior to the Dilutive Issuance by a fraction, (i) the numerator of 
which is an amount equal to the sum of (x) the number of shares of Common Stock 
Deemed Outstanding (as hereinafter defined) immediately prior to the Dilutive 
Issuance, plus (y) the aggregate consideration, calculated as set forth in 
Section 4(b) hereof, received by the Company upon such Dilutive Issuance, 
divided by the Market Price in effect immediately prior to the Dilutive 
Issuance, and (ii) the denominator of which is the total number of shares of 
Common Stock Deemed Outstanding immediately after the Dilutive Issuance. 
 
        (b) Effect on Exercise Price of Certain Events. For purposes of 
determining the adjusted Exercise Price under Paragraph 4(a) hereof, the 
following will be applicable: 
 
            (i) Issuance of Rights or Options. If the Company in any manner 
issues or grants any warrants, rights or options, whether or not immediately 
exercisable, to subscribe for or to purchase Common Stock or other securities 
convertible into or exchangeable for Common Stock ("Convertible Securities") 
(such warrants, rights and options to purchase Common Stock or Convertible 
Securities are hereinafter referred to as "Options") and the price per share for 
which Common Stock is issuable upon the exercise of such Options is less than 
the Market Price on the date of issuance, then the maximum total number of 
shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of all such Options will, as 
of the date of the issuance or grant of such Options, be deemed to be 
outstanding and to have been issued and sold by the Company for such price per 
share. For purposes of the preceding sentence, the "price per share for which 
Common Stock is issuable upon the exercise of such Options" is determined by 
dividing (i) the total amount, if any, received or receivable by the Company as 
consideration for the issuance or granting of all such Options, plus the minimum 
aggregate amount of additional consideration, if any, payable to the Company 
upon the exercise of all such Options, plus, in the case of  
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Convertible Securities issuable upon the exercise of such Options, the minimum 
aggregate amount of additional consideration payable upon the conversion or 
exchange thereof at the time such Convertible Securities first become 
convertible or exchangeable, by (ii) the maximum total number of shares of 
Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of all such Options (assuming full 
conversion of Convertible Securities, if applicable). No further adjustment to 
the Exercise Price will be made upon the actual issuance of such Common Stock 
upon the exercise of such Options or upon the conversion or exchange of 
Convertible Securities issuable upon exercise of such Options. 
 
            (ii) Issuance of Convertible Securities. If the Company in any 
manner issues or sells any Convertible Securities, whether or not immediately 
convertible (other than where the same are issuable upon the exercise of 
Options) and the price per share for which Common Stock is issuable upon such 
conversion or exchange is less than the Market Price on the date of issuance, 
then the maximum total number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon the 
conversion or exchange of all such Convertible Securities will, as of the date 
of the issuance of such Convertible Securities, be deemed to be outstanding and 
to have been issued and sold by the Company for such price per share. For the 
purposes of the preceding sentence, the "price per share for which Common Stock 
is issuable upon such conversion or exchange" is determined by dividing (i) the 
total amount, if any, received or receivable by the Company as consideration for 
the issuance or sale of all such Convertible Securities, plus the minimum 
aggregate amount of additional consideration, if any, payable to the Company 
upon the conversion or exchange thereof at the time such Convertible Securities 
first become convertible or exchangeable, by (ii) the maximum total number of 
shares of Common Stock issuable upon the conversion or exchange of all such 
Convertible Securities. No further adjustment to the Exercise Price will be made 
upon the actual issuance of such Common Stock upon conversion or exchange of 
such Convertible Securities. 
 
            (iii) Change in Option Price or Conversion Rate. If there is a 
change at any time in (i) the amount of additional consideration payable to the 
Company upon the exercise of any Options; (ii) the amount of additional 
consideration, if any, payable to the Company upon the conversion or exchange of 
any Convertible Securities; or (iii) the rate at which any Convertible 
Securities are convertible into or exchangeable for Common Stock (other than 
under or by reason of provisions designed to protect against dilution), the 
Exercise Price in effect at the time of such change will be readjusted to the 
Exercise Price which would have been in effect at such time had such Options or 
Convertible Securities still outstanding provided for such changed additional 
consideration or changed conversion rate, as the case may be, at the time 
initially granted, issued or sold. 
 
            (iv) Treatment of Expired Options and Unexercised Convertible 
Securities. If, in any case, the total number of shares of Common Stock issuable 
upon exercise of any Option or upon conversion or exchange of any Convertible 
Securities is not, in fact, issued and the rights to exercise such Option or to 
convert or exchange such Convertible Securities shall have expired or 
terminated, the Exercise Price then in effect will be readjusted to the Exercise 
Price which would have been in effect at the time of such expiration or 
termination had such Option or Convertible Securities, to the extent outstanding 
immediately prior to such expiration or termination (other than in respect of 
the actual number of shares of Common Stock issued upon exercise or conversion 
thereof), never been issued. 
 
            (v) Calculation of Consideration Received. If any Common Stock, 
Options or Convertible Securities are issued, granted or sold for cash, the 
consideration received therefor for purposes of this Warrant will be the amount 
received by the Company therefor, before deduction of reasonable commissions, 
underwriting discounts or allowances or other reasonable expenses  
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paid or incurred by the Company in connection with such issuance, grant or sale. 
In case any Common Stock, Options or Convertible Securities are issued or sold 
for a consideration part or all of which shall be other than cash, the amount of 
the consideration other than cash received by the Company will be the fair value 
of such consideration, except where such consideration consists of securities, 
in which case the amount of consideration received by the Company will be the 
Market Price thereof as of the date of receipt. In case any Common Stock, 
Options or Convertible Securities are issued in connection with any merger or 
consolidation in which the Company is the surviving corporation, the amount of 
consideration therefor will be deemed to be the fair value of such portion of 
the net assets and business of the non-surviving corporation as is attributable 
to such Common Stock, Options or, Convertible Securities, as the case may be. 
The fair value of any consideration other than cash or securities will be 
determined in good faith by the Board of Directors of the Company. 
 
            (vi) Exceptions to Adjustment of Exercise Price. No adjustment to 
the Exercise Price will be made (i) upon the exercise of any warrants, options 
or convertible securities issued and outstanding on the March 4, 1996; (ii) upon 
the grant or exercise of any stock or options which may hereafter be granted or 
exercised under any employee benefit plan of the Company now existing or to be 
implemented in the future, so long as the issuance of such stock or options is 
approved by a majority of the independent members of the Board of Directors of 
the Company or a majority of the members of a committee of independent directors 
established for such purpose; or (iii) upon the exercise of the Warrants or 
conversion of the Debenture. 
 
        (c) Subdivision or Combination of Common Stock. If the Company at any 
time subdivides (by any stock split, stock dividend, recapitalization, 
reorganization, reclassification or otherwise) the shares of Common Stock 
acquirable hereunder into a greater number of shares, then, after the date of 
record for effecting such subdivision, the Exercise Price in effect immediately 
prior to such subdivision will be proportionately reduced. If the Company at any 
time combines (by reverse stock split, recapitalization, reorganization, 
reclassification or otherwise) the shares of Common Stock acquirable hereunder 
into a smaller number of shares, then, after the date of record for effecting 
such combination, the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to such 
combination will be proportionately increased. 
 
        (d) Adjustment in Number of Shares. Upon each adjustment of the Exercise 
Price pursuant to the provisions of this Paragraph 4, the number of shares of 
Common Stock issuable upon exercise of this Warrant shall be adjusted by 
multiplying a number equal to the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to 
such adjustment by the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise 
of this Warrant immediately prior to such adjustment and dividing the product so 
obtained by the adjusted Exercise Price. 
 
        (e) Consolidation, Merger or Sale. In case of any consolidation of the 
Company with, or merger of the Company into any other corporation, or in case of 
any sale or conveyance of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company 
other than in connection with a plan of complete liquidation of the Company, 
then as a condition of such consolidation, merger or sale or conveyance, 
adequate provision will be made whereby the holder of this Warrant will have the 
right to acquire and receive upon exercise of this Warrant in lieu of the shares 
of Common Stock immediately theretofore acquirable upon the exercise of this 
Warrant, such shares of stock, securities or assets as may be issued or payable 
with respect to or in exchange for the number of shares of Common Stock 
immediately theretofore acquirable and receivable upon exercise of this Warrant 
had such consolidation, merger or sale or conveyance not taken place. In any 
such case, the Company will make appropriate provision to insure that the 
provisions of this Paragraph 4 hereof will thereafter be applicable  
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as nearly as may be in relation to any shares of stock or securities thereafter 
deliverable upon the exercise of this Warrant. The Company will not effect any 
consolidation, merger or sale or conveyance unless prior to the consummation 
thereof, the successor corporation (if other than the Company) assumes by 
written instrument the obligations under this Paragraph 4 and the obligations to 
deliver to the holder of this Warrant such shares of stock, securities or assets 
as, in accordance with the foregoing provisions, the holder may be entitled to 
acquire. 
 
        (f) Distribution of Assets. In case the Company shall declare or make 
any distribution of its assets to holders of Common Stock as a partial 
liquidating dividend, by way of return of capital or otherwise, then, after the 
date of record for determining stockholders entitled to such distribution, but 
prior to the date of distribution, the holder of this Warrant shall be entitled 
upon exercise of this Warrant for the purchase of any or all of the shares of 
Common Stock subject hereto, to receive the amount of such assets which would 
have been payable to the holder had such holder been the holder of such shares 
of Common Stock on the record date for the determination of stockholders 
entitled to such distribution. 
 
        (g) Notice of Adjustment. Upon the occurrence of any event which 
requires any adjustment of the Exercise Price, then, and in each such case, the 
Company shall give notice thereof to the holder of this Warrant, which notice 
shall state the Exercise Price resulting from such adjustment and the increase 
or decrease in the number of Warrant Shares purchasable at such price upon 
exercise, setting forth in reasonable detail the method of calculation and the 
facts upon which such calculation is based. Such calculation shall be certified 
by the chief financial officer of the Company. 
 
        (h) Minimum Adjustment of Exercise Price. No adjustment of the Exercise 
Price shall be made in an amount of less than 1% of the Exercise Price in effect 
at the time such adjustment is otherwise required to be made, but any such 
lesser adjustment shall be carried forward and shall be made at the time and 
together with the next subsequent adjustment which, together with any 
adjustments so carried forward, shall amount to not less than 1% of such 
Exercise Price. 
 
        (i) No Fractional Shares. No fractional shares of Common Stock are to be 
issued upon the exercise of this Warrant, but the Company shall pay a cash 
adjustment in respect of any fractional share which would otherwise be issuable 
in an amount equal to the same fraction of the Market Price of a share of Common 
Stock on the date of such exercise. 
 
        (j) Other Notices. In case at any time: 
 
            (i) the Company shall declare any dividend upon the Common Stock 
payable in shares of stock of any class or make any other distribution (other 
than dividends or distributions payable in cash out of retained earnings) to the 
holders of the Common Stock; 
 
            (ii) the Company shall offer for subscription pro rata to the 
holders of the Common Stock any additional shares of stock of any class or other 
rights; 
 
            (iii) there shall be any capital reorganization of the Company, or 
reclassification of the Common Stock, or consolidation or merger of the Company 
with or into, or sale of all or substantially all its assets to, another 
corporation or entity; or 
 
            (iv) there shall be a voluntary or involuntary dissolution, 
liquidation or winding-up of the Company; then, in each such case, the Company 
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shall give to the holder of this Warrant (a) notice of the date on which the 
books of the Company shall close or a record shall be taken for determining the 
holders of Common Stock entitled to receive any such dividend, distribution, or 
subscription rights or for determining the holders of Common Stock entitled to 
vote in respect of any such reorganization, reclassification, consolidation, 
merger, sale, dissolution, liquidation or winding-up and (b) in the case of any 
such reorganization, reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, dissolution, 
liquidation or winding-up, notice of the date (or, if not then known, a 
reasonable approximation thereof by the Company) when the same shall take place. 
Such notice shall also specify the date on which the holders of Common Stock 
shall be entitled to receive such dividend, distribution, or subscription rights 
or to exchange their Common Stock for stock or other securities or property 
deliverable upon such reorganization, reclassification, consolidation, merger, 
sale, dissolution, liquidation, or winding-up, as the case may be. Such notice 
shall be given at least 30 days prior to the record date or the date on which 
the Company's books are closed in respect thereto. Failure to give any such 
notice or any defect therein shall not affect the validity of the proceedings 
referred to in clauses (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv) above. 
 
        (k) Certain Events. If any event occurs of the type contemplated by the 
adjustment provisions of this Paragraph 4 but not expressly provided for by such 
provisions, the Company will give notice of such event as provided in Paragraph 
4(g) hereof, and the Company's Board of Directors will make an appropriate 
adjustment in the Exercise Price and the number of shares of Common Stock 
acquirable upon exercise of this Warrant so that the rights of the Holder shall 
be neither enhanced nor diminished by such event. 
 
        (l) Certain Definitions. 
 
            (i) "Common Stock Deemed Outstanding" shall mean the number of 
shares of Common Stock actually outstanding (not including shares of Common 
Stock held in the treasury of the Company), plus (x) pursuant to Paragraph 
4(b)(i) hereof, the maximum total number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon 
the exercise of Options, as of the date of such issuance or grant of such 
Options, if any, and (y) pursuant to Paragraph 4(b)(ii) hereof, the maximum 
total number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion or exchange of 
Convertible Securities, as of the date of issuance of such Convertible 
Securities, if any. 
 
            (ii) "Market Price," as of any date, (i) means the average of the 
last reported sale prices for the shares of Common Stock as reported by the 
National Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotation National Market 
System ("NASDAQ-NMS") for the five (5) trading days immediately preceding such 
date, or (ii) if the NASDAQ-NMS is not the principal trading market for the 
shares of Common Stock, the average of the last reported sale prices on the 
principal trading market for the Common Stock during the same period, or (iii) 
if market value cannot be calculated as of such date on any of the foregoing 
bases, the Market Price shall be the average fair market value as reasonably 
determined in good faith by the Board of Directors of the Company. The manner of 
determining the Market Price of the Common Stock set forth in the foregoing 
definition shall apply with respect to any other security in respect of which a 
determination as to market value must be made hereunder. 
 
            (iii) "Common Stock," for purposes of this Paragraph 4, includes the 
Common Stock, par value $.01 per share, and any additional class of stock of the 
Company having no preference as to dividends or distributions on liquidation, 
provided that the shares purchasable pursuant to this Warrant shall include only 
shares of Common Stock, par value $.01 per share, in respect of which this 
Warrant is exercisable, or shares resulting from any subdivision or combination 
of such Common Stock, or in the case of any  
 
 
 
                                       7 
 



   8 
 
reorganization, reclassification, consolidation, merger, or sale of the 
character referred to in Paragraph 4(e) hereof, the stock or other securities or 
property provided for in such Paragraph. 
 
     5. Issue Tax. The issuance of certificates for Warrant Shares upon the 
exercise of this Warrant shall be made without charge to the holder of this 
Warrant or such shares for any issuance tax or other costs in respect thereof, 
provided that the Company shall not be required to pay any tax which may be 
payable in respect of any transfer involved in the issuance and delivery of any 
certificate in a name other than the holder of this Warrant. 
 
     6. No Rights or Liabilities as a Shareholder. This Warrant shall not 
entitle the holder hereof to any voting rights or other rights as a shareholder 
of the Company. No provision of this Warrant, in the absence of affirmative 
action by the holder hereof to purchase Warrant Shares, and no mere enumeration 
herein of the rights or privileges of the holder hereof, shall give rise to any 
liability of such holder for the Exercise Price or as a shareholder of the 
Company, whether such liability is asserted by the Company or by creditors of 
the Company. 
 
     7. Transfer, Exchange, and Replacement of Warrant. 
 
        (a) Restriction on Transfer. This Warrant and the rights granted to the 
holder hereof are transferable, in whole or in part, upon surrender of this 
Warrant, together with a properly executed assignment in the form attached 
hereto, at the office or agency of the Company referred to in Paragraph 7(e) 
below, provided, however, that any transfer or assignment shall be subject to 
the conditions set forth in Paragraph 7(f) hereof and to the applicable 
provisions of the Securities Purchase Agreement and as amended by the Letter 
Agreement. Until due presentment for registration of transfer on the books of 
the Company, the Company may treat the registered holder hereof as the owner and 
holder hereof for all purposes, and the Company shall not be affected by any 
notice to the contrary. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained 
herein, the registration rights described in Paragraph 8 are assignable only in 
accordance with the provisions of that certain Registration Rights Agreement, 
dated as of March 15, 1996, by and among the Company and the other signatories 
thereto (the "Registration Rights Agreement"). 
 
        (b) Warrant Exchangeable for Different Denominations. This Warrant is 
exchangeable, upon the surrender hereof by the holder hereof at the office or 
agency of the Company referred to in Paragraph 7(e) below, for new Warrants of 
like tenor representing in the aggregate the right to purchase the number of 
shares of Common Stock which may be purchased hereunder, each of such new 
Warrants to represent the right to purchase such number of shares as shall be 
designated by the holder hereof at the time of such surrender. 
 
        (c) Replacement of Warrant. Upon receipt of evidence reasonably 
satisfactory to the Company of the loss, theft, destruction, or mutilation of 
this Warrant and, in the case of any such loss, theft, or destruction, upon 
delivery of an indemnity agreement reasonably satisfactory in form and amount to 
the Company, or, in the case of any such mutilation, upon surrender and 
cancellation of this Warrant, the Company, at its expense, will execute and 
deliver, in lieu thereof, a new Warrant of like tenor. 
 
        (d) Cancellation; Payment of Expenses. Upon the surrender of this 
Warrant in connection with any transfer, exchange, or replacement as provided in 
this Paragraph 7, this Warrant shall be promptly canceled by the Company. The 
Company shall pay all taxes (other than securities transfer taxes) and all other 
expenses (other than legal expenses, if any, incurred by the Holder or 
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transferees) and charges payable in connection with the preparation, execution, 
and delivery of Warrants pursuant to this Paragraph 7. 
 
        (e) Register. The Company shall maintain, at its principal executive 
offices (or such other office or agency of the Company as it may designate by 
notice to the holder hereof), a register for this Warrant, in which the Company 
shall record the name and address of the person in whose name this Warrant has 
been issued, as well as the name and address of each transferee and each prior 
owner of this Warrant. 
 
        (f) Exercise or Transfer Without Registration. If, at the time of the 
surrender of this Warrant in connection with any exercise, transfer, or exchange 
of this Warrant, this Warrant (or, in the case of any exercise, the Warrant 
Shares issuable hereunder), shall not be registered under the Securities Act and 
under applicable state securities or blue sky laws, the Company may require, as 
a condition of allowing such exercise, transfer, or exchange, (i) that the 
holder or transferee of this Warrant, as the case may be, furnish to the Company 
a written opinion of counsel, which opinion and counsel are acceptable to the 
Company, to the effect that such exercise, transfer, or exchange may be made 
without registration under said Act and under applicable state securities or 
blue sky laws (ii) that the holder or transferee execute and deliver to the 
Company an investment letter in form and substance acceptable to the Company, 
(iii) that the transferee be an "accredited investor" as defined in Rule 501(a) 
promulgated under the Securities Act and (iv) that, upon such transfer, the 
transferee beneficially own Registrable Securities (as defined in the 
Registration Rights Agreement) having an aggregate Market Price of at least 
$500,000; provided that no such opinion, letter, status as an "accredited 
investor" or minimum Market Price shall be required in connection with a 
transfer pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act. No "Subject Holder" (as 
defined below) may sell or otherwise transfer Warrants, except (i) to the 
Company or to a stockholder or a group of stockholders who immediately prior to 
the sale control a majority of the Company's voting shares (a "Controlling 
Stockholder" or "Controlling Group", as applicable); (ii) to an affiliate of 
such holder; (iii) in connection with any merger, consolidation, reorganization 
or sale of more than 50% of the outstanding Common Stock of the Company (a 
"Reorganization"); (iv) in a registered public offering or a public sale 
pursuant to Rule 144 or other applicable exemption from the registration 
requirements of the Securities Act (or any successor rule or regulation); or (v) 
in a private sale (otherwise than to the Company, to a Controlling Stockholder 
or a Controlling Group, to an affiliate of such holder, or in a Reorganization), 
provided that the holder shall not sell or otherwise transfer during any ninety 
(90) day period a portion(s) of the Warrants which, if converted into Common 
Stock at the time of the transfer, would represent, in the aggregate, beneficial 
ownership by the transferee(s) of more than 9.9% percent of the Common Stock 
then outstanding. Subject Holder means any holder who, but for the second 
paragraph of Section 1 hereof, would beneficially own 10% or more of the 
outstanding Common Stock of the Company. The first holder of this Warrant, by 
taking and holding the same, represents to the Company that such holder is 
acquiring this Warrant for investment and not with a view to the distribution 
thereof. 
 
     8. Registration Rights. The initial holder of this Warrant (and certain 
assignees thereof) is entitled to the benefit of such registration rights in 
respect of the Warrant Shares as are set forth in Section 2 of the 
Registration Rights Agreement. 
 
     9. Notices. All notices, requests, and other communications required or 
permitted to be given or delivered hereunder to the holder of this Warrant  
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shall be in writing, and shall be personally delivered, or shall be sent by 
certified or registered mail or by recognized overnight mail courier, postage 
prepaid and addressed, to such holder at the address shown for such holder on 
the books of the Company, or at such other address as shall have been furnished 
to the Company by notice from such holder. All notices, requests, and other 
communications required or permitted to be given or delivered hereunder to the 
Company shall be in writing, and shall be personally delivered, or shall be sent 
by certified or registered mail or by recognized overnight mail courier, postage 
prepaid and addressed, to the office of the Company at 333 Providence Highway, 
Norwood, Massachusetts 02062, Attention: Kathleen A. Carroll, Vice President, 
Finance and Administration, or at such other address as shall have been 
furnished to the holder of this Warrant by notice from the Company. Any such 
notice, request, or other communication may be sent by facsimile, but shall in 
such case be subsequently confirmed by a writing personally delivered or sent by 
certified or registered mail or by recognized overnight mail courier as provided 
above. All notices, requests, and other communications shall be deemed to have 
been given either at the time of the receipt thereof by the person entitled to 
receive such notice at the address of such person for purposes of this Paragraph 
9, or, if mailed by registered or certified mail or with a recognized overnight 
mail courier upon deposit with the United States Post Office or such overnight 
mail courier, if postage is prepaid and the mailing is properly addressed, as 
the case may be. 
 
     10. Governing Law. THIS WARRANT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED AND 
ENFORCED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE INTERNAL LAWS OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF 
MASSACHUSETTS WITHOUT REGARD TO THE BODY OF LAW CONTROLLING CONFLICTS OF LAW. 
 
     11. Miscellaneous. 
 
        (a) Amendments. This Warrant and any provision hereof may only be 
amended by an instrument in writing signed by the Company and the holder 
hereof. 
 
        (b) Descriptive Headings. The descriptive headings of the several 
paragraphs of this Warrant are inserted for purposes of reference only, and 
shall not affect the meaning or construction of any of the provisions hereof. 
 
        (c) Cashless Exercise. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 
contained in this Warrant, if the resale of the Warrant Shares by the holder is 
not then registered pursuant to an effective registration statement under the 
Securities Act, this Warrant may be exercised by presentation and surrender of 
this Warrant to the Company at its principal executive offices with a written 
notice of the holder's intention to effect a cashless exercise, including a 
calculation of the number of shares of Common Stock to be issued upon such 
exercise in accordance with the terms hereof (a "Cashless Exercise"). In the 
event of a Cashless Exercise, in lieu of paying the Exercise Price in cash, the 
holder shall surrender this Warrant for that number of shares of Common Stock 
determined by multiplying the number of Warrant Shares to which it would 
otherwise be entitled by a fraction, the numerator of which shall be the 
difference between the then current Market Price per share of the Common Stock 
and the Exercise Price, and the denominator of which shall be the then current 
Market Price per share of Common Stock. 
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     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to be signed by its 
duly authorized officer. 
 
IMMUNOGEN, INC. 
 
 
 
By: /s/ Kathleen A. Carroll 
    --------------------------------------------- 
Name: Kathleen A. Carroll 
      ------------------------------------------- 
Title: Vice President, Finance and Administration 
       ------------------------------------------ 
 
Agreed to and Accepted 
 
 
 
By:_______________________          , Initial Holder 
 
Dated as of August 21,1997 
            -------------- 
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                           FORM OF EXERCISE AGREEMENT 
Dated:  ________, ____. 
 
To:_____________________________ 
 
     The undersigned, pursuant to the provisions set forth in the within 
Warrant, hereby agrees to purchase ________ shares of Common Stock covered by 
such Warrant, and makes payment herewith in full therefor at the price per share 
provided by such Warrant in cash or by certified or official bank check in the 
amount of, [or, if the resale of such Common Stock by the undersigned is not 
currently registered pursuant to an effective registration statement under the 
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, by surrender of securities issued by the 
Company (including a portion of the Warrant) having a market value (in the case 
of a portion of this Warrant, determined in accordance with Section 11(c) of the 
Warrant) equal to] $_________. Please issue a certificate or certificates for 
such shares of Common Stock in the name of and pay any cash for any fractional 
share to: 
 
 
Name:________________________________ 
 
 
 
Signature:___________________________ 
 
Address:_____________________________ 
 
        ----------------------------- 
 
 
 
Note: The above signature should correspond exactly with the name on the face of 
the within Warrant, and, if said number of shares of Common Stock shall not be 
all the shares purchasable under the within Warrant, a new Warrant is to be 
issued in the name of said undersigned covering the balance of the shares 
purchasable thereunder less any fraction of a share paid in cash. 
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                               FORM OF ASSIGNMENT 
     FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers 
all the rights of the undersigned under the within Warrant, with respect to 
the number of shares of Common Stock covered thereby set forth hereinbelow, 
to: 
Name of Assignee                   Address                      No. of Shares 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 , and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints as agent and attorney-in-fact 
to transfer said Warrant on the books of the within-named corporation, with full 
power of substitution in the premises. 
 
 
 Dated: _____________________, ____, 
 
 
 In the presence of 
 
- ------------------- 
 
 Name: ____________________________ 
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                                                                    Exhibit 10.3 
 
 
 
THIS WARRANT AND THE SHARES ISSUABLE UPON THE EXERCISE OF THIS WARRANT HAVE NOT 
BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED. EXCEPT AS 
OTHERWISE SET FORTH HEREIN OR IN A SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT DATED AS OF 
MARCH 15, 1996, NEITHER THIS WARRANT NOR ANY OF SUCH SHARES MAY BE SOLD, OFFERED 
FOR SALE, ASSIGNED, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF IN THE ABSENCE OF 
REGISTRATION UNDER SUCH ACT OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT 
REQUIRED UNDER SUCH ACT OR UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 UNDER SUCH ACT. ANY 
SUCH SALE, ASSIGNMENT OR TRANSFER MUST ALSO COMPLY WITH APPLICABLE STATE 
SECURITIES LAWS. 
 
Right to Purchase 78,185 Shares of Common Stock, par value $.01 per share 
 
                                 IMMUNOGEN, INC. 
                             STOCK PURCHASE WARRANT 
 
     THIS CERTIFIES THAT, for value received, Capital Ventures International or 
its registered assigns, is entitled to purchase from IMMUNOGEN, INC., a 
Massachusetts corporation (the "Company"), at any time or from time to time 
during the period specified in Paragraph 2 hereof, seventy-eight thousand, one 
hundred eighty-five (78,185) fully paid and nonassessable shares of the 
Company's Common Stock, par value $.01 per share (the "Common Stock"), at an 
exercise price of $4.00 per share (the "Exercise Price"). The term "Warrant 
Shares", as used herein, refers to the shares of Common Stock purchasable 
hereunder. The Warrant Shares and the Exercise Price are subject to adjustment 
as provided in Paragraph 4 hereof. The term Warrants means this Warrant and the 
other warrants of the Company issued upon conversion of the Convertible 
Preferred Stock issued pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreement (as 
hereinafter defined), and as amended by a Letter Agreement (the "Letter 
Agreement") dated June 6, 1996. 
 
     This Warrant is subject to the following terms, provisions, and conditions: 
 
     1. Manner of Exercise; Issuance of Certificates; Payment for Shares. 
Subject to the provisions hereof, this Warrant may be exercised by the holder 
hereof, in whole or in part, by the surrender of this Warrant, together with a 
completed exercise agreement in the form attached hereto (the "Exercise 
Agreement"), to the Company during normal business hours on any business day at 
the Company's principal executive offices (or such other office or agency of the 
Company as it may designate by notice to the holder hereof), and upon (i) 
payment to the Company in cash, by certified or official bank check or by wire 
transfer for the account of the Company of the Exercise Price for the Warrant 
Shares specified in the Exercise Agreement or (ii) if the resale of the Warrant 
Shares by the holder is not then registered pursuant to an effective 
registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the 
"Securities Act"), delivery to the Company of a written notice of an election to 
effect a "Cashless Exercise" (as defined in Section 11(c) below) for the Warrant 
Shares specified in the Exercise Agreement. The Warrant Shares so purchased 
shall be deemed to be issued to the holder hereof or such holder's designee, as 
the record owner of such shares, as of the close of business on the date on 
which this Warrant shall have been surrendered, the completed Exercise Agreement 
shall have been delivered, and payment shall have been made for such shares as 
set forth above. Certificates for the Warrant Shares so purchased, representing 
the aggregate number of shares specified in the Exercise Agreement, shall be 
delivered to the holder hereof within a reasonable time, not exceeding three (3) 
business days, after this Warrant shall have been so exercised. The certificates 
so delivered shall be in such denominations as may be requested by the holder 
hereof and shall be registered in the name of such holder or such other name as 
shall be designated by such  
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holder. If this Warrant shall have been exercised only in part, then, unless 
this Warrant has expired, the Company shall, at its expense, at the time of 
delivery of such certificates, deliver to the holder a new Warrant representing 
the number of shares with respect to which this Warrant shall not then have been 
exercised. 
 
     Notwithstanding anything in this Warrant to the contrary, in no event shall 
the Holder of this Warrant be entitled to exercise a number of Warrants (or 
portions thereof) in excess of the number of Warrants (or portions thereof) upon 
exercise of which the sum of (i) the number of shares of Common Stock 
beneficially owned by the Holder and its affiliates (other than shares of Common 
Stock which may be deemed beneficially owned through the ownership of the 
unexercised Warrants and portion of the unconverted Debentures (as defined 
below)) and (ii) the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of 
the Warrants (or portions thereof) with respect to which the determination 
described herein is being made, would result in beneficial ownership by the 
Holder and its affiliates of more than 9.9% of the outstanding shares of Common 
Stock. For purposes of the immediately preceding sentence, beneficial ownership 
shall be determined in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, as amended, and Regulation 13D-G thereunder, except as otherwise 
provided in clause (i) thereof. 
 
     2. Period of Exercise. This Warrant is exercisable at any time or from time 
to time on or after August 1, 1997 and before 5:00 p.m., New York City time on 
August 1, 2002 (the "Exercise Period"). 
 
     3. Certain Agreements of the Company. The Company hereby covenants and 
agrees as follows: 
 
        (a) Shares to be Fully Paid. All Warrant Shares will, upon issuance in 
accordance with the terms of this Warrant, be validly issued, fully paid, and 
nonassessable and free from all taxes, liens, and charges with respect to the 
issue thereof. 
 
        (b) Reservation of Shares. During the Exercise Period, the Company shall 
at all times have authorized, and reserved for the purpose of issuance upon 
exercise of this Warrant, a sufficient number of shares of Common Stock to 
provide for the exercise of this Warrant. 
 
        (c) Listing. The Company shall promptly secure the listing of the shares 
of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrant upon each national 
securities exchange or automated quotation system, if any, upon which shares of 
Common Stock are then listed (subject to official notice of issuance upon 
exercise of this Warrant) and shall maintain, so long as any other shares of 
Common Stock shall be so listed, such listing of all shares of Common Stock from 
time to time issuable upon the exercise of this Warrant; and the Company shall 
so list on each national securities exchange or automated quotation system, as 
the case may be, and shall maintain such listing of, any other shares of capital 
stock of the Company issuable upon the exercise of this Warrant if and so long 
as any shares of the same class shall be listed on such national securities 
exchange or automated quotation system. 
 
        (d) Certain Actions Prohibited. The Company will not, by amendment of 
its charter or through any reorganization, transfer of assets, consolidation, 
merger, dissolution, issue or sale of securities, or any other voluntary action, 
avoid or seek to avoid the observance or performance of any of the terms to be 
observed or performed by it hereunder, but will at all times in good faith 
assist in the carrying out of all the provisions of this Warrant and in the 
taking of all such action as may reasonably be requested by the holder of this 
Warrant in order to protect the exercise privilege of the holder of this Warrant 
against dilution or other impairment, consistent with  
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the tenor and purpose of this Warrant. Without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, the Company (i) will not increase the par value of any shares of 
Common Stock receivable upon the exercise of this Warrant above the Exercise 
Price then in effect, and (ii) will take all such actions as may be necessary or 
appropriate in order that the Company may validly and legally issue fully paid 
and nonassessable shares of Common Stock upon the exercise of this Warrant. 
 
        (e) Successors and Assigns. This Warrant will be binding upon any entity 
succeeding to the Company by merger, consolidation, or acquisition of all or 
substantially all the Company's assets. 
 
     4. Antidilution Provisions. During the Exercise Period, the Exercise 
Price and the number of Warrant Shares shall be subject to adjustment from 
time to time as provided in this Paragraph 4. 
 
     In the event that any adjustment of the Exercise Price as required herein 
results in a fraction of a cent, such Exercise Price shall be rounded up to the 
nearest cent. 
 
        (a) Adjustment of Exercise Price and Number of Shares upon Issuance of 
Common Stock. Except as otherwise provided in Paragraphs 4(c) and 4(e) hereof, 
if and whenever on or after the date of issuance of this Warrant, the Company 
issues or sells, or in accordance with Paragraph 4(b) hereof is deemed to have 
issued or sold, any shares of Common Stock for no consideration or for a 
consideration per share (before deduction of reasonable expenses or commissions 
or underwriting discounts or allowances in connection therewith) less than the 
Market Price (as hereinafter defined) on the date of issuance (a "Dilutive 
Issuance"), then immediately upon the Dilutive Issuance, the Exercise Price will 
be reduced to a price determined by multiplying the Exercise Price in effect 
immediately prior to the Dilutive Issuance by a fraction, (i) the numerator of 
which is an amount equal to the sum of (x) the number of shares of Common Stock 
Deemed Outstanding (as hereinafter defined) immediately prior to the Dilutive 
Issuance, plus (y) the aggregate consideration, calculated as set forth in 
Section 4(b) hereof, received by the Company upon such Dilutive Issuance, 
divided by the Market Price in effect immediately prior to the Dilutive 
Issuance, and (ii) the denominator of which is the total number of shares of 
Common Stock Deemed Outstanding immediately after the Dilutive Issuance. 
 
        (b) Effect on Exercise Price of Certain Events. For purposes of 
determining the adjusted Exercise Price under Paragraph 4(a) hereof, the 
following will be applicable: 
 
            (i) Issuance of Rights or Options. If the Company in any manner 
issues or grants any warrants, rights or options, whether or not immediately 
exercisable, to subscribe for or to purchase Common Stock or other securities 
convertible into or exchangeable for Common Stock ("Convertible Securities") 
(such warrants, rights and options to purchase Common Stock or Convertible 
Securities are hereinafter referred to as "Options") and the price per share for 
which Common Stock is issuable upon the exercise of such Options is less than 
the Market Price on the date of issuance, then the maximum total number of 
shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of all such Options will, as 
of the date of the issuance or grant of such Options, be deemed to be 
outstanding and to have been issued and sold by the Company for such price per 
share. For purposes of the preceding sentence, the "price per share for which 
Common Stock is issuable upon the exercise of such Options" is determined by 
dividing (i) the total amount, if any, received or receivable by the Company as 
consideration for the issuance or granting of all such Options, plus the minimum 
aggregate amount of additional consideration, if any, payable to the Company 
upon the exercise of all such Options, plus, in the case of  
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Convertible Securities issuable upon the exercise of such Options, the minimum 
aggregate amount of additional consideration payable upon the conversion or 
exchange thereof at the time such Convertible Securities first become 
convertible or exchangeable, by (ii) the maximum total number of shares of 
Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of all such Options (assuming full 
conversion of Convertible Securities, if applicable). No further adjustment to 
the Exercise Price will be made upon the actual issuance of such Common Stock 
upon the exercise of such Options or upon the conversion or exchange of 
Convertible Securities issuable upon exercise of such Options. 
 
            (ii) Issuance of Convertible Securities. If the Company in any 
manner issues or sells any Convertible Securities, whether or not immediately 
convertible (other than where the same are issuable upon the exercise of 
Options) and the price per share for which Common Stock is issuable upon such 
conversion or exchange is less than the Market Price on the date of issuance, 
then the maximum total number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon the 
conversion or exchange of all such Convertible Securities will, as of the date 
of the issuance of such Convertible Securities, be deemed to be outstanding and 
to have been issued and sold by the Company for such price per share. For the 
purposes of the preceding sentence, the "price per share for which Common Stock 
is issuable upon such conversion or exchange" is determined by dividing (i) the 
total amount, if any, received or receivable by the Company as consideration for 
the issuance or sale of all such Convertible Securities, plus the minimum 
aggregate amount of additional consideration, if any, payable to the Company 
upon the conversion or exchange thereof at the time such Convertible Securities 
first become convertible or exchangeable, by (ii) the maximum total number of 
shares of Common Stock issuable upon the conversion or exchange of all such 
Convertible Securities. No further adjustment to the Exercise Price will be made 
upon the actual issuance of such Common Stock upon conversion or exchange of 
such Convertible Securities. 
 
            (iii) Change in Option Price or Conversion Rate. If there is a 
change at any time in (i) the amount of additional consideration payable to the 
Company upon the exercise of any Options; (ii) the amount of additional 
consideration, if any, payable to the Company upon the conversion or exchange of 
any Convertible Securities; or (iii) the rate at which any Convertible 
Securities are convertible into or exchangeable for Common Stock (other than 
under or by reason of provisions designed to protect against dilution), the 
Exercise Price in effect at the time of such change will be readjusted to the 
Exercise Price which would have been in effect at such time had such Options or 
Convertible Securities still outstanding provided for such changed additional 
consideration or changed conversion rate, as the case may be, at the time 
initially granted, issued or sold. 
 
            (iv) Treatment of Expired Options and Unexercised Convertible 
Securities. If, in any case, the total number of shares of Common Stock issuable 
upon exercise of any Option or upon conversion or exchange of any Convertible 
Securities is not, in fact, issued and the rights to exercise such Option or to 
convert or exchange such Convertible Securities shall have expired or 
terminated, the Exercise Price then in effect will be readjusted to the Exercise 
Price which would have been in effect at the time of such expiration or 
termination had such Option or Convertible Securities, to the extent outstanding 
immediately prior to such expiration or termination (other than in respect of 
the actual number of shares of Common Stock issued upon exercise or conversion 
thereof), never been issued. 
 
            (v) Calculation of Consideration Received. If any Common Stock, 
Options or Convertible Securities are issued, granted or sold for cash, the 
consideration received therefor for purposes of this Warrant will be the amount 
received by the Company therefor, before deduction of reasonable commissions, 
underwriting discounts or allowances or other reasonable expenses  
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paid or incurred by the Company in connection with such issuance, grant or sale. 
In case any Common Stock, Options or Convertible Securities are issued or sold 
for a consideration part or all of which shall be other than cash, the amount of 
the consideration other than cash received by the Company will be the fair value 
of such consideration, except where such consideration consists of securities, 
in which case the amount of consideration received by the Company will be the 
Market Price thereof as of the date of receipt. In case any Common Stock, 
Options or Convertible Securities are issued in connection with any merger or 
consolidation in which the Company is the surviving corporation, the amount of 
consideration therefor will be deemed to be the fair value of such portion of 
the net assets and business of the non-surviving corporation as is attributable 
to such Common Stock, Options or, Convertible Securities, as the case may be. 
The fair value of any consideration other than cash or securities will be 
determined in good faith by the Board of Directors of the Company. 
 
            (vi) Exceptions to Adjustment of Exercise Price. No adjustment to 
the Exercise Price will be made (i) upon the exercise of any warrants, options 
or convertible securities issued and outstanding on the March 4, 1996; (ii) upon 
the grant or exercise of any stock or options which may hereafter be granted or 
exercised under any employee benefit plan of the Company now existing or to be 
implemented in the future, so long as the issuance of such stock or options is 
approved by a majority of the independent members of the Board of Directors of 
the Company or a majority of the members of a committee of independent directors 
established for such purpose; or (iii) upon the exercise of the Warrants or 
conversion of the Debenture. 
 
        (c) Subdivision or Combination of Common Stock. If the Company at any 
time subdivides (by any stock split, stock dividend, recapitalization, 
reorganization, reclassification or otherwise) the shares of Common Stock 
acquirable hereunder into a greater number of shares, then, after the date of 
record for effecting such subdivision, the Exercise Price in effect immediately 
prior to such subdivision will be proportionately reduced. If the Company at any 
time combines (by reverse stock split, recapitalization, reorganization, 
reclassification or otherwise) the shares of Common Stock acquirable hereunder 
into a smaller number of shares, then, after the date of record for effecting 
such combination, the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to such 
combination will be proportionately increased. 
 
        (d) Adjustment in Number of Shares. Upon each adjustment of the Exercise 
Price pursuant to the provisions of this Paragraph 4, the number of shares of 
Common Stock issuable upon exercise of this Warrant shall be adjusted by 
multiplying a number equal to the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to 
such adjustment by the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise 
of this Warrant immediately prior to such adjustment and dividing the product so 
obtained by the adjusted Exercise Price. 
 
        (e) Consolidation, Merger or Sale. In case of any consolidation of the 
Company with, or merger of the Company into any other corporation, or in case of 
any sale or conveyance of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company 
other than in connection with a plan of complete liquidation of the Company, 
then as a condition of such consolidation, merger or sale or conveyance, 
adequate provision will be made whereby the holder of this Warrant will have the 
right to acquire and receive upon exercise of this Warrant in lieu of the shares 
of Common Stock immediately theretofore acquirable upon the exercise of this 
Warrant, such shares of stock, securities or assets as may be issued or payable 
with respect to or in exchange for the number of shares of Common Stock 
immediately theretofore acquirable and receivable upon exercise of this Warrant 
had such consolidation, merger or sale or conveyance not taken place. In any 
such case, the Company will make appropriate provision to insure that the 
provisions of this Paragraph 4 hereof will thereafter be applicable  
 
 
 
                                       5 
 



   6 
 
as nearly as may be in relation to any shares of stock or securities thereafter 
deliverable upon the exercise of this Warrant. The Company will not effect any 
consolidation, merger or sale or conveyance unless prior to the consummation 
thereof, the successor corporation (if other than the Company) assumes by 
written instrument the obligations under this Paragraph 4 and the obligations to 
deliver to the holder of this Warrant such shares of stock, securities or assets 
as, in accordance with the foregoing provisions, the holder may be entitled to 
acquire. 
 
        (f) Distribution of Assets. In case the Company shall declare or make 
any distribution of its assets to holders of Common Stock as a partial 
liquidating dividend, by way of return of capital or otherwise, then, after the 
date of record for determining stockholders entitled to such distribution, but 
prior to the date of distribution, the holder of this Warrant shall be entitled 
upon exercise of this Warrant for the purchase of any or all of the shares of 
Common Stock subject hereto, to receive the amount of such assets which would 
have been payable to the holder had such holder been the holder of such shares 
of Common Stock on the record date for the determination of stockholders 
entitled to such distribution. 
 
        (g) Notice of Adjustment. Upon the occurrence of any event which 
requires any adjustment of the Exercise Price, then, and in each such case, the 
Company shall give notice thereof to the holder of this Warrant, which notice 
shall state the Exercise Price resulting from such adjustment and the increase 
or decrease in the number of Warrant Shares purchasable at such price upon 
exercise, setting forth in reasonable detail the method of calculation and the 
facts upon which such calculation is based. Such calculation shall be certified 
by the chief financial officer of the Company. 
 
        (h) Minimum Adjustment of Exercise Price. No adjustment of the Exercise 
Price shall be made in an amount of less than 1% of the Exercise Price in effect 
at the time such adjustment is otherwise required to be made, but any such 
lesser adjustment shall be carried forward and shall be made at the time and 
together with the next subsequent adjustment which, together with any 
adjustments so carried forward, shall amount to not less than 1% of such 
Exercise Price. 
 
        (i) No Fractional Shares. No fractional shares of Common Stock are to be 
issued upon the exercise of this Warrant, but the Company shall pay a cash 
adjustment in respect of any fractional share which would otherwise be issuable 
in an amount equal to the same fraction of the Market Price of a share of Common 
Stock on the date of such exercise. 
 
        (j) Other Notices. In case at any time: 
 
            (i) the Company shall declare any dividend upon the Common Stock 
payable in shares of stock of any class or make any other distribution (other 
than dividends or distributions payable in cash out of retained earnings) to the 
holders of the Common Stock; 
 
            (ii) the Company shall offer for subscription pro rata to the 
holders of the Common Stock any additional shares of stock of any class or other 
rights; 
 
            (iii) there shall be any capital reorganization of the Company, or 
reclassification of the Common Stock, or consolidation or merger of the Company 
with or into, or sale of all or substantially all its assets to, another 
corporation or entity; or 
 
            (iv) there shall be a voluntary or involuntary dissolution, 
liquidation or winding-up of the Company; then, in each such case, the Company 
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shall give to the holder of this Warrant (a) notice of the date on which the 
books of the Company shall close or a record shall be taken for determining the 
holders of Common Stock entitled to receive any such dividend, distribution, or 
subscription rights or for determining the holders of Common Stock entitled to 
vote in respect of any such reorganization, reclassification, consolidation, 
merger, sale, dissolution, liquidation or winding-up and (b) in the case of any 
such reorganization, reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, dissolution, 
liquidation or winding-up, notice of the date (or, if not then known, a 
reasonable approximation thereof by the Company) when the same shall take place. 
Such notice shall also specify the date on which the holders of Common Stock 
shall be entitled to receive such dividend, distribution, or subscription rights 
or to exchange their Common Stock for stock or other securities or property 
deliverable upon such reorganization, reclassification, consolidation, merger, 
sale, dissolution, liquidation, or winding-up, as the case may be. Such notice 
shall be given at least 30 days prior to the record date or the date on which 
the Company's books are closed in respect thereto. Failure to give any such 
notice or any defect therein shall not affect the validity of the proceedings 
referred to in clauses (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv) above. 
 
        (k) Certain Events. If any event occurs of the type contemplated by the 
adjustment provisions of this Paragraph 4 but not expressly provided for by such 
provisions, the Company will give notice of such event as provided in Paragraph 
4(g) hereof, and the Company's Board of Directors will make an appropriate 
adjustment in the Exercise Price and the number of shares of Common Stock 
acquirable upon exercise of this Warrant so that the rights of the Holder shall 
be neither enhanced nor diminished by such event. 
 
        (l) Certain Definitions. 
 
            (i) "Common Stock Deemed Outstanding" shall mean the number of 
shares of Common Stock actually outstanding (not including shares of Common 
Stock held in the treasury of the Company), plus (x) pursuant to Paragraph 
4(b)(i) hereof, the maximum total number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon 
the exercise of Options, as of the date of such issuance or grant of such 
Options, if any, and (y) pursuant to Paragraph 4(b)(ii) hereof, the maximum 
total number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion or exchange of 
Convertible Securities, as of the date of issuance of such Convertible 
Securities, if any. 
 
            (ii) "Market Price," as of any date, (i) means the average of the 
last reported sale prices for the shares of Common Stock as reported by the 
National Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotation National Market 
System ("NASDAQ-NMS") for the five (5) trading days immediately preceding such 
date, or (ii) if the NASDAQ-NMS is not the principal trading market for the 
shares of Common Stock, the average of the last reported sale prices on the 
principal trading market for the Common Stock during the same period, or (iii) 
if market value cannot be calculated as of such date on any of the foregoing 
bases, the Market Price shall be the average fair market value as reasonably 
determined in good faith by the Board of Directors of the Company. The manner of 
determining the Market Price of the Common Stock set forth in the foregoing 
definition shall apply with respect to any other security in respect of which a 
determination as to market value must be made hereunder. 
 
            (iii) "Common Stock," for purposes of this Paragraph 4, includes the 
Common Stock, par value $.01 per share, and any additional class of stock of the 
Company having no preference as to dividends or distributions on liquidation, 
provided that the shares purchasable pursuant to this Warrant shall include only 
shares of Common Stock, par value $.01 per share, in respect of which this 
Warrant is exercisable, or shares resulting from any subdivision or combination 
of such Common Stock, or in the case of any  
 
 
 
                                       7 
 



   8 
 
reorganization, reclassification, consolidation, merger, or sale of the 
character referred to in Paragraph 4(e) hereof, the stock or other securities or 
property provided for in such Paragraph. 
 
     5. Issue Tax. The issuance of certificates for Warrant Shares upon the 
exercise of this Warrant shall be made without charge to the holder of this 
Warrant or such shares for any issuance tax or other costs in respect thereof, 
provided that the Company shall not be required to pay any tax which may be 
payable in respect of any transfer involved in the issuance and delivery of any 
certificate in a name other than the holder of this Warrant. 
 
     6. No Rights or Liabilities as a Shareholder. This Warrant shall not 
entitle the holder hereof to any voting rights or other rights as a shareholder 
of the Company. No provision of this Warrant, in the absence of affirmative 
action by the holder hereof to purchase Warrant Shares, and no mere enumeration 
herein of the rights or privileges of the holder hereof, shall give rise to any 
liability of such holder for the Exercise Price or as a shareholder of the 
Company, whether such liability is asserted by the Company or by creditors of 
the Company. 
 
     7. Transfer, Exchange, and Replacement of Warrant. 
 
        (a) Restriction on Transfer. This Warrant and the rights granted to the 
holder hereof are transferable, in whole or in part, upon surrender of this 
Warrant, together with a properly executed assignment in the form attached 
hereto, at the office or agency of the Company referred to in Paragraph 7(e) 
below, provided, however, that any transfer or assignment shall be subject to 
the conditions set forth in Paragraph 7(f) hereof and to the applicable 
provisions of the Securities Purchase Agreement and as amended by the Letter 
Agreement. Until due presentment for registration of transfer on the books of 
the Company, the Company may treat the registered holder hereof as the owner and 
holder hereof for all purposes, and the Company shall not be affected by any 
notice to the contrary. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained 
herein, the registration rights described in Paragraph 8 are assignable only in 
accordance with the provisions of that certain Registration Rights Agreement, 
dated as of March 15, 1996, by and among the Company and the other signatories 
thereto (the "Registration Rights Agreement"). 
 
        (b) Warrant Exchangeable for Different Denominations. This Warrant is 
exchangeable, upon the surrender hereof by the holder hereof at the office or 
agency of the Company referred to in Paragraph 7(e) below, for new Warrants of 
like tenor representing in the aggregate the right to purchase the number of 
shares of Common Stock which may be purchased hereunder, each of such new 
Warrants to represent the right to purchase such number of shares as shall be 
designated by the holder hereof at the time of such surrender. 
 
        (c) Replacement of Warrant. Upon receipt of evidence reasonably 
satisfactory to the Company of the loss, theft, destruction, or mutilation of 
this Warrant and, in the case of any such loss, theft, or destruction, upon 
delivery of an indemnity agreement reasonably satisfactory in form and amount to 
the Company, or, in the case of any such mutilation, upon surrender and 
cancellation of this Warrant, the Company, at its expense, will execute and 
deliver, in lieu thereof, a new Warrant of like tenor. 
 
        (d) Cancellation; Payment of Expenses. Upon the surrender of this 
Warrant in connection with any transfer, exchange, or replacement as provided in 
this Paragraph 7, this Warrant shall be promptly canceled by the Company. The 
Company shall pay all taxes (other than securities transfer taxes) and all other 
expenses (other than legal expenses, if any, incurred by the Holder or 
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transferees) and charges payable in connection with the preparation, execution, 
and delivery of Warrants pursuant to this Paragraph 7. 
 
        (e) Register. The Company shall maintain, at its principal executive 
offices (or such other office or agency of the Company as it may designate by 
notice to the holder hereof), a register for this Warrant, in which the Company 
shall record the name and address of the person in whose name this Warrant has 
been issued, as well as the name and address of each transferee and each prior 
owner of this Warrant. 
 
        (f) Exercise or Transfer Without Registration. If, at the time of the 
surrender of this Warrant in connection with any exercise, transfer, or exchange 
of this Warrant, this Warrant (or, in the case of any exercise, the Warrant 
Shares issuable hereunder), shall not be registered under the Securities Act and 
under applicable state securities or blue sky laws, the Company may require, as 
a condition of allowing such exercise, transfer, or exchange, (i) that the 
holder or transferee of this Warrant, as the case may be, furnish to the Company 
a written opinion of counsel, which opinion and counsel are acceptable to the 
Company, to the effect that such exercise, transfer, or exchange may be made 
without registration under said Act and under applicable state securities or 
blue sky laws (ii) that the holder or transferee execute and deliver to the 
Company an investment letter in form and substance acceptable to the Company, 
(iii) that the transferee be an "accredited investor" as defined in Rule 501(a) 
promulgated under the Securities Act and (iv) that, upon such transfer, the 
transferee beneficially own Registrable Securities (as defined in the 
Registration Rights Agreement) having an aggregate Market Price of at least 
$500,000; provided that no such opinion, letter, status as an "accredited 
investor" or minimum Market Price shall be required in connection with a 
transfer pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act. No "Subject Holder" (as 
defined below) may sell or otherwise transfer Warrants, except (i) to the 
Company or to a stockholder or a group of stockholders who immediately prior to 
the sale control a majority of the Company's voting shares (a "Controlling 
Stockholder" or "Controlling Group", as applicable); (ii) to an affiliate of 
such holder; (iii) in connection with any merger, consolidation, reorganization 
or sale of more than 50% of the outstanding Common Stock of the Company (a 
"Reorganization"); (iv) in a registered public offering or a public sale 
pursuant to Rule 144 or other applicable exemption from the registration 
requirements of the Securities Act (or any successor rule or regulation); or (v) 
in a private sale (otherwise than to the Company, to a Controlling Stockholder 
or a Controlling Group, to an affiliate of such holder, or in a Reorganization), 
provided that the holder shall not sell or otherwise transfer during any ninety 
(90) day period a portion(s) of the Warrants which, if converted into Common 
Stock at the time of the transfer, would represent, in the aggregate, beneficial 
ownership by the transferee(s) of more than 9.9% percent of the Common Stock 
then outstanding. Subject Holder means any holder who, but for the second 
paragraph of Section 1 hereof, would beneficially own 10% or more of the 
outstanding Common Stock of the Company. The first holder of this Warrant, by 
taking and holding the same, represents to the Company that such holder is 
acquiring this Warrant for investment and not with a view to the distribution 
thereof. 
 
     8. Registration Rights. The initial holder of this Warrant (and certain 
assignees thereof) is entitled to the benefit of such registration rights in 
respect of the Warrant Shares as are set forth in Section 2 of the 
Registration Rights Agreement. 
 
     9. Notices. All notices, requests, and other communications required or 
permitted to be given or delivered hereunder to the holder of this Warrant  
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shall be in writing, and shall be personally delivered, or shall be sent by 
certified or registered mail or by recognized overnight mail courier, postage 
prepaid and addressed, to such holder at the address shown for such holder on 
the books of the Company, or at such other address as shall have been furnished 
to the Company by notice from such holder. All notices, requests, and other 
communications required or permitted to be given or delivered hereunder to the 
Company shall be in writing, and shall be personally delivered, or shall be sent 
by certified or registered mail or by recognized overnight mail courier, postage 
prepaid and addressed, to the office of the Company at 333 Providence Highway, 
Norwood, Massachusetts 02062, Attention: Kathleen A. Carroll, Vice President, 
Finance and Administration, or at such other address as shall have been 
furnished to the holder of this Warrant by notice from the Company. Any such 
notice, request, or other communication may be sent by facsimile, but shall in 
such case be subsequently confirmed by a writing personally delivered or sent by 
certified or registered mail or by recognized overnight mail courier as provided 
above. All notices, requests, and other communications shall be deemed to have 
been given either at the time of the receipt thereof by the person entitled to 
receive such notice at the address of such person for purposes of this Paragraph 
9, or, if mailed by registered or certified mail or with a recognized overnight 
mail courier upon deposit with the United States Post Office or such overnight 
mail courier, if postage is prepaid and the mailing is properly addressed, as 
the case may be. 
 
     10. Governing Law. THIS WARRANT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED AND 
ENFORCED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE INTERNAL LAWS OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF 
MASSACHUSETTS WITHOUT REGARD TO THE BODY OF LAW CONTROLLING CONFLICTS OF LAW. 
 
     11. Miscellaneous. 
 
        (a) Amendments. This Warrant and any provision hereof may only be 
amended by an instrument in writing signed by the Company and the holder 
hereof. 
 
        (b) Descriptive Headings. The descriptive headings of the several 
paragraphs of this Warrant are inserted for purposes of reference only, and 
shall not affect the meaning or construction of any of the provisions hereof. 
 
        (c) Cashless Exercise. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 
contained in this Warrant, if the resale of the Warrant Shares by the holder is 
not then registered pursuant to an effective registration statement under the 
Securities Act, this Warrant may be exercised by presentation and surrender of 
this Warrant to the Company at its principal executive offices with a written 
notice of the holder's intention to effect a cashless exercise, including a 
calculation of the number of shares of Common Stock to be issued upon such 
exercise in accordance with the terms hereof (a "Cashless Exercise"). In the 
event of a Cashless Exercise, in lieu of paying the Exercise Price in cash, the 
holder shall surrender this Warrant for that number of shares of Common Stock 
determined by multiplying the number of Warrant Shares to which it would 
otherwise be entitled by a fraction, the numerator of which shall be the 
difference between the then current Market Price per share of the Common Stock 
and the Exercise Price, and the denominator of which shall be the then current 
Market Price per share of Common Stock. 
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     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to be signed by its 
duly authorized officer. 
 
IMMUNOGEN, INC. 
 
 
 
By: /s/ Kathleen A. Carroll 
    --------------------------------------------- 
Name: Kathleen A. Carroll 
      ------------------------------------------- 
Title: Vice President, Finance and Administration 
       ------------------------------------------ 
 
Agreed to and Accepted 
 
 
 
By:_______________________          , Initial Holder 
 
Dated as of August 1,1997 
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                           FORM OF EXERCISE AGREEMENT 
Dated:  ________, ____. 
 
To:_____________________________ 
 
     The undersigned, pursuant to the provisions set forth in the within 
Warrant, hereby agrees to purchase ________ shares of Common Stock covered by 
such Warrant, and makes payment herewith in full therefor at the price per share 
provided by such Warrant in cash or by certified or official bank check in the 
amount of, [or, if the resale of such Common Stock by the undersigned is not 
currently registered pursuant to an effective registration statement under the 
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, by surrender of securities issued by the 
Company (including a portion of the Warrant) having a market value (in the case 
of a portion of this Warrant, determined in accordance with Section 11(c) of the 
Warrant) equal to] $_________. Please issue a certificate or certificates for 
such shares of Common Stock in the name of and pay any cash for any fractional 
share to: 
 
 
Name:________________________________ 
 
 
 
Signature:___________________________ 
 
Address:_____________________________ 
 
        ----------------------------- 
 
 
 
Note: The above signature should correspond exactly with the name on the face of 
the within Warrant, and, if said number of shares of Common Stock shall not be 
all the shares purchasable under the within Warrant, a new Warrant is to be 
issued in the name of said undersigned covering the balance of the shares 
purchasable thereunder less any fraction of a share paid in cash. 
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                               FORM OF ASSIGNMENT 
     FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers 
all the rights of the undersigned under the within Warrant, with respect to 
the number of shares of Common Stock covered thereby set forth hereinbelow, 
to: 
Name of Assignee                   Address                      No. of Shares 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 , and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints as agent and attorney-in-fact 
to transfer said Warrant on the books of the within-named corporation, with full 
power of substitution in the premises. 
 
 
 Dated: _____________________, ____, 
 
 
 In the presence of 
 
- ------------------ 
 
 Name: ____________________________ 
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                                                                    Exhibit 10.2 
 
 
 
THIS WARRANT AND THE SHARES ISSUABLE UPON THE EXERCISE OF THIS WARRANT HAVE NOT 
BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED. EXCEPT AS 
OTHERWISE SET FORTH HEREIN OR IN A SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT DATED AS OF 
MARCH 15, 1996, NEITHER THIS WARRANT NOR ANY OF SUCH SHARES MAY BE SOLD, OFFERED 
FOR SALE, ASSIGNED, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF IN THE ABSENCE OF 
REGISTRATION UNDER SUCH ACT OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT 
REQUIRED UNDER SUCH ACT OR UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 UNDER SUCH ACT. ANY 
SUCH SALE, ASSIGNMENT OR TRANSFER MUST ALSO COMPLY WITH APPLICABLE STATE 
SECURITIES LAWS. 
 
Right to Purchase 52,909 Shares of Common Stock, par value $.01 per share 
 
                                 IMMUNOGEN, INC. 
                             STOCK PURCHASE WARRANT 
 
     THIS CERTIFIES THAT, for value received, Capital Ventures International or 
its registered assigns, is entitled to purchase from IMMUNOGEN, INC., a 
Massachusetts corporation (the "Company"), at any time or from time to time 
during the period specified in Paragraph 2 hereof, fifty-two thousand, nine 
hundred nine (52,909) fully paid and nonassessable shares of the Company's 
Common Stock, par value $.01 per share (the "Common Stock"), at an exercise 
price of $4.00 per share (the "Exercise Price"). The term "Warrant Shares", as 
used herein, refers to the shares of Common Stock purchasable hereunder. The 
Warrant Shares and the Exercise Price are subject to adjustment as provided in 
Paragraph 4 hereof. The term Warrants means this Warrant and the other warrants 
of the Company issued upon conversion of the Convertible Preferred Stock issued 
pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreement (as hereinafter defined), and as 
amended by a Letter Agreement (the "Letter Agreement") dated June 6, 1996. 
 
     This Warrant is subject to the following terms, provisions, and conditions: 
 
     1. Manner of Exercise; Issuance of Certificates; Payment for Shares. 
Subject to the provisions hereof, this Warrant may be exercised by the holder 
hereof, in whole or in part, by the surrender of this Warrant, together with a 
completed exercise agreement in the form attached hereto (the "Exercise 
Agreement"), to the Company during normal business hours on any business day at 
the Company's principal executive offices (or such other office or agency of the 
Company as it may designate by notice to the holder hereof), and upon (i) 
payment to the Company in cash, by certified or official bank check or by wire 
transfer for the account of the Company of the Exercise Price for the Warrant 
Shares specified in the Exercise Agreement or (ii) if the resale of the Warrant 
Shares by the holder is not then registered pursuant to an effective 
registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the 
"Securities Act"), delivery to the Company of a written notice of an election to 
effect a "Cashless Exercise" (as defined in Section 11(c) below) for the Warrant 
Shares specified in the Exercise Agreement. The Warrant Shares so purchased 
shall be deemed to be issued to the holder hereof or such holder's designee, as 
the record owner of such shares, as of the close of business on the date on 
which this Warrant shall have been surrendered, the completed Exercise Agreement 
shall have been delivered, and payment shall have been made for such shares as 
set forth above. Certificates for the Warrant Shares so purchased, representing 
the aggregate number of shares specified in the Exercise Agreement, shall be 
delivered to the holder hereof within a reasonable time, not exceeding three (3) 
business days, after this Warrant shall have been so exercised. The certificates 
so delivered shall be in such denominations as may be requested by the holder 
hereof and shall be registered in the name of such holder or such other name as 
shall be designated by such  
 
 
 
                                       1 
 



   2 
 
holder. If this Warrant shall have been exercised only in part, then, unless 
this Warrant has expired, the Company shall, at its expense, at the time of 
delivery of such certificates, deliver to the holder a new Warrant representing 
the number of shares with respect to which this Warrant shall not then have been 
exercised. 
 
     Notwithstanding anything in this Warrant to the contrary, in no event shall 
the Holder of this Warrant be entitled to exercise a number of Warrants (or 
portions thereof) in excess of the number of Warrants (or portions thereof) upon 
exercise of which the sum of (i) the number of shares of Common Stock 
beneficially owned by the Holder and its affiliates (other than shares of Common 
Stock which may be deemed beneficially owned through the ownership of the 
unexercised Warrants and portion of the unconverted Debentures (as defined 
below)) and (ii) the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of 
the Warrants (or portions thereof) with respect to which the determination 
described herein is being made, would result in beneficial ownership by the 
Holder and its affiliates of more than 9.9% of the outstanding shares of Common 
Stock. For purposes of the immediately preceding sentence, beneficial ownership 
shall be determined in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, as amended, and Regulation 13D-G thereunder, except as otherwise 
provided in clause (i) thereof. 
 
     2. Period of Exercise. This Warrant is exercisable at any time or from time 
to time on or after July 31, 1997 and before 5:00 p.m., New York City time on 
July 31, 2002 (the "Exercise Period"). 
 
     3. Certain Agreements of the Company. The Company hereby covenants and 
agrees as follows: 
 
        (a) Shares to be Fully Paid. All Warrant Shares will, upon issuance in 
accordance with the terms of this Warrant, be validly issued, fully paid, and 
nonassessable and free from all taxes, liens, and charges with respect to the 
issue thereof. 
 
        (b) Reservation of Shares. During the Exercise Period, the Company shall 
at all times have authorized, and reserved for the purpose of issuance upon 
exercise of this Warrant, a sufficient number of shares of Common Stock to 
provide for the exercise of this Warrant. 
 
        (c) Listing. The Company shall promptly secure the listing of the shares 
of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrant upon each national 
securities exchange or automated quotation system, if any, upon which shares of 
Common Stock are then listed (subject to official notice of issuance upon 
exercise of this Warrant) and shall maintain, so long as any other shares of 
Common Stock shall be so listed, such listing of all shares of Common Stock from 
time to time issuable upon the exercise of this Warrant; and the Company shall 
so list on each national securities exchange or automated quotation system, as 
the case may be, and shall maintain such listing of, any other shares of capital 
stock of the Company issuable upon the exercise of this Warrant if and so long 
as any shares of the same class shall be listed on such national securities 
exchange or automated quotation system. 
 
        (d) Certain Actions Prohibited. The Company will not, by amendment of 
its charter or through any reorganization, transfer of assets, consolidation, 
merger, dissolution, issue or sale of securities, or any other voluntary action, 
avoid or seek to avoid the observance or performance of any of the terms to be 
observed or performed by it hereunder, but will at all times in good faith 
assist in the carrying out of all the provisions of this Warrant and in the 
taking of all such action as may reasonably be requested by the holder of this 
Warrant in order to protect the exercise privilege of the holder of this Warrant 
against dilution or other impairment, consistent with  
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the tenor and purpose of this Warrant. Without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, the Company (i) will not increase the par value of any shares of 
Common Stock receivable upon the exercise of this Warrant above the Exercise 
Price then in effect, and (ii) will take all such actions as may be necessary or 
appropriate in order that the Company may validly and legally issue fully paid 
and nonassessable shares of Common Stock upon the exercise of this Warrant. 
 
        (e) Successors and Assigns. This Warrant will be binding upon any entity 
succeeding to the Company by merger, consolidation, or acquisition of all or 
substantially all the Company's assets. 
 
     4. Antidilution Provisions. During the Exercise Period, the Exercise 
Price and the number of Warrant Shares shall be subject to adjustment from 
time to time as provided in this Paragraph 4. 
 
     In the event that any adjustment of the Exercise Price as required herein 
results in a fraction of a cent, such Exercise Price shall be rounded up to the 
nearest cent. 
 
        (a) Adjustment of Exercise Price and Number of Shares upon Issuance of 
Common Stock. Except as otherwise provided in Paragraphs 4(c) and 4(e) hereof, 
if and whenever on or after the date of issuance of this Warrant, the Company 
issues or sells, or in accordance with Paragraph 4(b) hereof is deemed to have 
issued or sold, any shares of Common Stock for no consideration or for a 
consideration per share (before deduction of reasonable expenses or commissions 
or underwriting discounts or allowances in connection therewith) less than the 
Market Price (as hereinafter defined) on the date of issuance (a "Dilutive 
Issuance"), then immediately upon the Dilutive Issuance, the Exercise Price will 
be reduced to a price determined by multiplying the Exercise Price in effect 
immediately prior to the Dilutive Issuance by a fraction, (i) the numerator of 
which is an amount equal to the sum of (x) the number of shares of Common Stock 
Deemed Outstanding (as hereinafter defined) immediately prior to the Dilutive 
Issuance, plus (y) the aggregate consideration, calculated as set forth in 
Section 4(b) hereof, received by the Company upon such Dilutive Issuance, 
divided by the Market Price in effect immediately prior to the Dilutive 
Issuance, and (ii) the denominator of which is the total number of shares of 
Common Stock Deemed Outstanding immediately after the Dilutive Issuance. 
 
        (b) Effect on Exercise Price of Certain Events. For purposes of 
determining the adjusted Exercise Price under Paragraph 4(a) hereof, the 
following will be applicable: 
 
            (i) Issuance of Rights or Options. If the Company in any manner 
issues or grants any warrants, rights or options, whether or not immediately 
exercisable, to subscribe for or to purchase Common Stock or other securities 
convertible into or exchangeable for Common Stock ("Convertible Securities") 
(such warrants, rights and options to purchase Common Stock or Convertible 
Securities are hereinafter referred to as "Options") and the price per share for 
which Common Stock is issuable upon the exercise of such Options is less than 
the Market Price on the date of issuance, then the maximum total number of 
shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of all such Options will, as 
of the date of the issuance or grant of such Options, be deemed to be 
outstanding and to have been issued and sold by the Company for such price per 
share. For purposes of the preceding sentence, the "price per share for which 
Common Stock is issuable upon the exercise of such Options" is determined by 
dividing (i) the total amount, if any, received or receivable by the Company as 
consideration for the issuance or granting of all such Options, plus the minimum 
aggregate amount of additional consideration, if any, payable to the Company 
upon the exercise of all such Options, plus, in the case of  
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Convertible Securities issuable upon the exercise of such Options, the minimum 
aggregate amount of additional consideration payable upon the conversion or 
exchange thereof at the time such Convertible Securities first become 
convertible or exchangeable, by (ii) the maximum total number of shares of 
Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of all such Options (assuming full 
conversion of Convertible Securities, if applicable). No further adjustment to 
the Exercise Price will be made upon the actual issuance of such Common Stock 
upon the exercise of such Options or upon the conversion or exchange of 
Convertible Securities issuable upon exercise of such Options. 
 
            (ii) Issuance of Convertible Securities. If the Company in any 
manner issues or sells any Convertible Securities, whether or not immediately 
convertible (other than where the same are issuable upon the exercise of 
Options) and the price per share for which Common Stock is issuable upon such 
conversion or exchange is less than the Market Price on the date of issuance, 
then the maximum total number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon the 
conversion or exchange of all such Convertible Securities will, as of the date 
of the issuance of such Convertible Securities, be deemed to be outstanding and 
to have been issued and sold by the Company for such price per share. For the 
purposes of the preceding sentence, the "price per share for which Common Stock 
is issuable upon such conversion or exchange" is determined by dividing (i) the 
total amount, if any, received or receivable by the Company as consideration for 
the issuance or sale of all such Convertible Securities, plus the minimum 
aggregate amount of additional consideration, if any, payable to the Company 
upon the conversion or exchange thereof at the time such Convertible Securities 
first become convertible or exchangeable, by (ii) the maximum total number of 
shares of Common Stock issuable upon the conversion or exchange of all such 
Convertible Securities. No further adjustment to the Exercise Price will be made 
upon the actual issuance of such Common Stock upon conversion or exchange of 
such Convertible Securities. 
 
            (iii) Change in Option Price or Conversion Rate. If there is a 
change at any time in (i) the amount of additional consideration payable to the 
Company upon the exercise of any Options; (ii) the amount of additional 
consideration, if any, payable to the Company upon the conversion or exchange of 
any Convertible Securities; or (iii) the rate at which any Convertible 
Securities are convertible into or exchangeable for Common Stock (other than 
under or by reason of provisions designed to protect against dilution), the 
Exercise Price in effect at the time of such change will be readjusted to the 
Exercise Price which would have been in effect at such time had such Options or 
Convertible Securities still outstanding provided for such changed additional 
consideration or changed conversion rate, as the case may be, at the time 
initially granted, issued or sold. 
 
            (iv) Treatment of Expired Options and Unexercised Convertible 
Securities. If, in any case, the total number of shares of Common Stock issuable 
upon exercise of any Option or upon conversion or exchange of any Convertible 
Securities is not, in fact, issued and the rights to exercise such Option or to 
convert or exchange such Convertible Securities shall have expired or 
terminated, the Exercise Price then in effect will be readjusted to the Exercise 
Price which would have been in effect at the time of such expiration or 
termination had such Option or Convertible Securities, to the extent outstanding 
immediately prior to such expiration or termination (other than in respect of 
the actual number of shares of Common Stock issued upon exercise or conversion 
thereof), never been issued. 
 
            (v) Calculation of Consideration Received. If any Common Stock, 
Options or Convertible Securities are issued, granted or sold for cash, the 
consideration received therefor for purposes of this Warrant will be the amount 
received by the Company therefor, before deduction of reasonable commissions, 
underwriting discounts or allowances or other reasonable expenses  
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paid or incurred by the Company in connection with such issuance, grant or sale. 
In case any Common Stock, Options or Convertible Securities are issued or sold 
for a consideration part or all of which shall be other than cash, the amount of 
the consideration other than cash received by the Company will be the fair value 
of such consideration, except where such consideration consists of securities, 
in which case the amount of consideration received by the Company will be the 
Market Price thereof as of the date of receipt. In case any Common Stock, 
Options or Convertible Securities are issued in connection with any merger or 
consolidation in which the Company is the surviving corporation, the amount of 
consideration therefor will be deemed to be the fair value of such portion of 
the net assets and business of the non-surviving corporation as is attributable 
to such Common Stock, Options or, Convertible Securities, as the case may be. 
The fair value of any consideration other than cash or securities will be 
determined in good faith by the Board of Directors of the Company. 
 
            (vi) Exceptions to Adjustment of Exercise Price. No adjustment to 
the Exercise Price will be made (i) upon the exercise of any warrants, options 
or convertible securities issued and outstanding on the March 4, 1996; (ii) upon 
the grant or exercise of any stock or options which may hereafter be granted or 
exercised under any employee benefit plan of the Company now existing or to be 
implemented in the future, so long as the issuance of such stock or options is 
approved by a majority of the independent members of the Board of Directors of 
the Company or a majority of the members of a committee of independent directors 
established for such purpose; or (iii) upon the exercise of the Warrants or 
conversion of the Debenture. 
 
        (c) Subdivision or Combination of Common Stock. If the Company at any 
time subdivides (by any stock split, stock dividend, recapitalization, 
reorganization, reclassification or otherwise) the shares of Common Stock 
acquirable hereunder into a greater number of shares, then, after the date of 
record for effecting such subdivision, the Exercise Price in effect immediately 
prior to such subdivision will be proportionately reduced. If the Company at any 
time combines (by reverse stock split, recapitalization, reorganization, 
reclassification or otherwise) the shares of Common Stock acquirable hereunder 
into a smaller number of shares, then, after the date of record for effecting 
such combination, the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to such 
combination will be proportionately increased. 
 
        (d) Adjustment in Number of Shares. Upon each adjustment of the Exercise 
Price pursuant to the provisions of this Paragraph 4, the number of shares of 
Common Stock issuable upon exercise of this Warrant shall be adjusted by 
multiplying a number equal to the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to 
such adjustment by the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise 
of this Warrant immediately prior to such adjustment and dividing the product so 
obtained by the adjusted Exercise Price. 
 
        (e) Consolidation, Merger or Sale. In case of any consolidation of the 
Company with, or merger of the Company into any other corporation, or in case of 
any sale or conveyance of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company 
other than in connection with a plan of complete liquidation of the Company, 
then as a condition of such consolidation, merger or sale or conveyance, 
adequate provision will be made whereby the holder of this Warrant will have the 
right to acquire and receive upon exercise of this Warrant in lieu of the shares 
of Common Stock immediately theretofore acquirable upon the exercise of this 
Warrant, such shares of stock, securities or assets as may be issued or payable 
with respect to or in exchange for the number of shares of Common Stock 
immediately theretofore acquirable and receivable upon exercise of this Warrant 
had such consolidation, merger or sale or conveyance not taken place. In any 
such case, the Company will make appropriate provision to insure that the 
provisions of this Paragraph 4 hereof will thereafter be applicable  
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as nearly as may be in relation to any shares of stock or securities thereafter 
deliverable upon the exercise of this Warrant. The Company will not effect any 
consolidation, merger or sale or conveyance unless prior to the consummation 
thereof, the successor corporation (if other than the Company) assumes by 
written instrument the obligations under this Paragraph 4 and the obligations to 
deliver to the holder of this Warrant such shares of stock, securities or assets 
as, in accordance with the foregoing provisions, the holder may be entitled to 
acquire. 
 
        (f) Distribution of Assets. In case the Company shall declare or make 
any distribution of its assets to holders of Common Stock as a partial 
liquidating dividend, by way of return of capital or otherwise, then, after the 
date of record for determining stockholders entitled to such distribution, but 
prior to the date of distribution, the holder of this Warrant shall be entitled 
upon exercise of this Warrant for the purchase of any or all of the shares of 
Common Stock subject hereto, to receive the amount of such assets which would 
have been payable to the holder had such holder been the holder of such shares 
of Common Stock on the record date for the determination of stockholders 
entitled to such distribution. 
 
        (g) Notice of Adjustment. Upon the occurrence of any event which 
requires any adjustment of the Exercise Price, then, and in each such case, the 
Company shall give notice thereof to the holder of this Warrant, which notice 
shall state the Exercise Price resulting from such adjustment and the increase 
or decrease in the number of Warrant Shares purchasable at such price upon 
exercise, setting forth in reasonable detail the method of calculation and the 
facts upon which such calculation is based. Such calculation shall be certified 
by the chief financial officer of the Company. 
 
        (h) Minimum Adjustment of Exercise Price. No adjustment of the Exercise 
Price shall be made in an amount of less than 1% of the Exercise Price in effect 
at the time such adjustment is otherwise required to be made, but any such 
lesser adjustment shall be carried forward and shall be made at the time and 
together with the next subsequent adjustment which, together with any 
adjustments so carried forward, shall amount to not less than 1% of such 
Exercise Price. 
 
        (i) No Fractional Shares. No fractional shares of Common Stock are to be 
issued upon the exercise of this Warrant, but the Company shall pay a cash 
adjustment in respect of any fractional share which would otherwise be issuable 
in an amount equal to the same fraction of the Market Price of a share of Common 
Stock on the date of such exercise. 
 
        (j) Other Notices. In case at any time: 
 
            (i) the Company shall declare any dividend upon the Common Stock 
payable in shares of stock of any class or make any other distribution (other 
than dividends or distributions payable in cash out of retained earnings) to the 
holders of the Common Stock; 
 
            (ii) the Company shall offer for subscription pro rata to the 
holders of the Common Stock any additional shares of stock of any class or other 
rights; 
 
            (iii) there shall be any capital reorganization of the Company, or 
reclassification of the Common Stock, or consolidation or merger of the Company 
with or into, or sale of all or substantially all its assets to, another 
corporation or entity; or 
 
            (iv) there shall be a voluntary or involuntary dissolution, 
liquidation or winding-up of the Company; then, in each such case, the Company 
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shall give to the holder of this Warrant (a) notice of the date on which the 
books of the Company shall close or a record shall be taken for determining the 
holders of Common Stock entitled to receive any such dividend, distribution, or 
subscription rights or for determining the holders of Common Stock entitled to 
vote in respect of any such reorganization, reclassification, consolidation, 
merger, sale, dissolution, liquidation or winding-up and (b) in the case of any 
such reorganization, reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, dissolution, 
liquidation or winding-up, notice of the date (or, if not then known, a 
reasonable approximation thereof by the Company) when the same shall take place. 
Such notice shall also specify the date on which the holders of Common Stock 
shall be entitled to receive such dividend, distribution, or subscription rights 
or to exchange their Common Stock for stock or other securities or property 
deliverable upon such reorganization, reclassification, consolidation, merger, 
sale, dissolution, liquidation, or winding-up, as the case may be. Such notice 
shall be given at least 30 days prior to the record date or the date on which 
the Company's books are closed in respect thereto. Failure to give any such 
notice or any defect therein shall not affect the validity of the proceedings 
referred to in clauses (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv) above. 
 
        (k) Certain Events. If any event occurs of the type contemplated by the 
adjustment provisions of this Paragraph 4 but not expressly provided for by such 
provisions, the Company will give notice of such event as provided in Paragraph 
4(g) hereof, and the Company's Board of Directors will make an appropriate 
adjustment in the Exercise Price and the number of shares of Common Stock 
acquirable upon exercise of this Warrant so that the rights of the Holder shall 
be neither enhanced nor diminished by such event. 
 
        (l) Certain Definitions. 
 
            (i) "Common Stock Deemed Outstanding" shall mean the number of 
shares of Common Stock actually outstanding (not including shares of Common 
Stock held in the treasury of the Company), plus (x) pursuant to Paragraph 
4(b)(i) hereof, the maximum total number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon 
the exercise of Options, as of the date of such issuance or grant of such 
Options, if any, and (y) pursuant to Paragraph 4(b)(ii) hereof, the maximum 
total number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion or exchange of 
Convertible Securities, as of the date of issuance of such Convertible 
Securities, if any. 
 
            (ii) "Market Price," as of any date, (i) means the average of the 
last reported sale prices for the shares of Common Stock as reported by the 
National Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotation National Market 
System ("NASDAQ-NMS") for the five (5) trading days immediately preceding such 
date, or (ii) if the NASDAQ-NMS is not the principal trading market for the 
shares of Common Stock, the average of the last reported sale prices on the 
principal trading market for the Common Stock during the same period, or (iii) 
if market value cannot be calculated as of such date on any of the foregoing 
bases, the Market Price shall be the average fair market value as reasonably 
determined in good faith by the Board of Directors of the Company. The manner of 
determining the Market Price of the Common Stock set forth in the foregoing 
definition shall apply with respect to any other security in respect of which a 
determination as to market value must be made hereunder. 
 
            (iii) "Common Stock," for purposes of this Paragraph 4, includes the 
Common Stock, par value $.01 per share, and any additional class of stock of the 
Company having no preference as to dividends or distributions on liquidation, 
provided that the shares purchasable pursuant to this Warrant shall include only 
shares of Common Stock, par value $.01 per share, in respect of which this 
Warrant is exercisable, or shares resulting from any subdivision or combination 
of such Common Stock, or in the case of any  
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reorganization, reclassification, consolidation, merger, or sale of the 
character referred to in Paragraph 4(e) hereof, the stock or other securities or 
property provided for in such Paragraph. 
 
     5. Issue Tax. The issuance of certificates for Warrant Shares upon the 
exercise of this Warrant shall be made without charge to the holder of this 
Warrant or such shares for any issuance tax or other costs in respect thereof, 
provided that the Company shall not be required to pay any tax which may be 
payable in respect of any transfer involved in the issuance and delivery of any 
certificate in a name other than the holder of this Warrant. 
 
     6. No Rights or Liabilities as a Shareholder. This Warrant shall not 
entitle the holder hereof to any voting rights or other rights as a shareholder 
of the Company. No provision of this Warrant, in the absence of affirmative 
action by the holder hereof to purchase Warrant Shares, and no mere enumeration 
herein of the rights or privileges of the holder hereof, shall give rise to any 
liability of such holder for the Exercise Price or as a shareholder of the 
Company, whether such liability is asserted by the Company or by creditors of 
the Company. 
 
     7. Transfer, Exchange, and Replacement of Warrant. 
 
        (a) Restriction on Transfer. This Warrant and the rights granted to the 
holder hereof are transferable, in whole or in part, upon surrender of this 
Warrant, together with a properly executed assignment in the form attached 
hereto, at the office or agency of the Company referred to in Paragraph 7(e) 
below, provided, however, that any transfer or assignment shall be subject to 
the conditions set forth in Paragraph 7(f) hereof and to the applicable 
provisions of the Securities Purchase Agreement and as amended by the Letter 
Agreement. Until due presentment for registration of transfer on the books of 
the Company, the Company may treat the registered holder hereof as the owner and 
holder hereof for all purposes, and the Company shall not be affected by any 
notice to the contrary. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained 
herein, the registration rights described in Paragraph 8 are assignable only in 
accordance with the provisions of that certain Registration Rights Agreement, 
dated as of March 15, 1996, by and among the Company and the other signatories 
thereto (the "Registration Rights Agreement"). 
 
        (b) Warrant Exchangeable for Different Denominations. This Warrant is 
exchangeable, upon the surrender hereof by the holder hereof at the office or 
agency of the Company referred to in Paragraph 7(e) below, for new Warrants of 
like tenor representing in the aggregate the right to purchase the number of 
shares of Common Stock which may be purchased hereunder, each of such new 
Warrants to represent the right to purchase such number of shares as shall be 
designated by the holder hereof at the time of such surrender. 
 
        (c) Replacement of Warrant. Upon receipt of evidence reasonably 
satisfactory to the Company of the loss, theft, destruction, or mutilation of 
this Warrant and, in the case of any such loss, theft, or destruction, upon 
delivery of an indemnity agreement reasonably satisfactory in form and amount to 
the Company, or, in the case of any such mutilation, upon surrender and 
cancellation of this Warrant, the Company, at its expense, will execute and 
deliver, in lieu thereof, a new Warrant of like tenor. 
 
        (d) Cancellation; Payment of Expenses. Upon the surrender of this 
Warrant in connection with any transfer, exchange, or replacement as provided in 
this Paragraph 7, this Warrant shall be promptly canceled by the Company. The 
Company shall pay all taxes (other than securities transfer taxes) and all other 
expenses (other than legal expenses, if any, incurred by the Holder or 
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transferees) and charges payable in connection with the preparation, execution, 
and delivery of Warrants pursuant to this Paragraph 7. 
 
        (e) Register. The Company shall maintain, at its principal executive 
offices (or such other office or agency of the Company as it may designate by 
notice to the holder hereof), a register for this Warrant, in which the Company 
shall record the name and address of the person in whose name this Warrant has 
been issued, as well as the name and address of each transferee and each prior 
owner of this Warrant. 
 
        (f) Exercise or Transfer Without Registration. If, at the time of the 
surrender of this Warrant in connection with any exercise, transfer, or exchange 
of this Warrant, this Warrant (or, in the case of any exercise, the Warrant 
Shares issuable hereunder), shall not be registered under the Securities Act and 
under applicable state securities or blue sky laws, the Company may require, as 
a condition of allowing such exercise, transfer, or exchange, (i) that the 
holder or transferee of this Warrant, as the case may be, furnish to the Company 
a written opinion of counsel, which opinion and counsel are acceptable to the 
Company, to the effect that such exercise, transfer, or exchange may be made 
without registration under said Act and under applicable state securities or 
blue sky laws (ii) that the holder or transferee execute and deliver to the 
Company an investment letter in form and substance acceptable to the Company, 
(iii) that the transferee be an "accredited investor" as defined in Rule 501(a) 
promulgated under the Securities Act and (iv) that, upon such transfer, the 
transferee beneficially own Registrable Securities (as defined in the 
Registration Rights Agreement) having an aggregate Market Price of at least 
$500,000; provided that no such opinion, letter, status as an "accredited 
investor" or minimum Market Price shall be required in connection with a 
transfer pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act. No "Subject Holder" (as 
defined below) may sell or otherwise transfer Warrants, except (i) to the 
Company or to a stockholder or a group of stockholders who immediately prior to 
the sale control a majority of the Company's voting shares (a "Controlling 
Stockholder" or "Controlling Group", as applicable); (ii) to an affiliate of 
such holder; (iii) in connection with any merger, consolidation, reorganization 
or sale of more than 50% of the outstanding Common Stock of the Company (a 
"Reorganization"); (iv) in a registered public offering or a public sale 
pursuant to Rule 144 or other applicable exemption from the registration 
requirements of the Securities Act (or any successor rule or regulation); or (v) 
in a private sale (otherwise than to the Company, to a Controlling Stockholder 
or a Controlling Group, to an affiliate of such holder, or in a Reorganization), 
provided that the holder shall not sell or otherwise transfer during any ninety 
(90) day period a portion(s) of the Warrants which, if converted into Common 
Stock at the time of the transfer, would represent, in the aggregate, beneficial 
ownership by the transferee(s) of more than 9.9% percent of the Common Stock 
then outstanding. Subject Holder means any holder who, but for the second 
paragraph of Section 1 hereof, would beneficially own 10% or more of the 
outstanding Common Stock of the Company. The first holder of this Warrant, by 
taking and holding the same, represents to the Company that such holder is 
acquiring this Warrant for investment and not with a view to the distribution 
thereof. 
 
     8. Registration Rights. The initial holder of this Warrant (and certain 
assignees thereof) is entitled to the benefit of such registration rights in 
respect of the Warrant Shares as are set forth in Section 2 of the 
Registration Rights Agreement. 
 
     9. Notices. All notices, requests, and other communications required or 
permitted to be given or delivered hereunder to the holder of this Warrant  
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shall be in writing, and shall be personally delivered, or shall be sent by 
certified or registered mail or by recognized overnight mail courier, postage 
prepaid and addressed, to such holder at the address shown for such holder on 
the books of the Company, or at such other address as shall have been furnished 
to the Company by notice from such holder. All notices, requests, and other 
communications required or permitted to be given or delivered hereunder to the 
Company shall be in writing, and shall be personally delivered, or shall be sent 
by certified or registered mail or by recognized overnight mail courier, postage 
prepaid and addressed, to the office of the Company at 333 Providence Highway, 
Norwood, Massachusetts 02062, Attention: Kathleen A. Carroll, Vice President, 
Finance and Administration, or at such other address as shall have been 
furnished to the holder of this Warrant by notice from the Company. Any such 
notice, request, or other communication may be sent by facsimile, but shall in 
such case be subsequently confirmed by a writing personally delivered or sent by 
certified or registered mail or by recognized overnight mail courier as provided 
above. All notices, requests, and other communications shall be deemed to have 
been given either at the time of the receipt thereof by the person entitled to 
receive such notice at the address of such person for purposes of this Paragraph 
9, or, if mailed by registered or certified mail or with a recognized overnight 
mail courier upon deposit with the United States Post Office or such overnight 
mail courier, if postage is prepaid and the mailing is properly addressed, as 
the case may be. 
 
     10. Governing Law. THIS WARRANT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED AND 
ENFORCED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE INTERNAL LAWS OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF 
MASSACHUSETTS WITHOUT REGARD TO THE BODY OF LAW CONTROLLING CONFLICTS OF LAW. 
 
     11. Miscellaneous. 
 
        (a) Amendments. This Warrant and any provision hereof may only be 
amended by an instrument in writing signed by the Company and the holder 
hereof. 
 
        (b) Descriptive Headings. The descriptive headings of the several 
paragraphs of this Warrant are inserted for purposes of reference only, and 
shall not affect the meaning or construction of any of the provisions hereof. 
 
        (c) Cashless Exercise. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 
contained in this Warrant, if the resale of the Warrant Shares by the holder is 
not then registered pursuant to an effective registration statement under the 
Securities Act, this Warrant may be exercised by presentation and surrender of 
this Warrant to the Company at its principal executive offices with a written 
notice of the holder's intention to effect a cashless exercise, including a 
calculation of the number of shares of Common Stock to be issued upon such 
exercise in accordance with the terms hereof (a "Cashless Exercise"). In the 
event of a Cashless Exercise, in lieu of paying the Exercise Price in cash, the 
holder shall surrender this Warrant for that number of shares of Common Stock 
determined by multiplying the number of Warrant Shares to which it would 
otherwise be entitled by a fraction, the numerator of which shall be the 
difference between the then current Market Price per share of the Common Stock 
and the Exercise Price, and the denominator of which shall be the then current 
Market Price per share of Common Stock. 
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     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to be signed by its 
duly authorized officer. 
 
IMMUNOGEN, INC. 
 
 
 
By: /s/ Kathleen A. Carroll 
    --------------------------------------------- 
Name: Kathleen A. Carroll 
      ------------------------------------------- 
Title: Vice President, Finance and Administration 
       ------------------------------------------ 
 
Agreed to and Accepted 
 
 
 
By:_______________________          , Initial Holder 
 
Dated as of July 31,1997 
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                           FORM OF EXERCISE AGREEMENT 
Dated:  ________, ____. 
 
To:_____________________________ 
 
     The undersigned, pursuant to the provisions set forth in the within 
Warrant, hereby agrees to purchase ________ shares of Common Stock covered by 
such Warrant, and makes payment herewith in full therefor at the price per share 
provided by such Warrant in cash or by certified or official bank check in the 
amount of, [or, if the resale of such Common Stock by the undersigned is not 
currently registered pursuant to an effective registration statement under the 
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, by surrender of securities issued by the 
Company (including a portion of the Warrant) having a market value (in the case 
of a portion of this Warrant, determined in accordance with Section 11(c) of the 
Warrant) equal to] $_________. Please issue a certificate or certificates for 
such shares of Common Stock in the name of and pay any cash for any fractional 
share to: 
 
 
Name:________________________________ 
 
 
 
Signature:___________________________ 
 
Address:_____________________________ 
 
        ----------------------------- 
 
 
Note: The above signature should correspond exactly with the name on the face of 
the within Warrant, and, if said number of shares of Common Stock shall not be 
all the shares purchasable under the within Warrant, a new Warrant is to be 
issued in the name of said undersigned covering the balance of the shares 
purchasable thereunder less any fraction of a share paid in cash. 
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                               FORM OF ASSIGNMENT 
     FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers 
all the rights of the undersigned under the within Warrant, with respect to 
the number of shares of Common Stock covered thereby set forth hereinbelow, 
to: 
Name of Assignee                   Address                      No. of Shares 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 , and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints as agent and attorney-in-fact 
to transfer said Warrant on the books of the within-named corporation, with full 
power of substitution in the premises. 
 
 
Dated: _____________________, ____, 
 
 
In the presence of 
 
- ------------------- 
 
Name: ____________________________ 
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                                                                    Exhibit 10.5 
 
 
THE SECURITIES EVIDENCED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES 
ACT OF 1933. THESE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED BY ANY 
PERSON UNLESS (1) EITHER (A) A REGISTRATION STATEMENT WITH RESPECT TO SUCH 
SECURITIES SHALL BE EFFECTIVE UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, OR (B) THE 
COMPANY SHALL HAVE RECEIVED AN OPINION OF COUNSEL SATISFACTORY TO IT THAT AN 
EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER SUCH ACT IS THEN AVAILABLE, AND (2) THERE 
SHALL HAVE BEEN COMPLIANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. 
 
                               WARRANT CERTIFICATE 
 
                              DATED October 6, 1997 
 
                   WARRANT TO PURCHASE SHARES OF COMMON STOCK 
 
                               OF IMMUNOGEN, INC. 
 
No. W-97-2                                    For the Purchase of 
                                              Shares of Common Stock 
 
       IMMUNOGEN, INC., a Massachusetts corporation (the "Company"), hereby 
certifies that, for value received, BioChem Pharma (International) Inc., a 
corporation organized and existing under the laws of Quebec, or its registered 
assigns (the "Holder"), is the registered owner of a warrant (this "Warrant") to 
purchase from the Company a number of shares of the Common Stock, $.01 par value 
per share, of the Company (the "Common Stock," each such share being a "Warrant 
Share" and all such shares being the "Warrant Shares") determined by dividing 
$843,000 by the average of the Per Share Market Value (as defined in Section 10) 
for the five (5) consecutive trading days preceding the Exercise Date (the 
"Exercise Price"), as adjusted from time to time as provided in Section 7 and 
except as provided in Section 3(f). This Warrant may be exercised at any time or 
from time to time on or after July 31, 2000 (the "Initial Exercise Date") until 
and including July 31, 2002 (the "Expiration Date"), all subject to the 
following terms and conditions: 
 
1.     REGISTRATION OF WARRANT. The Company shall register this Warrant, upon 
records to be maintained by the Company for that purpose, in the name of the 
record Holder of this Warrant from time to time. The Company may deem and treat 
the registered Holder of this Warrant as the absolute owner thereof for the 
purpose of any exercise thereof or any distribution to the Holder thereof, and 
for all other purposes, and the Company shall not be affected by the notice to 
the contrary. 
 
 
 
 
 



   2 
 
 
2.     REGISTRATION OF TRANSFERS AND EXCHANGES. 
 
       a.     Subject to Section 2(c) below, the Company shall register the 
transfer of this Warrant upon records to be maintained by the Company for that 
purpose, upon surrender of this Warrant Certificate, with the Form of Assignment 
attached hereto duly completed and signed, to the Company at the office 
specified in or pursuant to Section 3(c). Upon any such registration of 
transfer, a new Warrant Certificate, in substantially the form of this Warrant 
Certificate, evidencing the portion of this Warrant so transferred, shall be 
issued to the transferee and a new Warrant Certificate, in similar form, 
evidencing the remaining portion of this Warrant not so transferred, if any, 
shall be issued to the then registered Holder hereof. 
 
       b.     This Warrant Certificate is exchangeable, upon the surrender 
hereof by the Holder hereof at the office of the Company specified in or 
pursuant to Section 3(c), for new Warrant Certificates, in substantially the 
form of this Warrant Certificate, evidencing in the aggregate the right to 
purchase the number of Warrant Shares which may then be purchased hereunder, 
each of such new Warrant Certificates to be dated the date of such exchange and 
to represent the right to purchase such number of Warrant Shares as shall be 
designated by said Holder hereof at the time of such surrender. 
 
       c.     Each Holder of this Warrant acknowledges that this Warrant is 
subject to restrictions on transfer set forth in a Stock Purchase Agreement (the 
"Stock Purchase Agreement"), dated as of July 31, 1997 among BioChem Pharma 
(International) Inc., the Company and Apoptosis Technology, Inc. ("ATI"), and 
agrees to be bound by the restrictions on the sale, pledge, assignment and 
transfer of the warrants discussed therein. Each Holder of this Warrant 
acknowledges that this Warrant and the Warrant Shares have not been registered 
under the Securities Act of 1933, as now in force or hereafter amended, or any 
successor legislation (the "Act"), and agrees not to sell, pledge, distribute, 
offer for sale, transfer or otherwise dispose of this Warrant or any Warrant 
Shares issued upon the exercise of this Warrant in the absence of (a) an 
effective registration statement under the Act as to this Warrant or the Warrant 
Shares and registration or qualification of this Warrant or the Warrant Shares 
under any applicable Blue Sky or state securities law then in effect, or (b) an 
opinion of counsel, satisfactory to the Company, that such registration and 
qualification are not required under the Act. 
 
       Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Company shall be 
under no obligation to issue the Warrant Shares covered by such exercise unless 
and until the Holder shall have executed an investment letter in form and 
substance satisfactory to the Company, including a warranty at the time of such 
exercise, that the Holder is acquiring the Warrant Shares for its own account, 
for investment and not with a view to, or for sale in connection with, the 
distribution of any such Warrant Shares, in which event the Holder shall be 
bound by the provisions of the following legend or a legend in substantially 
similar form which shall be endorsed upon the certificate(s) evidencing the 
Warrant Shares issued pursuant to such exercise: 
 
       "THE SECURITIES EVIDENCED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 
       SECURITIES ACT OF 1933. THESE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE SOLD OR OTHERWISE 
       TRANSFERRED BY ANY PERSON UNLESS (1) EITHER 
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       (A) A REGISTRATION STATEMENT WITH RESPECT TO SUCH SECURITIES SHALL BE 
       EFFECTIVE UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, OR (B) THE COMPANY SHALL HAVE 
       RECEIVED AN OPINION OF COUNSEL SATISFACTORY TO IT THAT AN EXEMPTION FROM 
       REGISTRATION UNDER SUCH ACT IS THEN AVAILABLE, AND (2) THERE SHALL HAVE 
       BEEN COMPLIANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS." 
 
       In addition, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the 
Company may delay issuance of the Warrant Shares until the completion of any 
action or the receipt of any consent, which the Company deems necessary under 
any applicable law (including, without limitation, state securities or "blue 
sky" laws). 
 
3.     DURATION AND EXERCISE OF WARRANT. 
 
       a.     This Warrant shall be exercisable by the Holder on any business 
day before 5:00 P.M., New York time, at any time and from time to time on or 
after the Initial Exercise Date to and including the Expiration Date. At 5:00 
P.M., New York time, on the Expiration Date, this Warrant shall become void and 
of no value. 
 
       b.     Subject to the limitations set forth in Sections 3(c) and 3(f) and 
to the other provisions of this Warrant Certificate, including adjustments to 
(i) the number of Warrant Shares issuable on the exercise of this Warrant and 
(ii) the Exercise Price pursuant to Section 7, the Holder shall have the right 
to purchase from the Company (and the Company shall be obligated to issue and 
sell to the Holder) at the Exercise Price, fully paid, non-assessable Warrant 
Shares. 
 
       c.     Subject to Sections 2(b), 2(c), 4 and 8, upon surrender of this 
Warrant Certificate, with the Form of Election to Purchase attached hereto duly 
completed and signed, to the Company at its office at 333 Providence Highway, 
Norwood, Massachusetts, 02062 Attention: Treasurer, or at such other address as 
the Company may specify in writing to the then registered Holder of this 
Warrant, and upon payment of the Exercise Price multiplied by the number of 
Warrant Shares then issuable upon exercise of this Warrant (i) in lawful money 
of the United States of America or (ii) as provided in Section 3(e) below, all 
as specified by the Holder of this Warrant Certificate in the Form of Election 
to Purchase, the Company shall promptly issue and cause to be delivered to or 
upon the written order of the registered Holder of this Warrant, and in such 
name or names as such registered Holder may designate, a certificate for the 
Warrant Shares issued upon such exercise of this Warrant. Any person so 
designated to be named therein shall be deemed to have become Holder of record 
of such Warrant Shares as of the Date of Exercise of this Warrant. 
 
       The "Date of Exercise" of this Warrant means the date on which the 
Company shall have received (i) this Warrant Certificate, with the Form of 
Election to Purchase attached hereto appropriately completed and duly signed, 
and (ii) payment of the Exercise Price' for this Warrant. 
 
       d.     The Warrant evidenced by this Warrant Certificate shall be 
exercisable, either in its entirety or, from time to time, for part of the 
number of Warrant Shares evidenced by this 
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Warrant Certificate. If less than all of the Warrant Shares evidenced by this 
Warrant Certificate are exercised at any time, the Company shall issue, at its 
expense, a new Warrant Certificate, in substantially the form of this Warrant 
Certificate, for the remaining number of Warrant Shares evidenced by this 
Warrant Certificate. 
 
       e.     In lieu of the delivery of the full Exercise Price in lawful money 
of the United States of America as described in subsection 3(c) above, all or 
part of the payment due upon exercise of this Warrant may be made, at the option 
of the Holder, by surrendering to the Company shares of Series B Convertible 
Preferred Stock of ATI ("ATI Preferred Stock"), such that for each $1,000 
otherwise payable in cash, the Holder shall surrender to the Company one share 
ATI Preferred Stock. 
 
       f.     If on the Exercise Date applicable to any exercise of this 
Warrant, (i) the Common Stock is then listed for trading on the Nasdaq National 
Market, (ii) the Exercise Price then in effect is less than $1.237, (iii) the 
Company has not previously obtained Stockholder Approval (as defined below), 
(iv) the Company has not obtained a waiver of the Stockholder Approval 
requirement of Rule 4460(i) of the Nasdaq Stock Market (or any successor or 
replacement provision thereof) ("Rule 4460(i)"), and (v) the Company is required 
to obtain Stockholder Approval under Rule 4460(i) as a condition to continued 
listing on the Nasdaq Stock Market, then the Company shall issue to the Holder a 
number of Common Shares which, together with all Common Shares previously issued 
upon exercise of this Warrant or the other warrants issued to the Holder 
pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement (the "Related Warrants"), will not 
exceed 4,355,950 (the "Issuable Maximum"). If the Holder is not able to exercise 
this Warrant in full because the number of shares otherwise issuable upon 
exercise of this Warrant exceeds the Issuable Maximum, the Holder shall be 
entitled to exercise this Warrant for shares of the Company's preferred stock 
("Preferred Stock") having the powers, preferences and other terms described in 
Schedule 1 hereto in lieu of Warrant Shares, such that for each $1,000 in value 
that the Holder is not able to convert into Common Shares, the Holder shall be 
entitled to exercise this Warrant to purchase one share of Preferred Stock. 
"Stockholder Approval" means the approval by the majority of the total votes 
cast on the proposal, in person or by proxy, at a meeting of the stockholders of 
the Company held in accordance with the Company's Restated Articles of 
Organization and By-laws as then in effect, of the issuance by the Company of 
shares of Common Stock exceeding the Issuable Maximum as a consequence of the 
exercise of this Warrant and the Related Warrants, as and to the extent required 
pursuant to Rule 4460(i). 
 
4.     PAYMENT OF TAXES. The Company will pay all documentary stamp taxes 
attributable to the issuance of Warrant Shares upon the exercise of this 
Warrant; provided, however, that the Company shall not be required to pay any 
tax or taxes which may be payable in respect of any transfer involved in the 
registration of any stock certificates for Warrant Shares in a name other than 
that of the Holder, and the Company shall not be required to issue or deliver 
the stock certificates for Warrant Shares unless or until the person or persons 
requesting the issuance thereof shall have paid to the Company the amount of 
such tax or shall have established to the satisfaction of the Company that such 
tax has been paid. The Holder shall be responsible 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                       4 



   5 
 
 
for all other tax liability that may arise as a result of holding or 
transferring this Warrant or receiving the Warrant Shares under this Warrant 
Certificate. 
 
5.     REPLACEMENT OF WARRANT CERTIFICATE. If this Warrant Certificate is 
mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Company may in its discretion issue in 
exchange and substitution for and upon cancellation hereof, or in lieu of and 
substitution for this Warrant Certificate, a new Warrant Certificate of like 
tenor, but only upon receipt of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company 
of such loss, theft or destruction and indemnity, if requested, satisfactory to 
it. Applicants for a substitute Warrant Certificate shall also comply with such 
other reasonable regulations and pay such other reasonable charges as the 
Company may prescribe. 
 
6.     RESERVATION OF WARRANT SHARES. From and after the date that the 
stockholders of the Company approve an amendment to the Company's Restated 
Articles of Organization, as amended, to increase the Company's authorized 
Common Stock to 50,000,000 shares, the Company will at all times reserve and 
keep available, free from preemptive rights, out of the aggregate of its 
authorized but unissued Common Stock or its authorized and issued Common Stock 
held in its treasury, for the purpose of enabling it to satisfy any obligation 
to issue Warrant Shares upon exercise of this Warrant, the maximum number of 
Warrant Shares (as adjusted from time to time pursuant to Section 7 hereof) 
which may then be deliverable upon the exercise of this Warrant. 
 
7.     ADJUSTMENT TO THE NUMBER OF WARRANT SHARES ISSUABLE. The number of 
Warrant Shares issuable upon the exercise of this Warrant is subject to 
adjustment from time to time as set forth in this Section 7. Upon each such 
adjustment of the Exercise Price pursuant to this Section 7, the Holder shall 
thereafter, prior to the Expiration Date, be entitled to purchase, at the 
Exercise Price resulting from such adjustment, the number of Warrant Shares 
obtained by multiplying the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to such 
adjustment by the number of Warrant Shares issuable upon exercise of this 
Warrant immediately prior to such adjustment and dividing the product thereof by 
the Exercise Price resulting from such adjustment. In the event the Company and 
the Holder disagree as to any adjustment to the Exercise Price hereunder, an 
Appraiser, selected by the Holders of a majority in interest of this Warrant and 
the Related Warrants, shall give its opinion as to the adjustment, if any (not 
inconsistent with the standards established in this Section 7), of the Exercise 
Price; provided, however, that the Company, after receipt of the determination 
by such Appraiser, shall have the right to promptly select an additional 
Appraiser, in which case the adjustment shall be equal to the average of the 
adjustments recommended by each such Appraiser. The Board of Directors of the 
Company (the "Board"), shall make the adjustment recommended forthwith upon the 
receipt of such opinion or opinions; provided further, however, that no such 
adjustment of the Exercise Price shall be made which, in the opinion of the 
Appraiser(s) giving the aforesaid opinion or opinions, would result in an 
increase of the Exercise Price to more than the Exercise Price then in effect. 
 
       a.     If the Company, at any time while this Warrant is outstanding, (i) 
shall pay a stock dividend or otherwise make a distribution or distributions on 
shares of Common Stock 
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payable in shares of Common Stock, (ii) subdivide outstanding shares of Common 
Stock into a larger number of shares, (iii) combine outstanding shares of Common 
Stock into a smaller number of shares, or (iv) issue by reclassification of 
shares of Common Stock any shares of capital stock of the Company, the Exercise 
Price shall be multiplied by a fraction of which the numerator shall be the 
number of shares of Common Stock outstanding before such event and of which the 
denominator shall be the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding after such 
event. Any adjustment made pursuant to this Section 7(a) shall become effective 
immediately after the record date for the determination of stockholders entitled 
to receive such dividend or distribution and shall become effective immediately 
after the effective date in the case of a subdivision, combination or 
reclassification. 
 
       b.     If the Company, at any time while this Warrant is outstanding, 
shall distribute to all holders of Common Stock (and not to the Holder) 
evidences of its indebtedness or assets or rights or warrants to subscribe for 
or purchase any security (excluding those referred to in Section 7(d) hereof), 
then in each such case the Exercise Price for which the Warrant Shares shall be 
purchased shall be determined by multiplying the Exercise Price in effect 
immediately prior to the record date fixed for determination of stockholders 
entitled to receive such distribution by a fraction of which the denominator 
shall be the Exercise Price determined as of the record date mentioned above, 
and of which the numerator shall be the Exercise Price on such record date less 
the then fair market value at such record date of the portion of such assets or 
evidence of indebtedness so distributed applicable to one outstanding share of 
Common Stock as determined by the Board in good faith; provided, however, that 
in the event of a distribution exceeding 10% of the net assets of the Company, 
such fair market value shall be determined by a nationally recognized or major 
regional investment banking firm or firm of independent certified public 
accountants of recognized standing (which may be the firm that regularly 
examines the financial statements of the Company) (an "Appraiser"), selected in 
good faith by the Holders of a majority of the Warrants that are then 
outstanding; and provided further, however, that the Company, after receipt of 
the determination by such Appraiser shall have the right to select an additional 
Appraiser, in which case the fair market value shall be equal to the average of 
the determinations by each such Appraiser. In either case, the adjustments shall 
be described in a statement provided to the Holder and all other Holders of 
Related Warrants of the portion of assets or evidences of indebtedness so 
distributed or such subscription rights applicable to one share of Common Stock. 
Such adjustment shall be made whenever any such distribution is made and shall 
become effective immediately after the record date mentioned above. 
 
       c.     In case of any reclassification of the Common Stock, any 
consolidation or merger of the Company with or into another person, the sale or 
transfer of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company or any 
compulsory share exchange pursuant to which the Common Stock is converted into 
other securities, cash or property, then the Holder shall have the right 
thereafter to exercise this Warrant only into the shares of stock and other 
securities and property receivable upon or deemed to be held by holders of 
Common Stock following such reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, 
transfer or share exchange, and the Holder shall be entitled upon such event to 
receive such amount of securities or property as the shares of the Common Stock 
into which this Warrant could have been converted immediately prior to such 
reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, transfer or share exchange would 
have been entitled. The terms of 
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any such consolidation, merger, sale, transfer or share exchange shall include 
such terms so as to continue to give to the Holder the right to receive the 
securities or property set forth in this Section 7(c) upon any exercise 
following such consolidation, merger, sale, transfer or share exchange. This 
provision shall similarly apply to successive reclassifications, consolidations, 
mergers, sales, transfers or share exchanges. 
 
       d.     If: 
 
              i.     the Company shall declare a dividend (or any other 
              distribution) on its Common Stock; or 
 
              ii.    the Company shall declare a special nonrecurring cash 
              dividend on or a redemption of its Common Stock; or 
 
              iii.   the Company shall authorize the granting to all of the 
              holders of Common Stock, fights or warrants to subscribe for or 
              purchase any shares of capital stock of any class or of any 
              fights; or 
 
              iv.    the approval of any stockholders of the Company shall be 
              required in connection with any reclassification of Common Stock 
              (other than a subdivision or combination of the outstanding shares 
              of Common Stock), any consolidation or merger to which the Company 
              is a party, any sale or transfer of all or substantially all of 
              the assets of the Company, or any compulsory share exchange 
              whereby Common Stock is converted into other securities, cash or 
              property; or 
 
              v.     the Company shall authorize the voluntary or involuntary 
              dissolution, liquidation or winding-up of the affairs of the 
              Company; 
 
then the Company shall cause to be filed at each office or agency maintained for 
the purpose of exercising this Warrant, and shall cause to be mailed to the 
Holder, in accordance with Section 10 hereof, at least thirty (30) days prior to 
the applicable record or effective date hereinafter specified, a notice stating 
(x) the date on which a record is to be taken for the purpose of such dividend, 
distribution, redemption, fights or warrants, or if a record is not to be taken, 
the date as of which the holders of Common Stock of record to be entitled to 
such dividend, distributions, redemption, rights or warrants are to be 
determined, or (y) the date on which such reclassification, consolidation, 
merger, sale, transfer, share exchange, dissolution, liquidation or winding-up 
is expected to become effective, and the date as of which it is expected that 
holders of Common Stock of record shall be entitled to exchange their shares of 
Common Stock for securities or other property deliverable upon such 
reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, transfer, share exchange, 
dissolution, liquidation or winding-up; provided, however, that the failure to 
mail such notice or any defect therein or in the mailing thereof shall not 
affect the validity of the corporate action required to be specified in such 
notice. 
 
       e.     In any case in which this Section 7 shall require that an 
adjustment be made effective as of the record date for a specified event, the 
Company may elect to defer until 
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occurrence of such event (i) issuing to the Holder, if this Warrant is exercised 
after such record date, the Warrant Shares and other capital stock of the 
Company, if any, issuable upon such exercise over and above the Warrant Shares 
and other capital stock of the Company, if any, issuable upon such exercise on 
the basis of the Exercise Price prior to adjustment and (ii) paying to the 
Holder any amount in cash in lieu of a fractional share pursuant to Section 8 
hereof; provided, however, that the Company shall deliver to the Holder a due 
bill or other appropriate instrument evidencing the Holder's right to receive 
such additional Warrant Shares, other capital stock and/or cash upon the 
occurrence of the event requiring such adjustment. 
 
       f.     Any determination that the Company or the Board must make pursuant 
to this Section 7 shall be conclusive if made in good faith. 
 
8.     FRACTIONAL SHARES. The Company shall not be required to issue fractional 
Warrant Shares on the exercise of this Warrant. The number of full Warrant 
Shares which shall be issuable upon the exercise of this Warrant shall be 
computed on the basis of the aggregate number of Warrant Shares purchasable on 
exercise of this Warrant so presented. If any fraction of a Warrant Share would, 
except for the provisions of this Section 8, be issuable on the exercise of this 
Warrant, the Company shall pay an amount in cash equal to the Exercise Price 
multiplied by such fraction. 
 
9.     WARRANT AGENT. 
 
       a.     The Company shall serve as warrant agent under this Warrant. Upon 
thirty (30) days' notice to the Holder, the Company and the Holder may appoint a 
new warrant agent. After acceptance in writing of such appointment by the new 
warrant agent, the new warrant agent shall be vested with the same powers, 
rights, duties and responsibilities as if it had been originally named herein as 
the warrant agent, without any further assurance, conveyance, act or deed, but 
if for any reason it shall be necessary or expedient to execute and deliver any 
further assurance, conveyance, act or deed, the same shall be done at the 
expense of the Company and shall be legally and validly executed and delivered 
by the Company. 
 
       b.     Any corporation into which the Company or any new warrant agent 
may be merged or any corporation resulting from any consolidation to which the 
Company or any new warrant agent shall be a party or any corporation to which 
the Company or any new warrant agent transfers substantially all of its 
corporate trust or shareholders services business shall be a successor warrant 
agent under this Warrant without any further act. Any such successor warrant 
agent shall promptly cause notice of its succession as warrant agent to be 
mailed (by first class mail, postage prepaid) to the Holder at the Holder's last 
address as shown on the register maintained the warrant agent pursuant to this 
Warrant. 
 
10.    NOTICES. All notices or other communications hereunder shall be given, 
and shall be deemed duly given and received if given, by facsimile and by mail, 
postage prepaid: (I) if to the Company, addressed as follows: IMMUNOGEN, INC., 
333 Providence Highway, Norwood, Massachusetts 02062, Attention: Treasurer, or 
to facsimile number: (617) 769-4242; or (ii) if to the Holder, addressed to the 
Holder at the facsimile number and address of the Holder appearing 
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on the warrant register or such other address or facsimile number as the Holder 
may provide to the Company in accordance with this Section 10. Any such notice 
shall be deemed given and effective upon the earliest to occur of (i) receipt of 
such facsimile at the facsimile number specified in this Section 10, (ii) five 
(5) business days after deposit in the United States mails or (iii) upon actual 
receipt by the party to whom such notice is required to be given. 
 
11.    PER SHARE MARKET VALUE 
 
       As used in this Warrant, "Per Share Market Value" means on any particular 
date (a) the closing sale price per share of the Common Stock on such date on 
The Nasdaq National Market or Nasdaq SmallCap Market or other stock exchange on 
which the Common Stock has been listed or if there is no such price on such 
date, then the closing sale price on such exchange on the date nearest preceding 
such date, or (b) if the Common Stock is not listed on The Nasdaq National 
Market or Nasdaq SmallCap Market or any stock exchange, the closing sale price 
for a share of Common Stock in the over-the-counter market, as reported by the 
Nasdaq Stock Market at the close of business on such date, or (c) if the Common 
Stock is not quoted on the Nasdaq Stock Market, the closing sale price for a 
share of Common Stock in the over-the-counter market. as reported by the 
National Quotation Bureau Incorporated (or similar organization or agency 
succeeding to its functions of reporting prices), or (d) if the Common Stock is 
not reported by the National Quotation Bureau Incorporated (or similar 
organization or agency succeeding to its functions of reporting prices), then 
the average of the "Pink Sheet" quotes for the relevant conversion period, or 
(e) if the Common Stock is not publicly traded, the fair market value of a share 
of Common Stock as determined by an Appraiser (which shall conduct a good faith 
appraisal) selected in good faith by the holders of a majority in interest of 
the shares of the Company's Series B Preferred Stock; provided, however, that 
the Company, after receipt of the determination by such Appraiser, shall have 
the right to select an additional Appraiser (which shall conduct a good faith 
appraisal), in which case, the fair market value shall be equal to the average 
of the determinations by each such Appraiser. 
 
12.    MISCELLANEOUS. 
 
       a.     This Warrant shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 
 
       b.     Nothing in this Warrant shall be construed to give to any person 
or corporation other than the Company, the Holder and any registered Holder of 
Warrant Shares any legal or equitable right, remedy or cause under this Warrant; 
this Warrant shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Company, the 
Holder and any other registered Holder of Warrant Shares. 
 
       c.     This Warrant shall be governed by and construed and enforced in 
accordance with the internal laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts without 
regard to the conflict of law principles thereof. 
 
       d.     The headings herein are for convenience only, do not constitute a 
part of this Warrant and shall not be deemed to limit or affect any of the 
provisions hereof. 
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       e.     In case any one or more of the provisions of this Warrant shall be 
invalid or unenforceable in any respect, the validity and enforceability of the 
remaining terms and provisions of this Warrant shall not in any way be affected 
or impaired thereby and the parties will attempt in good faith to agree upon a 
valid and enforceable provision which shall be a commercially reasonable 
substitute therefor, and upon so agreeing, shall incorporate such substitute 
provision in this Warrant. 
 
       IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to be duly 
executed by its authorized officer as of the date first indicated above. 
 
 
 
                                      IMMUNOGEN, INC., 
                                      in its corporate capacity and in its  
                                      capacity as the warrant agent hereunder 
 
 
 
                                      By: /s/ Mitchel Sayare  
                                          ------------------------------------- 
                                          Mitchel Sayare     
                                          President and Chief Executive Officer 
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                          FORM OF ELECTION TO PURCHASE 
 
(To Be Executed by the Holder if the Holder Desires to Exercise the Warrant 
Evidenced by the Foregoing Warrant Certificate) 
 
To ImmunoGen, Inc.: 
 
The undersigned hereby irrevocably elects to exercise the Warrant evidenced by 
the foregoing Warrant Certificate No. W-97-2, and to purchase thereunder, _____ 
full shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of said Warrant and: __(i) 
makes payment of $_______, representing the full purchase price for such shares 
at the Exercise Price per share provided for in the Warrant, OR __(ii) elects to 
purchase the Warrant Shares by means of a "cashless exercise" as described in 
Section 3(e) of the Warrant Certificate by surrendering ________ shares of ATI 
Preferred Stock, OR __(iii) makes payment of $_______ in cash and elects to pay 
the balance of the Exercise Price for the Warrant Shares by means of a "cashless 
exercise" as described in Section 3(e) of the Warrant Certificate by 
surrendering _________ shares of ATI Preferred Stock, and makes payment in cash 
of any applicable taxes payable by the undersigned pursuant to such Warrant 
Certificate. 
 
The undersigned requests that certificates for the Warrant Shares be issued 
 
in the name of _________________________________________________ 
 
PLEASE INSERT SOCIAL SECURITY 
OR TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER:___________________________________ 
 
(PLEASE PRINT NAME AND ADDRESS) 
 
If said number of Warrant Shares shall not be all the Warrant Shares evidenced 
by the foregoing Warrant Certificate, the undersigned requests that a new 
Warrant Certificate evidencing the Warrant Shares not so exercise be issued in 
the name of and delivered to: 
 
(PLEASE PRINT NAME AND ADDRESS) 
 
___________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________ 
 
 
                                        Name of Holder: 
 
Dated: ____________________ 
                                        (Print)________________________________ 
 
                                        By:____________________________________ 
 
                                        Title:_________________________________ 
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                               FORM OF ASSIGNMENT 
 
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, hereby sells, assigns, and transfers to each assignee set 
forth below all of the fights of the undersigned in and to the portion of the 
Warrant (as defined in and evidenced by the foregoing Warrant Certificate) set 
opposite the name of such assignee below and in and to the foregoing Warrant 
Certificate with respect to said portion of the Warrant: 
 
 
 
Name of Assignee                  Address              Number of Warrant Shares 
- ----------------                  -------              ------------------------ 
 
 
 
 
 
If the total of said Warrant Shares shall not be all the Warrant Shares 
evidenced by the foregoing Warrant Certificate, the undersigned requests that a 
new Warrant Certificate evidencing the Warrant Shares not so assigned be issued 
in the name of and delivered to the undersigned. 
 
(Please print name and address): 
 
 
 
                                        Name of Holder: 
 
Dated: ____________________ 
                                        (Print)________________________________ 
 
                                        By:____________________________________ 
 
                                        Title:_________________________________ 
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                                   SCHEDULE 1 
 
                              PREFERRED STOCK TERMS 
 
       SECTION 1. DESIGNATION, AMOUNT AND PAR VALUE. The series of ImmunoGen, 
Inc. (the "Company") Preferred Stock shall be designated as the [Designation] 
Preferred Stock (the "Preferred Stock"), and the number of shares so designated 
shall be . The par value of each share of Preferred Stock shall be $.01. Each 
share of Preferred Stock shall have a stated value of $1,000 per share (the 
"Stated Value"). 
 
       SECTION 2. DIVIDENDS. At all times prior to July 31, 2002, in the event 
the Board of Directors of the Company (the "Board"), shall declare a dividend 
payable upon the then outstanding shares of common stock, $.01 par value, of the 
Company (or stock of any other class into which such shares may hereafter have 
been reclassified or changed) ("Common Stock"), the Board shall declare at the 
same time a dividend upon the then outstanding shares of the Preferred Stock, 
payable at the same time as the dividend paid on the Common Stock, in an amount 
equal to the amount of dividends per share of Preferred Stock, as would have 
been payable on [the Warrant Shares in lieu of which the shares of Preferred 
Stock were issued]. From and after July 31, 2002, the holders of Preferred Stock 
shall be entitled to receive a cumulative dividend payable in arrears in cash 
quarterly on the last day of each January, April, July and October, commencing 
on October 31, 2002 (each, a "Dividend Payment Date"), at a rate per annum 
multiplied by the Stated Value equal to the prime rate as announced by the Wall 
Street Journal from time to time, such rate to be adjusted automatically on the 
effective date of any change in such rate, plus 1%, in preference to dividends 
on any Common Stock or any class ranking, as to dividend rights, junior to the 
Preferred Stock, and such dividends shall accrue (whether or not declared and 
whether or not there shall be funds legally available for the payment of 
dividends) without interest, and shall be payable on the Dividend Payment Date. 
 
       SECTION 3. VOTING RIGHTS. Except as otherwise provided herein and as 
otherwise provided by law, the Preferred Stock shall have no voting rights. 
However, so long as any shares of Preferred Stock are outstanding, the Company 
shall not, without the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the 
shares of the Preferred Stock then outstanding, alter or change adversely the 
powers, preferences or rights given to the Preferred Stock. 
 
       SECTION 4. LIQUIDATION. Upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding-up 
of the Company, whether voluntary or involuntary (a "Liquidation"), the holders 
of shares of Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive out of the assets of 
the Company available for distribution to holders of the Company's capital 
stock, before payment or distribution of any of such assets to the holders of 
Common Stock, for each share of Preferred Stock an amount equal to the Stated 
Value, plus an amount equal to all declared but unpaid dividends per share, 
without interest, and if the assets of the Company shall be insufficient to pay 
in full such amounts, then the entire assets to be distributed shall be 
distributed among the holders of Preferred Stock ratably in accordance with the 
respective amounts that would be payable on such shares if all amounts payable 
thereon were paid in full. A sale, conveyance or disposition of all or 
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substantially all of the assets of the Company or the effectuation by the 
Company of a transaction or series of related transactions in which more than 
50% of the voting power of the Company is disposed of shall be deemed a 
Liquidation. The Company shall mail written notice of any such Liquidation, not 
less than 30 days prior to the payment date stated therein, to each record 
holder of Preferred Stock. 
 
       SECTION 5. CONVERSION. Each share of Preferred Stock shall be convertible 
into the number of Warrant Shares in lieu of which the shares of Preferred Stock 
were originally issued at any time on or after July 31, 2000 and before July 31, 
2007; PROVIDED THAT, on the conversion date, either (A) the Common Stock is not 
then listed for trading on the Nasdaq National Market, (B) the Exercise Price 
(as defined in the Warrant Certificate) then in effect is greater than $1.237, 
(c) the Company has previously obtained Stockholder Approval (as defined in the 
Warrant Certificate), (D) the Company has obtained a waiver of the Stockholder 
Approval requirement of Rule 4460(i) of the Nasdaq Stock Market (or any 
successor or replacement provision thereof) ("Rule 4460(i)"), or (E) the Company 
is no longer required to obtain Stockholder Approval under Rule 4460(i) as a 
condition to continued listing on the Nasdaq Stock Market. 
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